
 
 
 

Audit Committee 
 
 
Date Thursday 21 February 2013 

Time 10.00 am 

Venue Committee Room 1A, County Hall, Durham 

 
 

Business 
 

Part A 
 
 

Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend. 
Members of the Public can ask questions with the Chairman's 

agreement. 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Minutes of the meeting held on 22 November 2012  (Pages 1 - 8) 

3. Declarations of interest, if any   

4. Risk Management Update - Quarter Ending December 2012 - Report 
of Corporate Director, Resources  (Pages 9 - 24) 

5. Integrated Services - One Point Risk Update - Verbal Report of the 
Head of Finance   

6. Action Plan for Corporate Governance Improvements - Report of 
Corporate Director, Resources  (Pages 25 - 28) 

7. Action Plan 2011/12 Audit of Accounts Update - Report of Corporate 
Director, Resources  (Pages 29 - 40) 

8. 2011/12 Annual Grant Report - Report of the External Auditor  (Pages 
41 - 54) 

9. Co-opted Members to the Audit Committee -  Report of Corporate 
Director, Resources  (Pages 55 - 58) 

10. Internal Audit Progress Report Quarter Ending December 2012 Update 
- Report of Manager of Internal Audit and Risk  (Pages 59 - 92) 

11. Sale of Windlestone Hall - Joint Report of External Auditor and 
Manager of Internal Audit and Risk Management  (Pages 93 - 126) 

12. Such other business as in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting 
is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration   

13. Any resolution relating to the exclusion of the public during the 
discussion of items containing exempt information   



Part B 
 

Items during which it is considered the meeting will not be open to the 
public (consideration of exempt or confidential information) 

 
 
 

 
14. Internal Audit Progress Report Quarter Ending December 2012 Update 

- Report of Manager of Internal Audit and Risk  (Pages 127 - 144) 

15. Overdue Audit Recommendations - Report of the Manager of Internal 
Audit and Risk  (Pages 145 - 148) 

16. Such other business as in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting 
is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration   

 
 
 

Colette Longbottom 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
County Hall 
Durham 
13 February 2013 
 
 
To: The Members of the Audit Committee 

 
 Councillor E Bell (Chairman) 

Councillor O Temple (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 Councillors C Carr, B Harrison, M Hodgson, L Marshall, B Myers, 
R Ord and D J Southwell 

 
 Co-opted Members: 
 
 T Hoban and K Larkin-Bramley 
 
 
 
 

Contact: Jackie Graham Tel: 03000269704 

 



 

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

At a Meeting of Audit Committee held in Committee Room 1A - County Hall, Durham 
on Thursday 22 November 2012 at 10.00 am 

 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor E Bell in the Chair  

 

Members of the Committee: 

Councillors R Ord, and D J Southwell 
 
Co-opted Members: 

Mr T Hoban and Ms K Larkin-Bramley 
 
Apologies: 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors C Carr, B Myers and K Larkin-
Bramley 
 
Also Present: 

C Banks (Mazars) 
 
1 Minutes 

 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2012 were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman.  
 
Consideration was given to all current items on the Committee’s Action Plan (for 
copy of action plan see file of Minutes).  Several items on the Plan were considered 
later in the meeting, the position with others was provided and dates were set when 
these would be reported back to Committee. The Plan would be updated 
accordingly.  
 
 

2 Declarations of Interest  
 
Declarations of interest were provided by Members of the Committee.  A generic 
declaration of interest would be recorded given that Members were school 
governors, members of various Committees of the Council, former District 
Councillor’s and bodies such as the Probation Board, Fire Authority and Police 
Authority. 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 
3 Single Asset Register Phase 2 

 
The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director, Resources that 
provided an update on the second phase of the development of the Single Asset 
Register (for copy see file of Minutes). 
 
Mr I Herberson, Assistant Finance Manager, Corporate Finance informed Members 
that Phase 1 was completed last year and the Statement of Accounts had received 
a qualified opinion.  Phase 2 would take on board the main priorities from a 
consistency point of view as the hand over from district councils held different 
values. 
 
Councillor Southwell queried the valuation of properties and was assured that they 
were valued by an Internal Valuer at the current market value.  The Corporate 
Director, Resources added that some tenants are given a Right to Buy discount and 
that a report looking at the best model for managing housing stock would go to 
Cabinet on 19 December 2012. 
 
Councillor Ord asked for guidance on the process for selling land and property on 
the open market and how prices are arrived at.  The Chairman suggested that a 
report come back to the next meeting on the process of determining valuations. 
 
Resolved: 
That the prioritisation of phase 2, and the work plan in Appendix 2 which aims to 
complete the housing module of the single asset register by 15 February 2013 be 
noted. 
 
 

4 Council Tax Collection Performance and Provision for Bad Debts 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director, Resources which 
gave an overview of in year Council Tax collection performance for 2012/13 and an 
update on the collection rate  for 2010/11 and 2011/12, together with an update on 
the Council Tax provision for bad and doubtful debts calculation (for copy see file of 
Minutes). 
 
Members were assured that processes were in place to collect £250m in 2012/13, 
based on a collection rate of 98.5% which in turn would balance budgets.  
Performance had improved since the introduction of new systems. 
 
The Committee discussed the impact of single occupancy and were informed that 
all County Council tenants would be informed.  The risks had been identified as to 
where tenants would be moved to and the impact on Council Tax collections. 
 
Resolved: 
That the in year and overall Council Tax collection performance as outlined in the 
report, together with the update on the provision for bad and doubtful debts, be 
noted. 

Page 2



 
5 Earmarked and General Reserves – Briefing Note 

 
The Committee considered a briefing note of the Corporate Director, Resources 
that informed of the amount held in accounts of earmarked and general reserves 
(for copy see file of Minutes). 
 
The Corporate Director, Resources stated that at the end of September 2012 £5.5m 
of earmarked reserves would provide general fund services, £2.14m of the Housing 
Revenue Account’s earmarked reserves are forecast to be used.  He added that 
General Reserves are forecast to increase by £4.48m. 
 
Councillor Southwell asked that all staff be congratulated within the service for the 
amount of reserves held however he did raise concerns about the cuts in walking to 
school from 2 to 3 miles.  Councillor Hodgson advised that this was being looked at 
as part of the wider issue in a Scrutiny Working Group. 
 
Resolved: 
That the information contained in the briefing note be noted. 
 
 

6 Internal Audit Progress Report Quarter Ended 30 September 2012 
 

The Committee considered a report of the Manager of Internal Audit and Risk which 
informed members of the work carried out by Internal Audit during the period June 
to September 2012 ( for copy see file of Minutes). 
 
Councillor Southwell commended the service on a positive report. Resolved: 
 
That amendments made to the 2012/13 Annual Audit Plan, work undertaken during 
the period June to September 2012 and the progress made by service managers in 
responding to the work of internal audit, be noted. 
 
 

7 Action Plan – 2011/12 Audit of Accounts 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director, Resources that 
presented an action plan consolidating all agreed recommendations for improving 
control weaknesses incorporate in the External Auditor’s 2011/12 Interim and Final 
Governance Reports (for copy see file of Minutes). 
 
Members were given assurances that the template used had been updated and 
that actions suggested are followed through.  A robust monitoring framework has 
been introduced and the Committee would be updated on progress at the meeting 
in February 2013. 

Page 3



Resolved: 
That the action plan at Appendix 2 be noted and to gain assurances that control 
weaknesses identified through the final account audit process are appropriately 
addressed. 
 
 

8 Report of the Audit Committee for the Period April 2012 to September 2012 to 
County Council 
 
The Committee considered a draft report of the Chair of the Audit Committee (for 
copy see file of Minutes) of the work of the Audit Committee for the period April to 
September 2012, for agreement prior to reporting to full Council at its meeting on 5 
December 2012. 
 
The Committee asked that, to ensure all parties are represented at Audit 
Committee, substitute members are appointed to attend meetings if the committee 
member is unable to attend, subject to having received appropriate training.  The 
Chairman agreed to speak to the relevant party leaders. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the recommendations in the report be agreed subject to a comment being 
added about how the committee had helped with the timely production of the year 
end accounts. 
 

9 Annual Audit Letter 2011/12 
 
The Committee received the Annual Audit Letter 2011/12 from the Audit 
Commission summarising the 2011/12 audit of Durham County Council, including 
the Pension Fund that it administers (for copy see file of Minutes). 
 
Resolved: 
That the contents of the letter are noted. 
 
 

10 Strategic Risk Management Progress Report for the Quarter period July to 
September 2012  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director, Resources which 
highlighted the strategic risks facing the Council and that gave an insight into the 
work carried out by the Corporate Risk Management Group during July to 
September 2012 (for copy see file of Minutes). 
 
Members were informed of new risks, those that had been removed and key risks.  

Page 4



 
Councillor Hodgson asked about the impact on service for One-Point and it was 
agreed to ask the risk owner to give an account at the next meeting. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the report provides assurance that strategic risks are being effectively 
managed within the risk management framework across the Council. 
 
The risk owner of the risk, “Failure to agree an accurate baseline for the One Point 
service pooled budget with the County Durham and Darlington Foundation Trusts 
results in a service overspend “  , be asked to attend the next meeting of the 
Committee to provide further assurance on how this risk was being managed. 
 
 

11 Local Code of Corporate Governance 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director, Resources that 
sought approval of the revised Local Code of Corporate Governance (for copy see 
file of Minutes). 
 
Mr D Marshall, Risk and Governance Manager, stated that the code had been 
simplified and streamlined, and that the revisions had been made in line with the 
Annual Governance Review. 
 
Resolved: 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

12 Exclusion of the Public  
 
That under Section 100 (A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A to the said Act. 
 
 

13 Internal Audit Progress Report - Quarter Ended 30 September 2012 
 
The Committee considered Appendix 7 of the report of the Manager of Internal 
Audit and Risk which informed members of actions agreed by managers in 
response to internal audit recommendations that were overdue at the end of 
September 2012. (for copy see file of Minutes). 
 
Cllr Southwell asked if in future the reporting template could show the name of the 
action owner.  The Chairman agreed that this would help in knowing which officers 
should be called into account for the lack of action.   

Page 5



 
Resolved: 
That the report together with the recommendations included therein be approved. 
 
The Chair and the Vice Chair would consider overdue actions further in consultation 
with the Manager of Internal Audit and Risk to agree which officers should be asked 
to attend the next Committee to explain why agreed recommendations had not 
been implemented as planned. 
 
 

14 Fraud and Irregularity Update 2012/13 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director, Resources which 
provided an update on fraud and irregularity cases during the period April to 
September 2012 (for copy see file of Minutes). 
 
The Committee sought assurances that partner agencies are working closely with 
the Council and that training is consistent for all Council officers that deal with these 
cases. 
 
Resolved: 
That the report together with the recommendations included therein be approved. 
 
 

Page 6



 1

Action Plan - Work of Audit Committee - Part A – 21 February 2013 
 

Ref 
No. 

Date of 
Meeting 

Item 
No. 

Title of Report Action Required By Whom Report to 
Committee 
(date)/ 
implemented 

1 29.9.11 
10.11.11 
5.1.12 
16.2.12 
22.3.12 
22.11.12 

4 
 
 
 
 

3 

Single Asset 
Register 

Process of valuation 
report to be brought 
to a future meeting  

Ian 
Herberson,Asst 
Finance 
Manager  
 

21.2.13 
 
Verbal update  
(No separate 
agenda item) 

2 16.2.12 6 F M Standards Once Section 151 
Officer had 
completed the 
process, further 
details be brought 
back to Committee 

Corporate 
Director, 
Resources 

4/4/13 
Delayed due 
to revised 
target date for 
completion of 
standards 

6 27.9.12 
22.11.12 

5 
7 

Annual 
Governance Report 
(and Interim 
Governance 
Report)  

Update on progress 
of new monitoring 
system to be brought 
back to Committee 

Ian Herberson, 
Asst Finance 
Manager 

21 2.13 
 
Agenda Item 7 

7 27.9.12 
 
22.11.12 

7 
&10 

Internal Audit 
Progress Report  

Update on actions 
being taken to secure 
additional IT audit 
resource  
 
Update on overdue 
recommendations 
 
 

Manager of 
Internal Audit 
and Risk 

21.2.13 
 
To  be 
covered in IA 
Quarterly 
Progress 
Report 
 
Agenda item 
10 
 
 
 

 22.11.12 10 Strategic Risk 
Management 
Report   

The action owner  for 
One Point Risk be 
asked to attend next 
meeting to provide 
further assurance 

Head of Early 
Intervention 
and 
Partnerships  

21.2.13 
 
Agenda item 5  

 22.11.12 14 Fraud  & 
Irregularity   

Further assurance on 
work carried out with 
partners 

Manager of 
Internal Audit & 
Risk 

TBA 

 

 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Audit Committee 
 
21 February 2013  
 

Strategic Risk Management  
Progress Report for the Quarter period 
October to December 2012 

 

Report of Corporate Management Team 

 

 
 

Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources 

Purpose of the Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to highlight the strategic risks facing the 
Council and to give an insight into the work carried out by the 
Corporate Risk Management Group during the period October to 
December 2012 

Background 

2. Each Corporate Director has a designated Service Risk Manager to 
lead on risk management at a Service Grouping level.  In addition, the 
Council has designated the Deputy Leader of the Council and the 
Corporate Director, Resources as Member and Officer Risk 
Champions respectively. Collectively, they meet together with the Risk 
and Governance Manager as a Corporate Risk Management Group 
(CRMG).  A summary setting out how the Council deals with the risk 
management framework is detailed in Appendix 2.   

 

3. Throughout this report, both in the summary and the Appendices, all 
risks are reported as ‘Net Risk’ (after putting in place mitigating 
controls to gross risk), which is based on an assessment of the impact 
and likelihood of the risk occurring with existing controls in place.   

Current status of the risks to the Council 

4. As at 31st December 2012, there were 44 strategic risks, which is a 
decrease of seven from the previous period on 30 September 2012.  In 
summary, the key risks to the Council are: 

� Slippage in delivery of the MTFP will require further savings, which 
may result in further service reductions/ job losses; 

� Failure to identify and effectively regulate Contaminated Land; 
� Coastal erosion and improved environment may be adversely 

impacted if a programme of repairs to Seaham North Pier is not 
undertaken; 

� Potential claw-back from MMI (former insurers) under the Scheme 
of Arrangement (SOA);  

� Damage to Highways assets as a result of a severe weather event; 
� Government budget plans to cut Local Government funding further 

for 2015/16 and 2017/18 as part of the next Comprehensive 
Spending Review would have major impact on services including 
frontline services that customers rely on; 

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



 
 

� Potential restitution of search fees going back to 2005; 
� School funding reforms & LACSEG reductions threaten viability of 

some centrally managed services for children and young people. 
 

Progress on addressing these key risks is detailed in Appendix 3. 

5. Appendix 4 of this report lists all of the Council’s strategic risks as at 31 
December 2012. 

6. Management has identified and assessed these risks using a 
structured and systematic approach, and is taking proactive measures 
to mitigate these risks to a manageable level.  This effective 
management of our risks is contributing to improved performance, 
decision-making and governance across the Council. 

7. The following, ongoing projects have been supported in various ways, 
including risk analysis through workshops and meetings, giving critical 
feedback on risk management documentation and procedures, 
attending project / board meetings and helping to maintain the risk 
register through challenge and identifying controls. 

� Accommodation Strategy;  
� Carbon Reduction; 
� Community Buildings; 
� Crook Depot Construction; 
� County Durham Plan;  
� Customer Centric; 
� Financial Management Computer System; 
� Library Strategy; 
� Local Council Tax Support Scheme; 
� Planning Computer System; 
� Revenues and Benefits Computer System, Phase 2; 
� School Meals Procurement; 
� South Hetton Primary School; 
� Stock Options Appraisal for Housing;  
� Welfare Reform. 

 
 

Recommendations and reasons 

8. Audit Committee is requested to confirm that this report provides 
assurance that strategic risks are being effectively managed within the 
risk management framework across the Council. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Contact:  David Marshall Tel: 03000 269648 

Page 10



 
 

 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 
Finance - Addressing risk appropriately reduces the risk of financial loss. 
 
Staffing - Staff training needs are addressed in the risk management training 
plan. 
 
Risk – Not a key decision 
 
Equality and Diversity/Public Sector Equality Duty - None 
 
Accommodation - None 
 
Crime and disorder - None 
 
Human rights - None 
 
Consultation - None 
 
Procurement – None.  
 
Disability issues – None. 
 
Legal Implications – None. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 11



 
 

Appendix 2:  Background 
 

A large amount of work is being carried out across the Council in shaping and 
developing our approach to risk management where the Cabinet and the 
Corporate Management Team have designated the Deputy Leader of the 
Council and the Corporate Director, Resources as Member and Officer Risk 
Champions respectively.  
 
Together they jointly take responsibility for embedding risk management 
throughout the Council, and are supported by the Manager of Internal Audit and 
Risk, the lead officer responsible for risk management, as well as the Risk and 
Governance Manager.  Each Service Grouping also has a designated Service 
Risk Manager to lead on risk management at a Service Grouping level, and act 
as a first point of contact for staff who require any advice or guidance on risk 
management. Collectively, the Risk Champions, Service Risk Managers and 
the Risk and Governance Manager meet together as a Corporate Risk 
Management Group.  This group monitor the progress of risk management 
across the Council, advise on strategic risk issues, identify and monitor 
corporate cross-cutting risks, and agree arrangements for reporting and 
awareness training.   
 
An Audit Committee is in place, and one of its key roles is to monitor the 
effective development and operation of risk management and overall corporate 
governance in the Authority. 
 

It is the responsibility of the Corporate Directors to develop and maintain the 
internal control framework and to ensure that their Service resources are 
properly applied in the manner and to the activities intended. Therefore, in this 
context, Heads of Service are responsible for identifying and managing the key 
risks which may impact on their respective Service, and providing assurance 
that adequate controls are in place, and working effectively to manage these 
risks where appropriate.  In addition, independent assurance of the risk 
management process, and of the risks and controls of specific areas, is 
provided by Internal Audit.  Reviews by external bodies, such as the Audit 
Commission, Ofsted and Care Quality Commission, may also provide some 
independent assurance of the controls in place. 
 
Risks are assessed in a logical and straightforward process, which involves the 
Risk Owner (within the Service) assessing both the impact on finance, service 
delivery or stakeholders if the risk materialises, and also the likelihood that the 
risk will occur over a given period.  The assessment is confirmed by the Service 
Management Team, and Chief Officers agree their Risk Register with the 
Cabinet Member responsible for their Portfolio Service. 
 
An assurance mapping framework is being developed to demonstrate where 
and how the Council receives assurance that its business is run efficiently and 
effectively, highlighting any gaps or duplication that may indicate where further 
assurance is required or could be achieved more effectively.  
 

Page 12



 
 

Appendix 3:  Strategic Risks  
 

Risks are assessed at two levels: 
 

• Gross Impact and Likelihood are based on an assessment of the risk without 
any controls in place;   

 

• Net Impact and Likelihood are based on the assessment of the current level of 
risk, taking account of the existing controls/ mitigation in place.   

 
As at 31st December 2012, there were 44 strategic risks, a decrease of seven from 
the number of risks at the end of the previous period at 30 September 2012.  
 
The following matrix summarises the total number of strategic risks based on their 
Net risk assessment as at 31 December 2012.  Where there have been changes to 
the number of risks from the last quarter period end, the risk total as at 30 
September 2012 is highlighted in brackets.   
 
 
Overall number of Strategic Risks as at 31 December 2012.  
 
 

Impact  

Critical 1 (1) 2 (3) 3 (4)      

Major  3 (3)  4 (5)   1 (4) 2 (0) 

Moderate   2 (3)   13 (14)   5 (4) 2 (2) 

Minor      3 (3)   2 (3)  1 (2) 

Insignificant      

 Likelihood Remote Unlikely Possible Probable 
Highly 
Probable 

 
 
In summary, key points to draw to your attention are: 
 

1 Beneficial outcomes 
 

� Although demand for services remains high, improved gate-keeping 
and more effective preventative services has contributed to a position 
where the number of Looked After Children is now fairly static after a 
period of increases. This has resulted in the risk of “Failure to meet 
escalating costs of external and high-cost placements for looked after 
children effectively where highly-specialised provision is required” 
reducing. (CAS) 

� The implementation of a number of mitigating control measures, 
including embedding the events management protocol, has resulted in 
the risk of “Failure to effectively support events organised by the 

Page 13



 
 

Council or taking place on Council land” no longer being considered a 
strategic risk. (NS) 

 

2 Significant New and Increased Risks 
 

Two new risks have been identified this quarter: 
 

� “Risk that the Council does not respond to the Government’s changes to 
Welfare Reform”. This is an overarching risk, summarising the implications 
of the Government’s Welfare Reforms. (ACE) 

� “Failure to substantially deliver the Community Buildings Strategy by 
March 2014, leading to continuation of current issues”, as the asset 
transfer process is taking longer than expected, resulting in potential 
delays. (ACE) 

 
Significant risks which have increased during the quarter are: 
 
� “Potential claw-back from MMI (former insurers) under the Scheme of 

Arrangement”.  Confirmation was received from the MMI board that the 
scheme has been invoked although the amount of claw-back required will 
not be known until March 2013. The likelihood of this risk has been 
increased to Highly Probable. (RES) 

� “Damage to highway assets as a result of severe weather event”. Due to 
the several flooding incidents this year the net score of this risk has 
increased to a major impact, with the likelihood of it occurring increasing 
to highly probable. (NS) 
 

3 Removed Risks 
 

The following nine risks have been removed from the register in this quarter 
following effective management of the risks by the Services, as all mitigating 
actions have been completed to reduce them to a level where management 
now consider existing controls to be adequate.   

 
� ‘County Durham Economic Partnership fails to narrow the deprivation gap 

within County Durham due to reductions in public expenditure and social 
programmes, reduced employment opportunities and the changes in 
Welfare Reform legislation’ is no longer a strategic risk. (RED) 

� ‘Deterioration in public health services resulting from transfer of Public 
Health responsibilities to the LA and impact of funding proposals’ is no 
longer a strategic risk as an improved funding settlement has now been 
approved. (CAS) 

� “East Durham Homes additional Government funding is not forthcoming 
due to Government cut backs” is no longer a strategic risk as funding has 
now been approved. (RED) 

� “Limited knowledge and/or use of the DEBS live system by some budget 
holders could adversely impact on service delivery and financial 
performance in Neighbourhood Service”.  This is now being dealt with by 
Management Team as a business-as-usual issue, and is no longer 
considered a strategic risk. (NS) 

Page 14



 
 

� “Failure to effectively support events organised by the Council or taking 
place on Council land”. All control measures are now in place and the 
Events Management protocol is now embedded. (NS) 

� “The performance of building services e.g. Design, Repairs & Maintenance, 
Construction, Asset Management & Facilities Management does not 
improve to make the service more competitive”. All mitigating actions have 
been completed which has reduced the net impact and likelihood of this risk 
occurring. (NS) 

� “The Council may be liable to legal challenge if a single status agreement 
is not implemented in full” is no longer a strategic risk, as agreement has 
now been reached on the single status framework. (RES) 

� The risk “Failure to agree an accurate baseline for the One Point service 
pooled budget with CDDFT results in a service overspend” has been 
removed as the budget split between the Council and CDDFT has now 
been addressed, and the potential overspend will not occur in 2012/13. 
However, the risk will return because of the need to achieve £230,000 of 
savings from within the One Point service over and above the Council’s 
MTFP requirements and the target savings required by CDDFT that are 
yet to be finalised. (CAS) 

� The risk of “Changes to school funding allocation methodology threaten 
significant funding reductions for some schools” is no longer considered a 
strategic risk, as mitigating actions have been implemented. (CAS)  

Page 15



 
 

4 Key Risks 
 

The risks shown in the tables below are considered the key risks to the 
Council. Where there have been changes to the risk assessment from the last 
quarter period end, these are highlighted in the column headed ‘Direction of 
Travel’.  The target for when the risk will be at an acceptable level, or where 
further improvements in mitigation are not possible, is highlighted in the 
column headed ‘Anticipated date when risk will be at an acceptable level’. 

 

 

 

Impact 
 

Critical   
Risks 1, 2 & 

3  
  

Major    Risk 6  Risks 4 & 5 

Moderate     Risks 7 & 8 

Minor      

Insignificant      

 Likelihood Remote Unlikely Possible Probable 
Highly 
Probable 

Page 16



 
 

 
Ref Service 

owning the 
risk 

Corporate 
Theme 

Risk Net 
Impact 

Net 
Likelihood 

Proposed Key Actions Direction of 
Travel 

Anticipated date when risk 
will be at an acceptable 

level 

1 RES 
Risk Owner: 
Don McLure 

Altogether 
Better 
Council 

Slippage in delivery of the 
MTFP will require further 
savings, which may result 
in further service 
reductions/ job losses 

Critical Possible The Delivery plan implementation will 
be monitored by CMT and Cabinet. 
 

 This will be a significant risk 
for at least the next 4 years.  
No further mitigation is 
planned at the current stage. 

2 NS 
Risk Owner: 
Joanne 
Waller 

Altogether 
Greener 

Failure to identify and 
effectively regulate 
Contaminated Land 

Critical Possible All sites identified for inclusion within 
the annual programme for 2013 will 
be inspected as from January 2013. 

 July 2013 

3 NS 
Risk Owner: 
Terry Collins 

Altogether 
Wealthier 

Coastal erosion and 
improved environment may 
be adversely impacted if a 
programme of repairs to 
Seaham North Pier is not 
undertaken 

Critical Possible Funds will be allocated in future 
budgets for the design and 
undertaking of repairs to the 
structure.  
  

  

4 RES 
Risk Owner: 
Don McLure 

Altogether 
Better 
Council 

Potential claw-back from 
MMI (former insurers) 
under the Scheme of 
Arrangement (SOA) 

Major Highly 
Probable 

 The cost of any clawback will be met 
from the Insurance Reserve. 

Likelihood 
increased 

The scheme of arrangement 
has been invoked.  Decision 
on amount of clawback 
required due by March 2013.  

5 NS 
Risk Owner 
John Reed 

Altogether 
Safer 

Damage to Highways 
assets as a result of a 
severe weather event. 

Major Highly 
Probable 

A revised inspection and 
maintenance regime to be 
implemented. 

Impact and 
Likelihood 
increased 

Mitigating actions should be 
in place by April 2013. 

P
age 17



 
 

Ref Service 
owning the 

risk 

Corporate 
Theme 

Risk Net 
Impact 

Net 
Likelihood 

Proposed Key Actions Direction of 
Travel 

Anticipated date when risk 
will be at an acceptable 

level 

6 RES 
Risk Owner: 
Don McLure 

Altogether 
Better 
Council 

Government budget plans 
to cut Local Government 
funding further for 2015/ 16 
and 2017/ 18 as part of the 
next Comprehensive 
Spending Review would 
have major impact on 
services including frontline 
services that customers 
rely on 

Major Probable Sound financial forecasting based on 
a thorough examination of the 
Government's "red book" plans is in 
place.  
 
Early engagement with Cabinet and 
a timetable of key milestone dates 
will be agreed. 

 This is related to key risk 2 
above. 

7 RES 
Risk Owner: 
Colette 
Longbottom 

Altogether 
Better 
Council 

Potential restitution of 
search fees going back to 
2005 

Moderate Highly 
Probable 

The Council has signed up to a class 
action defence by LGA appointed 
solicitors  

 Dependent upon the 
outcome of the negotiations/ 
litigation currently being 
 defended by lawyers 
instructed in group litigation 

8 CAS 
Risk Owner 
Caroline 
O’Neill 

Altogether 
Better for 
Children 
and Young 
People 

School funding reforms & 
LACSEG reductions 
threaten viability of some 
centrally managed services 
for children and young 
people 

Moderate  Highly 
Probable 

Reviews of major areas of the 
service are underway. 

 Mitigating actions should be 
in place by April 2013. 

 
  

P
age 18



 
 

 

Appendix 4:  List of all Strategic Risks (per Corporate Theme) 
 

Based on the Net risk assessment as at 31 December 2012, the following tables highlight the risks for each Corporate Theme.   
 

Corporate Theme – Altogether Better Council              
 

 
Ref Service  Risk 

1 Resources Slippage in delivery of the MTFP will require further savings, which may result in further service reductions/ job losses 

2 Resources Potential claw-back from MMI (former insurers) under the Scheme of Arrangement (SOA) 

3 Resources Government budget plans to cut Local Government funding further for 2015/ 16 and 2016/ 17 as part of the next Comprehensive Spending Review would 
have major impact on services including frontline services that customers rely on. 

4 Resources Potential restitution of search fees going back to 2005 

5 ACE Serious breach of law regarding management of data/information, including an unauthorised release requiring notification to ICO. 

6 RED Increased demand for Housing Solution Service beyond current staffing capacity due to changes in Government Welfare legislation. 

7 RED Adverse impact on Durham City Homes revenue, capacity and resources and tenants due to changes in Government legislation. 

8 NS Building Services could see a loss of business if the academies do not use Council services and/ or opt out of the SLA to procure outside agencies to carry 
out compliance, building and maintenance/ grounds maintenance works.  

9 NS Contamination of material collected from kerbside from Alternate Weekly Collection scheme is having a negative impact on income (MTFP implications) and 
may reduce availability of recycling outlets. 

10 ACE Risk that the Council does not respond to the Government’s changes to Welfare Reform 

11 ACE Failure to substantially deliver the Community Buildings Strategy by March 2014, leading to continuation of current issues 

12 Resources Inconsistent approach to managing funding bids by Services could expose the Council to financial losses and reputational damage. 

13 Resources Industrial Action will adversely impact service delivery 

14 Resources Collection Fund and Debtors collection rates do not reach target set for 2012/13 

15 Resources Major Interruption to IT Service Delivery 

P
age 19



 
 

 
Ref Service  Risk 

16 CAS Potential for the Police Reforms to weaken the ability of the Council and its partners to cut crime and anti-social behaviour 

17 Resources Due to the amount of change occurring across the Council, the potential for fraud and error is increasing. 

18 ACE Failure to consult with communities on major service & policy changes leading to legal challenge & delays in implementation  

19 ACE Failure to consider equality implications of decisions on communities leading to legal challenge and delays in implementation    

20 CAS Work Related Stress – STAFF  

21 NS Consistent health and safety policies, practices and procedures across the Neighbourhoods Service are not embedded across NS 

22 Resources Inaccurate forecasts relating to the impact of Council Tax Support Scheme and Business Rate Retention.  

23 CAS Merger of Children/Adults Services 

 
Altogether Safer 
 

 
Service  Risk 

24 NS Damage to Highways assets as a result of a severe weather event. 

25 RED Disused unmaintained Coal Authority mine workings on DCC land may result in serious injury/financial claims against the Council 

26 CAS A service failure of Safeguarding leads to death or serious harm to a service user. 

27 CAS Failure to protect child from death or serious harm (where service failure is a factor or issue) 

28 CAS Unauthorised encampment 

29 ACE Failure to prepare for, respond to and recover from a major incident or interruption, and to provide essential services. 

30 CAS Violence and Aggression Staff 

31 RED Serious injury or loss of life due to Safeguarding failure (Transport Service) 

 
 
 

P
age 20



 
 

Altogether Greener 
 

 
Service  Risk 

32 NS Failure to identify and effectively regulate Contaminated Land 

33 NS Failure to effectively deliver the proposed Waste Management Solution. 

 
 
Altogether Healthier 
 

 

Service  Risk 

34 CAS Potential financial, operational, and reputational risks arising from proposed NHS Reforms 

35 CAS Increased cost to the authority from revision to “Ordinary residence” guidance 

36 CAS Management and administration of service users medications 

 
Altogether Better for Children and Young People 
 

 

Service  Risk 

37 CAS School funding reforms & LACSEG reductions threaten viability of some centrally managed services for children and young people 

38 CAS Failure to meet escalating costs of external and high-cost placements effectively where highly-specialised provision is required 

39 CAS Children/families experience a lack of interface between services for children & adults as a result of failure to work together 

40 CAS County Durham & Darlington Foundation Trust efficiency requirements undermine service management & delivery in the One Point service 

41 RED Employment Services for young people (18-24 year olds) are under resourced and unco-ordinated between service groups. 

 
 P

age 21



 
 

Altogether Wealthier 

 
 

Service  Risk 

42 NS Coastal erosion and improved environment may be adversely impacted if a programme of repairs to Seaham North Pier is not undertaken 

43 RED Diminishing Capital Resources, continuing depressed land values and slow growth in the private sector will impact on the ability to deliver major projects 
and Town initiatives within proposed timescales. 

44 RED Private housing stock condition worsens with adverse implications for local economy, health & neighbourhood sustainability.  

 
 

 

P
age 22



 
 

 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Audit Committee 
 
21 February 2013 
 
Action Plan for Corporate Governance 
Improvements 

 

 

 
 

Report of Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources 

Purpose of the Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to update the Audit Committee on progress in 
implementing the agreed governance action plan, which highlights areas of 
improvement arising from the annual review of the effectiveness of corporate 
governance arrangements.  

Background 

2. The Council has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance 
which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework – 
‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’.  The Annual Governance 
Statement (AGS) explains how the Council complies with this code and also 
meets the requirements of Regulation 4 (3) of the Accounts and Audit 
(England) Regulations 2011 in relation to the publication of a Statement on 
Internal Control.   

 
3. To inform the 2011/12 AGS, the annual review of the effectiveness of 

corporate governance arrangements was carried out. In support of this review, 
all Corporate Directors were asked to provide an assurance statement to 
ensure that there is understanding council wide of the Council’s governance 
arrangements and that they are embedded within each operational area 
including project and partnership responsibilities.   

4. From this review, a number of areas for improving corporate governance have 
been identified. These were reported in the 2011/12 AGS, and are 
documented in a governance action plan attached to this report in Appendix 2.  

Recommendations and reasons 

5. Audit Committee to confirm that this report provides assurance that action is 
being taken to address areas of improvement in corporate governance 
arrangements, as set out in the attached action plan in Appendix 2. 

 

Contact:  David Marshall Tel: 0191 3834311 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 25



 

 
Finance - Financial planning and management is a key component of effective 
corporate governance. 

Staffing - Ensuring the adequate capability of staff meets a core principle of the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)/Society of Local 
Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) guidance. 

 
Risk – Delivery of the corporate governance action plan will strengthen the decision 
making and strategic and operational management of the Council’s business. 
 

Equality and Diversity/ Public Sector Equality Duty - Engaging local communities 
including hard to reach groups meets a core principle of the CIPFA/ SOLACE 
guidance. 

 

Accommodation – None directly, although asset management is a key component 
of effective corporate governance 

 

Crime and Disorder – None. 

 

Human Rights - None. 

 

Consultation - Engaging local communities meets a core principle of the CIPFA/ 
SOLACE guidance. 

 

Procurement – None.  

 

Disability issues – Ensuring access to services meets a core principle of the 
CIPFA/ SOLACE guidance. 

 

Legal Implications – Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, and 
ensuring that expenditure is lawful, is a key component of effective corporate 
governance 

 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

Page 26



 

 

Appendix 2:  Annual Governance Statement – Action Plan 
 

The Lead Officer is the officer who will oversee and monitor the implementation of the action.  However, for a number of actions, it is the responsibility of the 
Services, not the Lead Officer, to implement the actions 

 
No. Significant 

governance issue  
Further Action Required Lead Officer Target 

Implementation 
Date  

Status as at December 2012 

1 Continue the positive 
direction of travel by 
implementing the 
planned control 
improvements to 
financial systems. 

The actions to address the financial systems 
weaknesses will be incorporated into the Resources 
Service Improvement Plan.  Progress on these 
improvement plans will be monitored by CMT 
throughout the year. 

Don 
McLure 

Throughout 
2012/ 13 

Positive direction continues. This progress is 
supported by comments from External Audit 
as part of the accounts closure process and 
reported to the Audit Committee. 
 

2 Pay Harmonisation 
and Single Status.   

Work is underway to fully implement the project, and 
resolve outstanding pay harmonisation and single 
status issues, with planned implementation from 
October 2012 subject to the outcome of trade union 
employee ballots.   
 

Kim Jobson December 
2012 

Complete 
 
The three recognised Trade Unions (GMB, 
Unison and Unite) and the Council have now 
all signed the Local Collective Agreement 
which details the revised pay and conditions 
package for the National Joint Council (Green 
Book) employees up to and including spinal 
column point 49 (£41,616). 
 
The agreement’s effective date is 1 October 
2012 
 
Where employees have a reduction in basic 
pay as a result of this agreement, they will 
receive protection of basic contractual pay up 
to 30 September 2014. 
 

3 Implement revised 
Financial 
Management 
Standards 

The revised Financial Management Standards should 
be finalised and implemented as soon as possible on 
the basis that the original implementation date has 
been missed.   
 

Jeff Garfoot December 
2012 

FMS have been drafted and are presently with 
PO12 peer group and Internal Audit for 
comment. It is expected that they will be 
signed off by the end of January 

P
age 27



 

No. Significant 
governance issue  

Further Action Required Lead Officer Target 
Implementation 

Date  

Status as at December 2012 

4 Business Continuity.   Develop a robust ICT architecture with as few 
potential single points of failure as possible and 
replication of key systems 

Phil 
Jackman 

March 2013 Significant amount of work undertaken to 
develop ICT architecture with minimal potential 
single points of failure.  Bid for ICT 
architecture funding to go to Member Officer 
Working Group in February 2013.  

5 Changing 
Government Policy 
on the Ethical 
Framework.   

Now that the Localism Bill has been enacted, we will 
review the ethical framework and implement a new 
compliant, fit for purpose and workable ethical 
structure for the Council, and provide advice and 
guidance to Members, Officers and other key 
stakeholders on the new ethical structure. 

Colette 
Longbottom 

October 2012 Complete.  The council adopted a new code of 
conduct, delegations and assessment 
framework in summer and training was 
presented to members and to parish councils 
in Autumn. 
 

 

P
age 28



 
Audit Committee 
 
21 February 2013 
 
Action Plan 
2011/12 Audit of Accounts - Update 
 

 

 
 

Report of Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources 

 

Purpose of the Report 

1 The purpose of this report is to update Members on the progress on 
implementation of the Action Plan from the agreed recommendations for 
improving control weaknesses incorporated in the External Auditor’s 2011/12 
Interim and Final Governance Reports. 

2 The action plan, which was reported to Members in November, is being used 
by management for monitoring purposes and as agreed at that Committee, 
this report forms part of regular reporting leading to the approval of the 
Statement of Accounts for 2012/13. 

3 The report is presented in accordance with paragraph 4.1.26 of the 
Committee’s Operational Terms of Reference, “to monitor progress made by 
management in response to both internal and external audit findings and 
recommendations”. 

Background 

4 In July, when the Statement of Accounts was reported to the Committee, it 
was agreed that an Action Plan based on the findings of the External Audit’s 
Interim and Annual Governance reports which were presented to the 
Committee in May and September respectively, would be drawn up and 
reported to the Committee. 

5 Responsibility for the actions then agreed have, where appropriate, been 
amended to a more appropriate officer from those recorded in the version 
reported to Committee in September.  

6 The Action Plan has been incorporated into the Resources Performance 
Management Framework.  Progress on the Plan is being monitored by the 
Resources Policy Performance and Planning Manager and this report gives 
an update on progress. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 29



The Action Plan 

7 An updated action plan incorporating progress made to date is included at 
Appendix 2.  

8 All recommendations have a response to the Auditor’s findings and an action 
plan to remedy the weakness identified.  In many cases the weakness has 
now been addressed; these recommendations are marked as complete.   

9 Actions that are complete require evidence to assure the Corporate Director 
Resources and External Audit that the recommendation has been 
implemented.  This has now been identified and made available in most 
cases. 

10 As the remaining recommendations are considered by officers in more detail, 
there will be discussions with External Audit to ensure that the controls and 
procedures, either in place, or to be implemented are in line with the Auditor’s 
expectations.   

11 It is possible however, that not all recommendations will be implemented in 
full.  Any such variations will be agreed with the Corporate Director Resources 
and the reasons discussed with the External Auditor. 

Summary of Progress 

12 The following table shows the progress towards implementing the External 
Audit recommendations from the Interim Governance Report (IGR).  

IGR Total 
number 

of 
Actions 

Actions 
Outstanding 

Actions 
Completed 

Evidence 
provided 

As at 22 November 2012 

Actions from 2010/11 19 9 10 0 

New Actions for 
2011/12 

33 10 23 0 
 

 52 19 33 0 

     

As at 11 February 2013 

Actions from 2010/11 19 6 13 9 

New Actions for 
2011/12 

33 4 29 24 

 52 10 42 31 

 

13 The above table shows that a further 9 of the recommended actions have 
been completed since the November report, and evidence has now been 
provided for 31 of the 42 completed actions. 

Page 30



14 Of the 6 recommendations detailed in the Annual Governance Review (AGR), 
none are due to be complete at the present time.  However, work is on-going 
to put in place procedures to implement the recommendations. 

15 The monitoring of progress will continue through the Resources Performance 
Management Framework. 

Recommendation and reasons 

16 Members are asked to note the updated action plan attached at Appendix 2 
and to gain assurance that control weaknesses identified through the final 
account audit process are being appropriately addressed.    

 

Background papers 

(a) Audit Committee – 22 November 2012 – Action Plan - 2011/12 Audit of 
Accounts 

 

Contact:  Hilary Appleton Tel: 03000 266239  

Page 31



 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 
Finance –   
None 
 
Staffing -  

None 

 

Risk -  

None 

 

Equality and Diversity -  

None 

 

Accommodation -  

None 

 

Crime and Disorder -  

None 

 

Human Rights -  

None 

 

Consultation -  

None 

 

Procurement -  

None 

 

Disability Discrimination Act -  

None 

 

Legal Implications -  

None 

 
 

Page 32



F
in

d
in

g
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
P

ri
o

ri
ty

A
u

d
it

o
r 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

A
c
ti

o
n

s
C

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
:

U
p

d
a
te

:
E

v
id

e
n

c
e

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
: 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
L

e
d

g
e
r 

–
 J

o
u

rn
a
l 

d
o

c
u

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 (
E

x
.6

) 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n
y 

a
ll 

jo
u
rn

a
ls

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 t

h
e
 'i

n
p
u
tt

e
r'
 t

o
 v

ie
w

 t
h
e
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
ts

 a
c
c
u
ra

c
y 

b
e
fo

re
 p

o
s
ti
n
g
.

N
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 j
o
u
rn

a
ls

 w
h
e
n
 s

e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 L

e
d
g
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 f
o
r 

in
p
u
t.

 I
n
s
te

a
d
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 k
e
e
p
 a

ll 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 

It
 i
s
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
t 

c
le

a
r 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 L

e
d
g
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 k
n
o
w

 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

jo
u
rn

a
l 
a
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
.

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 -

 A
L
L
 /

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 A
L
L

H
ig

h
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 j
o
u
rn

a
ls

 b
e
in

g
 i
n
p
u
t 

w
it
h
 n

o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
w

h
a
t 

th
e
 j
o
u
rn

a
l 
is

 f
o
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

in
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 j
o
u
rn

a
ls

 a
re

 i
n
p
u
t 

in
to

 t
h
e
 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r

J
o
u
rn

a
ls

 a
re

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
ts

 w
h
o
 r

e
ta

in
 t

h
e
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 L

e
d
g
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

’s
 r

o
le

 i
s
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

jo
u
rn

a
ls

 a
n
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 j
o
u
rn

a
l 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
rr

e
c
tl
y 

e
n
te

re
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 

s
ys

te
m

. 
 A

c
c
u
ra

c
y 

c
h
e
c
k
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 j
o
u
rn

a
l 
e
n
tr

ie
s
 a

re
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

3
1
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

3
0
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
3

It
 i
s
 n

o
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l 
to

 a
tt

a
c
h
 a

ll 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

o
 

jo
u
rn

a
ls

. 
 I

t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 F

in
a
l 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 t

h
a
t 

w
h
e
re

 i
t 

is
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 a

tt
a
c
h
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
, 

th
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 d

o
n
e
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
: 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
L

e
d

g
e
r:

  
J
o

u
rn

a
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
a
ti

o
n

 (
E

x
.7

) 
 T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
jo

u
rn

a
ls

 b
e
fo

re
 p

o
s
ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 

L
e
d
g
e
r.

A
 j
o
u
rn

a
l 
c
h
o
s
e
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 w

a
lk

th
ro

u
g
h
 h

a
d
 n

o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 i
n
p
u
t 

in
to

 t
h
e
 G

L
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

jo
u
rn

a
l 
e
n
tr

ie
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 

b
y 

a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

p
ri
o
r 

to
 u

p
lo

a
d
. 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 -

 H
ila

ry
 

A
p
p
le

to
n

H
ig

h
W

it
h
o
u
t 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a
t 

e
rr

o
rs

 m
a
y 

n
o
t 

b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 J

o
u
rn

a
l 
b
e
in

g
 i
n
p
u
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

in
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

jo
u
rn

a
ls

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

o
s
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 G

L

T
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
jo

u
rn

a
ls

 w
a
s
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

a
u
d
it
. 

 T
h
e
 

v
o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
jo

u
rn

a
ls

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
d
 b

y 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 w

ill
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

o
f 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

it
 i
s
 d

o
n
e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y.

  
A

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 w

ill
 i
s
s
u
e
 i
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 t

e
a
m

s
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

a
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 j
o
u
rn

a
ls

 p
ri
o
r 

to
 e

n
te

ri
n
g
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.

  
T

h
is

 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

o
f 

a
n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
.

3
1
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3

A
n
 o

n
-l
in

e
 m

e
th

o
d
 o

f 
jo

u
rn

a
l 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
w

a
s
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

t 
F

S
P

 -
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 

o
f 

s
e
n
io

r 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

. 
T

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 

w
a
s
 t

o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 F

in
a
l 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

m
e
th

o
d
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l.
  

T
h
is

 G
ro

u
p
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 p
a
p
e
r-

b
a
s
e
d
 s

ys
te

m
 f

o
r 

jo
u
rn

a
l 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

. 
 T

h
is

 s
ys

te
m

 w
ill

 b
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

jo
u
rn

a
ls

 o
v
e
r 

£
1
m

, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 

fo
r 

jo
u
rn

a
l 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r.

B
ri
e
fi
n
g
 n

o
te

 t
o
 

F
S

P
, 

M
in

u
te

s
 o

f 

F
S

P
 a

n
d
 

m
in

u
te

s
 o

f 
F

in
a
l 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

G
ro

u
p

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 3
: 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
L

e
d

g
e
r:

 D
a
ta

s
e
t 

re
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

s
 (

E
x
.8

) 
 T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
d
a
ta

s
e
t 

u
p
lo

a
d
 f

ile
s
.

IC
O

N
 c

a
s
h
 r

e
c
e
ip

ti
n
g
, 

D
u
rh

a
m

 C
it
y 

H
o
m

e
s
 r

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

a
yr

o
ll 

d
a
ta

s
e
ts

 a
re

 u
p
lo

a
d
e
d
 

in
to

 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 

is
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 a

m
e
n
d
 t

h
e
 d

a
ta

s
e
ts

. 
 A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 o

f 
a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 d

a
ta

s
e
ts

 b
e
fo

re
 p

o
s
ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.

  

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 P

a
yr

o
ll 

a
n
d
 c

a
s
h
 r

e
c
e
ip

ti
n
g
 u

p
lo

a
d
 f

ile
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 D

u
rh

a
m

 r
e
n
ts

 u
p
lo

a
d
 f

ile
 t

o
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 

L
e
d
g
e
r.

 T
h
is

 a
ls

o
 a

ff
e
c
ts

 G
L
 A

IM
 u

p
lo

a
d
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 .

d
a
t 

fo
rm

a
t,

 r
e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

p
o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

fi
le

s
 b

e
fo

re
 u

p
lo

a
d
 i
n
to

 G
e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.

  
  

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n
c
e
  

- 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

/S
e
rv

ic
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 -

 A
L
L

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 a

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

d
a
ta

s
e
ts

 r
e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 u

p
lo

a
d
 o

f 

e
rr

o
rs

 t
o
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r

P
a
rt

ia
lly

 a
 L

e
d
g
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

is
s
u
e
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
 t

o
 f

ile
s
 t

o
 

a
llo

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
. 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 t

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 h

e
a
d
e
rs

, 
fo

o
te

rs
 o

r 
p
e
ri
o
d
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

fi
le

s
 a

re
 ‘
u
n
iq

u
e
’,
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y 

th
a
t 

th
e
y 

h
a
v
e
 u

n
iq

u
e
 ‘
h
e
a
d
e
rs

’ 
s
o
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y 

c
a
n
 b

e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 u

p
lo

a
d
e
d
 i
n
to

 O
ra

c
le

. 
 T

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
ti
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

a
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 m

o
re

 

th
a
n
 o

n
e
 f

ile
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 p
e
r 

d
a
y 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 h

e
a
d
e
r 

w
h
ic

h
 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 

u
p
lo

a
d
 i
n
to

 O
ra

c
le

. 
  

It
 i
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

u
p
lo

a
d
 f

ile
s
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 l
o
c
k
e
d
 t

o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
t.

  
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
ys

te
m

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
s
tl
y 

a
n
d
 

u
n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 a

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

. 
 C

o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 I
C

T
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

it
 i
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 l
o
c
k
 

th
e
 f

ile
(s

) 
w

o
u
ld

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 s

o
u
g
h
t.

  
A

s
 a

ll 
a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
d
 v

ia
 t

h
e
 

c
o
rr

e
c
ti
o
n
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 i
n
 O

ra
c
le

, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 r

e
a
s
o
n
, 

s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 I

T
 b

e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
 t

h
is

, 
th

a
t 

fi
le

s
 m

a
y 

n
o
t 

b
e
 l
o
c
k
e
d
.

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3

T
h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
. 

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

F
in

a
n
c
e
, 

L
e
d
g
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 

IC
T

.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 4
: 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
L

e
d

g
e
r:

 O
p

e
n

in
g

 B
a
la

n
c
e
s
 (

E
x
. 

9
) 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 b

a
la

n
c
e
s
 t

o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

h
a
s
 

b
ro

u
g
h
t 

th
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 f

o
rw

a
rd

.
T

h
e
 O

ra
c
le

 G
e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

a
u
to

m
a
ti
c
a
lly

 c
a
rr

ie
s
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 O
p
e
n
in

g
 b

a
la

n
c
e
s
. 

 O
ff

ic
e
rs

 

a
re

 u
n
a
w

a
re

 o
f 

a
n
y 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 t

o
 c

h
e
c
k
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 b

a
la

n
c
e
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
re

 c
o
rr

e
c
t.

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n
c
e
/F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

S
ys

te
m

s
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 O

ra
c
le

 G
L
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

c
a
rr

y 
fo

rw
a
rd

 t
h
e
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 

b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
ly

, 
a
n
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 d
o
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
is

 a
s
 n

o
 

re
v
ie

w
 t

a
k
e
s
 p

la
c
e
.

O
ra

c
le

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

b
ri
n
g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 b
a
la

n
c
e
s
; 

it
 p

e
rp

e
tu

a
lly

 c
a
lc

u
la

te
s
 b

a
la

n
c
e
s
 o

n
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 s

u
m

 o
f 

th
e
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 b

a
la

n
c
e
s
 w

e
re

 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 

b
y 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
ft

e
r 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 m
a
d
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 l
e
d
g
e
r 

m
a
tc

h
e
d
 t

h
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 
 

3
0
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

T
h
e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
s
 i
n
 O

ra
c
le

 G
e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 c

h
e
c
k
e
d
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 a

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 

m
a
d
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
re

 

s
ti
ll 

to
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 b

y 
2
8
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
3
.

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 h

e
ld

 

o
n
 f

ile
 i
n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

F
in

a
n
c
e
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 5
: 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
L

e
d

g
e
r:

 T
ri

a
l 

B
a
la

n
c
e
 (

E
x
.1

0
) 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
tr

ia
l 
b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 m

a
jo

r 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
.

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

g
u
la

r 
tr

ia
l 
b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

ta
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 

T
ri
a
l 
b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 

a
re

 i
n
s
te

a
d
 o

n
ly

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 -

 I
a
n
 

H
e
rb

e
rs

o
n

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
n
 i
m

b
a
la

n
c
e
 o

c
c
u
rs

 t
h
a
t 

is
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

e
fo

re
 

th
e
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
. 

T
ri
a
l 
b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e
ly

 t
e
s
te

d
 a

t 
ye

a
r 

e
n
d
.

A
g
re

e
d
. 

T
ri
a
l 
b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 w

e
e
k
ly

, 
d
a
ily

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 p
e
ri
o
d
. 

A
 t

ri
a
l 
b
a
la

n
c
e
 w

a
s
 r

u
n
 o

n
 9

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
, 

a
h
e
a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 p
e
ri
o
d
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 i
n
 b

a
la

n
c
e
. 

 D
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r,

 t
ri
a
l 
b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

ru
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 s

ys
te

m
 i
s
 i
n
 b

a
la

n
c
e
. 

 O
n
 a

 m
o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

, 
th

e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 

a
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 D

is
c
o
v
e
re

r 
R

e
p
o
rt

s
. 

D
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r,

 t
ri
a
l 
b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

b
e
 r

u
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 s

ys
te

m
 i
s
 i
n
 b

a
la

n
c
e
. 

 O
n
 a

 m
o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

, 
th

e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 

b
e
 a

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 D

is
c
o
v
e
re

r 
R

e
p
o
rt

s
. 

C
o

m
p

le
te

T
ri
a
l 
b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 a

re
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 m

o
n
th

ly
 a

n
d
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 u

p
 t

o
 3

1
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
3
. 

 T
h
is

 s
ys

te
m

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

s
in

c
e
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
.

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 h

e
ld

 

o
n
 f

ile
 i
n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

F
in

a
n
c
e
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 6
: 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
L

e
d

g
e
r:

 E
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 a

u
th

o
ri

s
a
ti

o
n

 (
E

x
. 

1
1
) 

 T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 a

 s
ys

te
m

 o
f 

a
p
p
ro

v
in

g
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 u

s
in

g
 e

m
a
ils

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 

re
q
u
ir
e
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 e

m
a
il 

th
e
 p

re
p
a
re

r 
to

 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
.

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 m

o
n
th

ly
 D

ri
v
e
 t

o
 O

ra
c
le

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

A
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 o
ff

ic
e
r 

th
e
n
 

re
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 a
u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 

m
a
k
e
s
 i
s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 v

e
ri
fy

 t
h
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
. 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 -

 I
a
n
 

H
e
rb

e
rs

o
n

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

ta
k
e
 p

la
c
e
.

T
h
e
 w

e
e
k
ly

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

ile
s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 A

IM
 i
n
te

rf
a
c
e
 f

ro
m

 

th
e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 A

g
re

s
s
o
 s

ys
te

m
s
 t

o
 O

ra
c
le

 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

o
c
c
u
rs

. 
 A

s
 t

h
e
 

A
g
re

s
s
o
 s

ys
te

m
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
, 

th
is

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

.

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
N

o
 l

o
n

g
e
r 

a
p

p
li

c
a
b

le

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 7
: 

P
a
y
ro

ll
: 

N
o

 a
u

th
o

ri
s
e
d

 s
ig

n
a
to

ri
e
s
 l

is
t 

(E
x
.1

4
) 

 E
it
h
e
r 

th
e
 

P
a
yr

o
ll 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

r 
th

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 s
h
o
u
ld

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 a

n
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 s

ig
n
a
to

ri
e
s
 

lis
t,

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
fr

a
u
d
u
le

n
t 

ti
m

e
 s

h
e
e
ts

N
e
it
h
e
r 

th
e
 P

a
yr

o
ll 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 n

o
r 

th
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 k
e
e
p
 a

n
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 

s
ig

n
a
to

ri
e
s
 l
is

t.
 I

t 
is

 n
o
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 a
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

h
a
s
 s

ig
n
e
d
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
u
a
l 

ti
m

e
 s

h
e
e
ts

. 
 

H
R

 -
 P

a
yr

o
ll 

a
n
d
 P

e
n
s
io

n
s
 -

 

N
ic

k
 O

rt
o
n

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
in

a
c
c
u
ra

te
 o

r 
fr

a
u
d
u
le

n
t 

c
la

im
s
 

w
it
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
r

C
re

a
ti
n
g
, 

m
a
in

ta
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 u

s
in

g
 a

n
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 s

ig
n
a
to

ri
e
s
 l
is

t 
w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t,

 l
a
b
o
u
r 

in
te

n
s
iv

e
 p

a
p
e
r 

b
a
s
e
d
 t

a
s
k
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 d

o
u
b
tf

u
l 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

. 
A

 m
o
re

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
fi
rm

in
g
 t

h
e
 v

a
lid

it
y 

o
f 

c
la

im
s
 i
s
 t

o
 m

o
v
e
 

w
h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
. 

T
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 

s
u
b
m

it
ti
n
g
/a

u
th

o
ri
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

la
im

s
 i
s
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
ir
 l
o
g
g
in

g
 o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

s
ys

te
m

. 
O

n
lin

e
 m

ile
a
g
e
 c

la
im

s
 a

re
 a

lr
e
a
d
y 

b
e
in

g
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 

T
h
e
 p

a
yr

o
ll 

s
ys

te
m

 a
llo

w
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
h
o
u
rs

 w
o
rk

e
d
. 

S
o
m

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 

o
n
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

to
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
is

 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
lit

y 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 b

y 
3
0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

1
2
. 

  
  

  
 

3
0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4

In
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
L
in

k
 

is
 n

o
w

 g
o
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

s
 v

ia
 a

 f
o
rm

a
l 
p
ro

je
c
t 

p
la

n
 (

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

In
it
ia

ti
o
n
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
t)

 –
 

a
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 o

n
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

o
r 

n
o
t 

to
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 o

n
lin

e
 t

im
e
s
h
e
e
t 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
L
in

k
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t 

a
n
d
 (

if
 a

g
re

e
d
) 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

a
rl
ie

s
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

‘p
h
a
s
e
 2

’ 

 (
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 t

o
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
) 

u
n
d
e
r 

‘E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

&
 E

m
p
lo

ye
e
s
 S

e
lf
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
’.

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

P
ro

v
id

e
d

A
t 

p
re

s
e
n
t,

 a
 c

h
e
c
k
 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

to
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
a
t 

ti
m

e
s
h
e
e
ts

 a
n
d
 c

la
im

s
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 s

ig
n
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 m

o
d
u
le

 f
o
r 

re
c
o
rd

in
g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
h
o
u
rs

 o
n
 a

 

s
e
lf
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 b

a
s
is

, 
s
im

ila
r 

to
 t

h
e
 M

yV
ie

w
 s

ys
te

m
, 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
a
b
le

 t
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 a

t 
th

is
 t

im
e
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 t

ru
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 /

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 s

u
c
h
 a

 s
ys

te
m

. 
A

 R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
lin

k
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 i
s
 

in
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
b
e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
t 

is
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

s
 

a
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
ys

te
m

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 A
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 h
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
lin

k
 

s
ys

te
m

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 p

ro
je

c
t 

b
o
a
rd

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 8
: 

P
a
y
ro

ll
: 

B
A

C
S

 p
a
y
 r

u
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
s
a
ti

o
n

 (
E

x
.1

5
) 

 T
h
e
 P

a
yr

o
ll 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 a
 T

e
a
m

 S
u
p
e
rv

is
o
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
s
 a

ll 
B

A
C

S
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 f

ile
s

A
ft

e
r 

c
re

a
ti
n
g
 a

 B
A

C
S

 s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 f

ile
 t

h
e
 T

e
a
m

 S
u
p
e
rv

is
o
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
s
 a

 h
a
rd

 c
o
p
y 

o
f 

th
e
 f

ile
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 n
o
 T

e
a
m

 S
u
p
e
rv

is
o
r 

h
a
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 B

A
C

S
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 f

ile
 t

e
s
te

d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 a

u
d
it
.

H
R

 -
 P

a
yr

o
ll 

a
n
d
 P

e
n
s
io

n
s
 -

 

N
ic

k
 O

rt
o
n

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

n
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 B

A
C

S
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 f

ile
 t

o
o
k
 

p
la

c
e
. 

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
in

a
c
c
u
ra

te
 p

a
ym

e
n
ts

.

A
ll 

B
A

C
S

 s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 f

ile
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 b

y 
a
 T

e
a
m

 S
u
p
e
rv

is
o
r.

C
o

m
p

le
te

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 -

 F
ile

 

in
 R

e
le

v
a
n
t 

O
ff

ic
e
 i
f 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 9
: 

P
a
y
ro

ll
: 

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 R
e
d

u
n

d
a
n

c
y
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
n

o
t 

s
ig

n
e
d

 a
n

d
 

re
tu

rn
e
d

 b
y
 l

e
a
v
e
r 

(E
x
. 

1
8
) 

  
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e
s
 l
e
a
v
in

g
 h

a
v
e
 

re
tu

rn
e
d
 s

ig
n
e
d
 c

o
p
ie

s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

.

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
	



��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
 
!
�"
 
!
��
#�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�$
�
%�
�
&
&
�
�
�
�#
�
�'
()
�(
�"
 
!

�
��
*�
�

Page 33



F
in

d
in

g
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
P

ri
o

ri
ty

A
u

d
it

o
r 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

A
c
ti

o
n

s
C

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
:

U
p

d
a
te

:
E

v
id

e
n

c
e

T
h
e
 l
e
a
v
e
r 

te
s
te

d
 h

a
d
 n

o
t 

s
ig

n
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 r

e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t,

 

s
e
n
t 

b
y 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 O
ff

ic
e
rs

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t

h
e
 e

m
p
lo

ye
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d
 a

 s
ig

n
e
d
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
re

d
u
n
d
a
n
c
ie

s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

ye
a
r 

th
e
y 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 c

h
e
c
k
 t

h
e
 r

e
tu

rn
 o

f 
a
ll 

re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

. 

H
R

 -
 L

o
rr

a
in

e
 A

n
d
e
rs

o
n

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
c
o
rr

e
c
tl
y 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
ie

s
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 

re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y.

F
ro

m
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
2
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 f

ro
m

 o
n
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
p
o
in

t 
(T

h
e
 n

e
w

 

H
R

 S
e
rv

ic
e
) 

a
n
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 r
e
g
a
rd

 a
u
d
it
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 c

h
e
c
k
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

c
a
s
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
ig

n
a
tu

re
s
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

to
 c

a
s
e
s
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 -

 F
ile

 

in
 R

e
le

v
a
n
t 

O
ff

ic
e
 i
f 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
0
: 

P
a
y
ro

ll
: 

R
e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
a
y
ro

ll
 u

p
lo

a
d

 f
il

e
s
 t

o
 G

L
 (

E
x
.1

9
) 

 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
s
 a

ll 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

re
tr

o
s
p
e
c
t.

T
h
e
 L

e
d
g
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 c
o
m

p
le

te
s
 a

 m
o
n
th

ly
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 

P
a
yr

o
ll 

u
p
lo

a
d
 f

ile
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

re
v
ie

w
 

a
n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 -

 B
e
v
e
rl
e
y 

W
h
it
e

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
 a

n
d
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 n

o
 

re
v
ie

w
 t

a
k
e
s
 p

la
c
e
 t

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

L
e
d
g
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

 w
ill

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 B

e
v
e
rl
e
y 

W
h
it
e
 g

o
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 
 T

h
e
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 b

y 
J
o
a
n
n
e
 W

a
ts

o
n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 L

e
d
g
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r’
s
 l
in

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r.

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
2
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

2
8
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
3

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

.e
.f

. 

0
1
.0

4
.1

2
. 

 A
u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 b

y 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

to
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
3
 &

 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 f

ile
 -

 p
a
p
e
r 

c
o
p
ie

s
.

N
/A

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
1
: 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a
b

le
: 

P
a
y
ru

n
 a

u
th

o
ri

s
a
ti

o
n

 (
E

x
.3

) 
 T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 a

n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
p
a
y 

s
h
e
e
ts

 a
n
d
 B

A
C

S
 f

ile
s
. 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 P
a
ya

b
le

 T
e
a
m

 L
e
a
d
e
rs

 p
re

p
a
re

 d
a
ily

 p
a
y 

ru
n
 s

h
e
e
ts

 i
n
 O

ra
c
le

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
y 

ru
n
 b

y 
a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
e
 p

a
y 

s
h
e
e
t 

is
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 K
 C

o
a
d
 /

 

C
h
ri
s
 J

o
n
e
s

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
a
ys

 i
n
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s
, 

a
n
d
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
n
o
 f

o
rm

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 t

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

h
a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 n

o
m

in
a
te

d
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

P
a
y 

S
h
e
e
ts

 a
n
d
 B

A
C

S
 f

ile
s
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y 

a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

w
it
h
in

 A
P

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
e
 p

a
y 

s
h
e
e
t 

is
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 t

re
n
d
s
.

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

P
ro

v
id

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
2
: 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a
b

le
: 

A
u

th
o

ri
s
e
d

 S
ig

n
a
to

ri
e
s
 L

is
t 

(E
x
.5

0
) 

 

T
h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 P
a
ya

b
le

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 a

n
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 s

ig
n
a
to

ri
e
s
 l
is

t.
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 

c
o
u
ld

 l
im

it
 t

h
e
 l
is

ts
 s

iz
e
 b

y 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 c

e
rt

if
y 

n
o
n
-p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 o

rd
e
r 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
 w

it
h
in

 e
a
c
h
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t.

T
h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 P
a
ya

b
le

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 d

o
 n

o
t 

k
e
e
p
 a

n
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 s

ig
n
a
to

ri
e
s
 l
is

t.
 A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 

th
e
y 

a
re

 u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 g

a
in

 a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

o
n
ly

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 c
e
rt

if
y 

n
o
n
-p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 

o
rd

e
r 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

p
a
ym

e
n
t.

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 K
 C

o
a
d
 /

 

C
h
ri
s
 J

o
n
e
s

M
e
d
iu

m
 

T
h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
in

v
o
ic

e
s
 b

y 
u
n
a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 p

a
ym

e
n
t 

o
f 

in
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

ig
n
a
to

ry
 l
is

t 
is

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
T

h
is

 l
is

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 i
f 

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

 d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
.

3
0
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

a
n
d
 o

n
-g

o
in

g

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
3
: 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a
b

le
: 

N
o

n
-P

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 O

rd
e
r 

in
v
o

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

(E
x
.5

1
) 

 A
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

s
h
o
u
ld

 r
e
v
ie

w
 a

ll 
n
o
n
-p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 o

rd
e
r 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
 a

ft
e
r 

e
n
tr

y 
in

to
 t

h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 P
a
ya

b
le

 s
ys

te
m

. 
T

h
is

 o
ff

ic
e
r 

s
h
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
n
 v

a
lid

a
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
 

fo
r 

p
a
ym

e
n
t.

 T
h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 h
e
lp

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 e
rr

o
rs

 o
r 

in
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s
.

A
ft

e
r 

th
e
 m

a
n
u
a
l 
e
n
tr

y 
o
f 

n
o
n
-p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 o

rd
e
r 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 P
a
ya

b
le

 

s
ys

te
m

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 b

y 
a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 d

e
ta

ils
 e

n
te

re
d
 a

re
 

c
o
rr

e
c
t.

  
 I

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

w
h
o
 e

n
te

re
d
 t

h
e
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
 d

e
ta

ils
 a

ls
o
 m

a
n
u
a
lly

 

v
a
lid

a
te

s
 t

h
e
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 P
a
ya

b
le

 s
ys

te
m

, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
s
 t

h
e
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
 f

o
r 

p
a
ym

e
n
t.

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 K
 C

o
a
d
 /

 

C
h
ri
s
 J

o
n
e
s

H
ig

h
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
d
in

g
 o

r 
p
a
ym

e
n
t 

e
rr

o
rs

 o
c
c
u
r 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t

h
e
re

 

is
 n

o
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 e

n
te

re
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 P
a
ya

b
le

 S
ys

te
m

. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
 o

f 

in
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

p
a
ym

e
n
t 

is
 a

ls
o
 a

 r
is

k
, 

a
s
 t

h
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

e
n
te

ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
 d

e
ta

ils
 h

a
s
 t

h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 v

a
lid

a
te

 t
h
e
 

in
v
o
ic

e
 f

o
r 

p
a
ym

e
n
t,

 w
it
h
o
u
t 

re
v
ie

w
 f

ro
m

 a
n
o
th

e
r 

o
ff

ic
e
r.

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

P
2
P

 r
e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a
s
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 t

h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

v
o
ic

e
s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 t

h
is

 w
a
y,

 f
ro

m
 5

0
%

 t
o
 1

0
%

. 
O

n
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 

th
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 (

J
a
n
 2

0
1
3
) 

a
 f

u
ll 

q
u
a
lit

y 
c
h
e
c
k
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

3
1
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
3

A
w

a
it
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

P
2
P

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
4
: 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a
b

le
 a

n
d

 R
e
c
e
iv

a
b

le
: 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 

R
e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

s
 (

E
x
.5

) 
 T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 t

im
e
ly

 r
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

a
ll 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 b

y 
a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r.

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 P
a
ya

b
le

 a
n
d
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 R
e
c
e
iv

a
b
le

 c
o
n
tr

o
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 t

h
e
 o

n
ly

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 b

y 
a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

w
e
re

 t
h
e
 A

u
g
u
s
t,

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 -

 I
a
n
 

H
e
rb

e
rs

o
n

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 e

rr
o
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 n

o
 

re
v
ie

w
 t

a
k
e
s
 p

la
c
e
.

T
h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

a
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 A

G
R

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
. 

 T
h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 

is
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
S

ys
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n
c
e
. 

 T
h
e
 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
w

 d
o
n
e
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r/
m

o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

. 
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 h

e
ld

 

o
n
 f

ile
 i
n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

F
in

a
n
c
e
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
5
: 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
R

e
c
e
iv

a
b

le
: 

P
e
ri

o
d

ic
 I
n

v
o

ic
e
s
 (

E
x
.1

2
) 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 t

im
e
ly

 r
a
is

in
g
 o

f 
a
ll 

p
e
ri
o
d
ic

 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s
.

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
ic

 i
n
v
o
ic

in
g
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 R
e
c
e
iv

a
b
le

 t
e
a
m

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 e
x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 l
it
tl
e
 h

a
n
d
o
v
e
r 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 r

a
is

in
g
 p

e
ri
o
d
ic

 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s
. 

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 a
re

 o
n
ly

 r
a
is

in
g
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
 o

n
 a

 p
ie

c
e
m

e
a
l 
b
a
s
is

 a
s
 t

h
e
y 

o
n
ly

 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

A
g
re

s
s
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

 h
a
s
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 t
h
a
t 

is
s
u
in

g
 o

f 
b
ill

s
 t

o
 

s
o
m

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

ta
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

s
e
v
e
ra

l 
ye

a
rs

. 
 

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 -
 

G
e
ra

rd
 D

a
rb

y

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
lle

c
te

d
 a

ll 
p
e
ri
o
d
ic

a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
.

A
n
 a

s
s
e
ts

 B
ill

in
g
 w

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 

u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o

n
 a

 m
o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

. 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

P
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
  

a
n
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
 c

la
s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 

b
e
in

g
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
d
 a

n
d
 t

im
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
s
/ 

b
iil

iin
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

a
s
c
e
rt

a
in

e
d
/.

 G
a
ra

g
e
 r

e
n
t 

a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

o
n
 s

ys
te

m
 w

it
h
 I

n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
u
n
it
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

n
g
o
in

g
.

3
1
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
3

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
6
: 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 R

e
c
e
iv

a
b

le
: 

N
o

 r
e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

 b
e
tw

e
e
n

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

(S
IM

S
) 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 a

n
d

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 R

e
c
e
iv

a
b

le
 S

y
s
te

m
 (

E
x
.1

3
).

  
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 a

 f
o
rm

a
l 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
 s

ys
te

m
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 u

p
lo

a
d
 o

f 

a
ll 

re
c
e
ip

ts
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 S

IM
S

 s
ys

te
m

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 R
e
c
e
iv

a
b
le

 s
ys

te
m

.

N
o
 f

o
rm

a
l 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 R
e
c
e
iv

a
b
le

 s
ys

te
m

 a
n
d
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 (
S

IM
S

) 

s
ys

te
m

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

In
s
te

a
d
, 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 r
e
ly

 o
n
 a

n
 e

rr
o
r 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
 f

ro
m

 O
ra

c
le

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 

a
n
y 

re
c
e
ip

ts
 n

o
t 

c
o
rr

e
c
tl
y 

u
p
lo

a
d
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 u

p
lo

a
d
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 I
a
n
 

M
o
rd

u
e
 

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 R
e
c
e
iv

a
b
le

 s
ys

te
m

 m
a
y 

n
o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
 a

ll 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 (
S

IM
S

) 
s
ys

te
m

.

T
h
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 i
n
p
u
t 

in
to

 S
IM

S
 m

a
n
u
a
lly

 v
ia

 R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 A

d
v
ic

e
 f

o
rm

s
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
h
e
 I

n
c
o
m

e
 t

e
a
m

 m
a
tc

h
/r

e
c
o
n
c
ile

 a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
b
a
n
k
in

g
s
, 

i.
e
. 

b
a
n
k
 r

e
c
e
ip

ts
 t

o
 

S
IM

S
. 

 C
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 b

y 
a
n
 O

ra
c
le

 w
e
e
k
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

 s
h
o
w

in
g
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 i
te

m
s
. 

Q
u
a
lit

y 

c
h
e
c
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 t

e
a
m

 r
u
n
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
O

ra
c
le

 r
e
p
o
rt

s
  

a
n
d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
. 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
  

w
ill

 b
e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y 

th
e
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 F
u
n
d
in

g
 t

e
a
m

. 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

P
o
s
s
ib

le
 c

la
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 w

it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

rr
o
r 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
 w

it
h
in

 O
ra

c
le

 A
R

. 

D
e
b
to

rs
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s
 n

o
t 

ra
is

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 O
ra

c
le

C
o

m
p

le
te

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 d
o
 n

o
t 
ra

is
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

a
b

le
 v

ia
 S

IM
S

 

th
e
re

 i
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
 u

p
lo

a
d
 f

ro
m

 S
IM

S
 b

a
tc

h
e
s
 i
n
 

to
 O

ra
c
le

. 
T

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
e
m

s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ly

 

th
a
t 
th

e
 s

ys
te

m
 f

o
r 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
 p

a
ya

b
le

 e
x
is

ts
 f

o
r 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

a
b

le
 –

 t
h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 
th

e
 c

a
s
e
. 
2
. 
A

ll 

in
c
o
m

e
 b

a
n
k
e
d
 b

y 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
s
 e

n
te

re
d
 o

n
 a

n
 

e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 E
6
 (

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 A

d
v
ic

e
 F

o
rm

) 
s
ys

te
m

. 
T

h
is

 

s
ys

te
m

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 f

o
r 

m
a
n
y 

ye
a
rs

 

e
n
a
b

le
s
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

a
n
k
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
to

 b
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 O

ra
c
le

 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
 p

a
p

e
r 

c
o
p

y 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 A

d
v
ic

e
 f

o
rm

 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 

s
e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 T

e
a
m

. 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 t
h
e
n
 

m
a
tc

h
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 F
u
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 w

a
y 

a
s
 a

n
y 

o
th

e
r 

 

C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t.
 I
f 

th
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
fa

ile
d
 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

 R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 A

d
v
ic

e
 F

o
rm

 f
o
r 

in
c
o
m

e
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b

a
n
k
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
r 

th
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

d
if
fe

re
d
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 f

o
llo

w
e
d
 u

p
 b

y 
th

e
 

In
c
o
m

e
 T

e
a
m

. 
3
. 
N

o
t 
a
ll 

in
c
o
m

e
 b

a
n
k
e
d
 b

y 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
b

u
d
g

e
t,
 m

o
s
t 
o
f 

it
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
 (

u
n
le

s
s
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h
e
ir

 o
w

n
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

) 
th

e
re

fo
re

 o
n
ly

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 r

e
la

ti
n
g

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o

N
/A

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
7
: 

L
o

a
n

s
 a

n
d

 I
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

ts
: 

M
o

n
th

ly
 r

e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

 n
o

t 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
e
d

 (
E

x
.1

7
).

  
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 a

n
d
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
	



��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
 
!
�"
 
!
��
#�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�$
�
%�
�
&
&
�
�
�
�#
�
�'
()
�(
�"
 
!

�
��
*�
�

Page 34



F
in

d
in

g
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
P

ri
o

ri
ty

A
u

d
it

o
r 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

A
c
ti

o
n

s
C

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
:

U
p

d
a
te

:
E

v
id

e
n

c
e

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 L

o
a
n
s
 -

 O
ff

ic
e
rs

 p
e
rf

o
rm

 a
 m

o
n
th

ly
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 I

n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 S

c
h
e
d
u
le

, 
w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
a
ll 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 

L
e
d
g
e
r 

a
n
d
 o

f 
a
ll 

P
W

L
B

 i
n
te

re
s
t 

a
n
d
 p

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
p
a
ym

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

to
 t

h
e
 

P
W

L
B

 L
o
a
n
 S

c
h
e
d
u
le

. 

In
 b

o
th

 c
a
s
e
s
, 

a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
. 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 -

 I
a
n
 

H
e
rb

e
rs

o
n

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
 a

n
d
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 n

o
 

re
v
ie

w
 t

a
k
e
s
 p

la
c
e
 t

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 U

n
it
is

a
ti
o
n
, 

a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

h
a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 a

s
s
ig

n
e
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

th
is

 r
e
v
ie

w
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

M
o
n
th

ly
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 f

o
r 

b
o
th

 

p
ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

b
a
la

n
c
e
d
 t

o
 b

o
th

 c
o
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

s
 a

n
d
 O

ra
c
le

 G
L
 

in
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

lo
a
n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

. 
 A

ll 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 t

o
 

3
1
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
3
.

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 i
s
 h

e
ld

 

in
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

F
in

a
n
c
e
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
8
: 

O
ra

c
le

 P
ro

je
c
ts

: 
N

o
 a

u
th

o
ri

s
e
d

 s
ig

n
a
to

ri
e
s
 l

is
t 

(E
x
.5

4
).

  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 c
o
m

p
ile

 a
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 s

ig
n
a
to

ri
e
s
 l
is

t 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll 

e
x
tr

a
c
ti
o
n
 f

o
rm

s
 a

n
d
 t

im
e
 s

h
e
e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 a
p
p
ro

v
a
l.

N
o
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 s

ig
n
a
to

ri
e
s
 l
is

t 
is

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

t 
th

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
t 

s
it
e
. 

T
h
is

 a
ff

e
c
ts

 b
o
th

 

e
x
tr

a
c
ti
o
n
 f

o
rm

s
, 

u
s
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

g
o
o
d
s
, 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
u
a
l 
ti
m

e
 s

h
e
e
ts

. 
S

it
e
 

F
o
re

m
e
n
 s

ig
n
 b

o
th

 t
o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e
ir
 a

c
c
u
ra

c
y.

  
It

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 

a
n
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

h
e
 e

x
tr

a
c
ti
o
n
 f

o
rm

 a
n
d
 t

im
e
 s

h
e
e
t 

te
s
te

d
 a

s
 n

o
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 

s
ig

n
a
to

ri
e
s
 l
is

t 
is

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
n
 i
n
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
a
p
p
ro

v
e
s
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 

e
x
tr

a
c
ti
o
n
 f

o
rm

s
 a

n
d
 t

im
e
 s

h
e
e
ts

, 
re

s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
 o

f 

in
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
.

A
ll 

g
o
o
d
s
 a

re
 o

rd
e
re

d
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

a
lly

 u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 O

ra
c
le

 s
ys

te
m

 b
y 

th
e
 n

e
w

ly
 c

re
a
te

d
 

M
a
te

ri
a
ls

 C
o
n
tr

o
lle

rs
 p

o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
q
u
is

ti
o
n
e
r 

is
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

t 
th

a
t 

s
ta

g
e
. 

 G
o
o
d
s
 

a
re

 'r
e
c
e
ip

te
d
' b

y 
th

e
 M

a
te

ri
a
ls

 C
o
n
tr

o
lle

r 
o
n
c
e
 t

h
e
y 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 

  
T

h
e
y 

u
s
e
 t

h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 n
o
te

 a
s
 p

ro
o
f 

o
r 

c
o
n
fi
rm

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
q
u
is

ti
o
n
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 F

o
re

m
a
n
 /

 

S
u
p
e
rv

is
o
r 

th
a
t 

th
e
 g

o
o
d
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
R

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
9
: 

O
ra

c
le

 P
ro

je
c
ts

: 
L

a
c
k
 o

f 
e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 o

f 
s
u

rv
e
y
o

r 
v
is

it
 o

r 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
a
ti

o
n

 (
E

x
.5

5
) 

  
S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

O
ra

c
le

 P
ro

je
c
ts

 o
r 

a
 h

a
rd

 

c
o
p
y 

fi
le

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 a
ll 

w
o
rk

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y 
th

e
 S

u
rv

e
yo

r.

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 c
la

im
e
d
 S

u
rv

e
yo

rs
 r

e
-m

e
a
s
u
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
t 

jo
b
s
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
c
tu

a
l 
c
h
a
rg

e
s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
. 

A
s
 t

h
e
 j
o
b
 f

ile
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
ta

in
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 S

u
rv

e
yo

rs
 v

is
it
. 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
rv

e
yo

rs
 a

p
p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 j
o
b
 i
s
 

a
ls

o
 l
im

it
e
d
.

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

M
e
d
iu

m
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 c
la

im
e
d
 S

u
rv

e
yo

rs
 r

e
-m

e
a
s
u
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
t 

jo
b
s
 t

o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
c
tu

a
l 
c
h
a
rg

e
s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
. 

A
s
 t

h
e
 j
o
b
 f

ile
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
ta

in
 d

e
ta

ils
 

o
f 

th
e
 S

u
rv

e
yo

rs
 v

is
it
. 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
rv

e
yo

rs
 a

p
p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 

jo
b
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 l
im

it
e
d
.

O
n
c
e
 a

 j
o
b
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
t 

is
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 c

lie
n
ts

 a
g
e
n
t 

(B
u
ild

in
g
s
 S

u
rv

e
yo

r 
/ 

A
rc

h
it
e
c
t)

 w
h
o
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

 P
ra

c
ti
c
a
l 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 w
it
h
 o

r 
w

it
h
o
u
t 

a
 

s
n
a
g
g
in

g
 l
is

t 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 m

in
o
r 

it
e
m

s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 s
ti
ll 

to
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
ft

e
r 

th
e
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
 d

e
fe

c
ts

 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 p

e
ri
o
d
 c

o
m

e
s
 t

o
 a

n
 e

n
d
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 

is
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y 

th
e
 c

lie
n
t’
s
 a

g
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 D

ir
e
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

n
y 

re
m

e
d
ia

l 
w

o
rk

s
 

a
re

 t
h
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 

 O
n
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 d

e
fe

c
ts

 a
 'M

a
k
in

g
 G

o
o
d
 /

 F
in

a
l 

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
te

' i
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 c

lie
n
ts

 a
g
e
n
t.

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

T
h
is

 s
ys

te
m

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y 

re
in

fo
rc

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 u

p
o
n
 b

y 

B
 &

 F
M

's
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 P

la
n
n
e
r 

a
n
d
 w

e
 a

re
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

th
a
t 

a
ll 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 f
o
llo

w
 

th
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

h
ic

h
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 a

ll 
jo

b
s
 a

re
 's

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
' a

n
d
 w

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

.

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
R

e
q
u
ir
e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
0
: 

R
e
p

a
ir

s
 a

n
d

 M
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
: 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 n
o

te
 f

il
in

g
 (

E
x
.2

0
) 

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 f
ili

n
g
 o

f 
a
ll 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 n
o
te

s
 i
n
 d

a
te

 o
r 

s
u
p
p
lie

r 
o
rd

e
r.

 

 N
o
 f

o
rm

a
l 
fi
lin

g
 s

ys
te

m
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 n
o
te

s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 M

a
te

ri
a
ls

 

C
o
n
tr

o
lle

r.
 A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
t 

w
a
s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 f

in
d
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 n
o
te

s

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

L
o
w

T
h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

S
it
e
 F

o
re

m
e
n
 d

o
 n

o
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e
 M

a
te

ri
a
ls

 

C
o
n
tr

o
lle

rs
 w

it
h
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 n
o
te

s
. 

In
s
te

a
d
, 

th
e
 M

a
te

ri
a
l 
C

o
n
tr

o
lle

r 

s
im

p
ly

 r
e
c
e
ip

ts
 t

h
e
 g

o
o
d
s
 i
n
 O

ra
c
le

 w
h
e
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
, 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
e
 p

ro
m

p
t 

p
a
ym

e
n
t 

o
f 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
. 

T
h
is

 m
a
y 

th
e
re

fo
re

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 

in
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 p

a
ym

e
n
t 

o
f 

g
o
o
d
s
.

A
g
re

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

s
 s

o
o
n
 a

s
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le

3
0
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
1
: 

R
e
p

a
ir

s
 a

n
d

 M
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
: 

N
o

 a
u

th
o

ri
s
e
d

 s
ig

n
a
to

ri
e
s
 l

is
t 

(E
x
.2

1
) 

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 c
o
m

p
ile

 a
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 s

ig
n
a
to

ri
e
s
 l
is

t 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll 

ti
m

e
 s

h
e
e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 a
p
p
ro

v
a
l.
 

 N
o
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 s

ig
n
a
to

ri
e
s
 l
is

t 
is

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

t 
th

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
t 

s
it
e
. 

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 

s
ig

n
 m

a
n
u
a
l 
ti
m

e
 s

h
e
e
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y 
e
m

p
lo

ye
e
s
 t

o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e
ir
 a

c
c
u
ra

c
y.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 

a
s
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 s

ig
n
a
to

ri
e
s
 l
is

t 
it
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

s
ig

n
in

g
 t

h
e
 e

x
tr

a
c
ti
o
n
 f

o
rm

 a
n
d
 t

im
e
 s

h
e
e
t 

w
a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 t

o
 d

o
 s

o
.

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
n
 i
n
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
a
p
p
ro

v
e
s
 t

im
e
 

s
h
e
e
ts

, 
re

s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
 o

f 
in

a
c
c
u
ra

te
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
.

A
g
re

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

s
 s

o
o
n
 a

s
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
R

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
2
: 

R
e
p

a
ir

s
 a

n
d

 M
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
: 

R
e
c
e
ip

ti
n

g
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 i
n

 

O
ra

c
le

 (
E

x
.2

2
) 

 A
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

s
h
o
u
ld

 r
e
v
ie

w
 r

e
c
e
ip

ts
 e

n
te

re
d
 i
n
to

 O
ra

c
le

 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 e

n
te

re
d
 i
s
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
, 

b
e
fo

re
 O

ra
c
le

 r
e
c
o
g
n
is

e
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
e
ip

ts
. 

 

T
h
e
 r

e
c
e
ip

ti
n
g
 o

f 
g
o
o
d
s
 i
n
 O

ra
c
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
 t

e
s
te

d
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

c
o
rr

e
c
tl
y.

 T
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 t

h
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

re
c
e
ip

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 g

o
o
d
s
 w

ro
n
g
ly

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
e
 p

ri
c
e
 

(£
1
2
.9

8
) 

in
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
n
ti
ty

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 c

o
lu

m
n
; 

w
h
ile

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
n
ti
ty

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 (

1
) 

in
 t

h
e
 

p
ri
c
e
 c

o
lu

m
n
. 

O
ra

c
le

 u
p
d
a
te

s
 a

n
y 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

a
lr
e
a
d
y 

in
 t

h
e
 s

ys
te

m
, 

th
ro

u
g
h
 m

u
lt
ip

ly
in

g
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
n
ti
ty

 

b
y 

th
e
 u

n
it
 p

ri
c
e
. 

T
h
is

 i
n
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 t

re
a
tm

e
n
t 

h
a
d
 n

o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t;

 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 s
ta

te
d
 t

h
a
t 

la
rg

e
 e

rr
o
rs

 h
a
v
e
 o

c
c
u
rr

e
d
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 

re
c
e
ip

ti
n
g
 o

f 
g
o
o
d
s
 i
n
 O

ra
c
le

. 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
S

ys
te

m
s
 -

 K
e
it
h
 

M
u
n
ro

e

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
re

c
e
ip

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 g

o
o
d
s
 e

n
te

rs
 w

ro
n
g
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 i
n
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 

L
e
d
g
e
r.

 A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
, 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
is

, 
it
 c

o
u
ld

 

b
e
 t

im
e
-c

o
n
s
u
m

in
g
 t

o
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

a
n
y 

e
rr

o
rs

 u
p
lo

a
d
e
d
 i
n
 s

u
c
h
 a

 

w
a
y.

In
tr

o
d
u
c
in

g
 a

n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

c
h
e
c
k
 o

n
 e

v
e
ry

 r
e
c
e
ip

t 
e
n
te

re
d
 i
s
 n

o
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l 
a
s
 a

 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
to

 e
ra

d
ic

a
te

 o
c
c
a
s
io

n
a
l 
e
rr

o
rs

; 
p
lu

s
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
lit

y 
to

 

fa
c
ili

ta
te

 a
n
d
 i
t 

w
o
u
ld

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 a

 c
u
s
to

m
is

a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 c

o
m

p
e
n
s
a
ti
n
g
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
is

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

c
c
ru

a
ls

 f
o
r 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 
a
m

o
u
n
ts

 (
a
b
o
v
e
 £

2
5
0
) 

a
re

 c
ir
c
u
la

te
d
 (

o
n
 a

 

m
o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

) 
fo

r 
re

v
ie

w
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
N

/A

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
3
: 

S
S

ID
: 

R
e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 S

S
ID

 u
p

lo
a
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

P
a
y
a
b

le
 s

y
s
te

m
 (

E
x
.1

6
) 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 u

s
e
s
 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
to

ta
l 
s
h
e
e
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
.

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 S

S
ID

 u
p
lo

a
d
 f

ile
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 P
a
ya

b
le

 s
ys

te
m

 a
ft

e
r 

e
v
e
ry

 S
S

ID
 u

p
lo

a
d
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
s
h
e
e
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 n

o
 f

o
rm

a
l 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 e

x
is

ts
. 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

a
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
s
h
e
e
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
. 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 P
a
ya

b
le

 -
 C

h
ri
s
 

J
o
n
e
s

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 n

o
t 

a
ll 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
 a

re
 u

p
lo

a
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 P
a
ya

b
le

 s
ys

te
m

 f
o
r 

p
a
ym

e
n
t.

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 g

o
v
e
rn

e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 o

f 
O

ra
c
le

, 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
/c

o
n
tr

o
l 
s
h
e
e
ts

 a
re

 

n
o
w

 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
, 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 a

n
d
 f

ile
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 e

a
c
h
 u

p
lo

a
d
. 

 I
t 

is
 a

s
s
u
m

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

ye
a
r 

e
n
d
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y 

a
n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

fr
o
m

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n
c
e
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 g

o
v
e
rn

e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 o

f 

O
ra

c
le

, 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
/c

o
n
tr

o
l 
s
h
e
e
ts

 a
re

 n
o
w

 

c
h
e
c
k
e
d
, 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 a

n
d
 f

ile
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 e

a
c
h
 

u
p
lo

a
d
. 

 I
t 

is
 a

s
s
u
m

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y 

a
n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

fr
o
m

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n
c
e
. 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

P
ro

v
id

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
4
: 

S
IM

S
: 

In
v
o

ic
e
 n

o
t 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
e
d

 f
o

r 
p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
(E

x
.2

3
) 

 S
c
h
o
o
l 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 s

ta
ff

 s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
 a

re
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

s
h
o
u
ld

 k
e
e
p
 a

ll 
G

R
N

's
 o

n
 f

ile
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 g

o
o
d
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
.

T
h
e
 D

u
rh

a
m

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 T

e
a
m

 s
ta

te
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
ig

n
s
 a

ll 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
 b

e
fo

re
 p

a
ym

e
n
t.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
 t

e
s
te

d
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 f

o
r 

p
a
ym

e
n
t.

  

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ry
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

c
o
n
fi
rm

in
g
 t

h
e
 

g
o
o
d
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 D
a
v
id

 

S
h
ir
e
r

L
o
w

T
h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 p

a
ym

e
n
t 

o
f 

in
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 o

r 
fr

a
u
d
u
le

n
t 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
. 

In
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
, 

g
o
o
d
s
 m

a
y 

n
o
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

s
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 

fo
rm

a
l 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 t

h
e
 

g
o
o
d
s
.

A
 r

e
m

in
d
e
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t

o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 v
ia

 t
h
e
 E

x
tr

a
n
e
t,

 a
b
o
u
t 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
N

o
te

 p
la

c
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 E
x
tr

a
n
e
t 

5
 J

u
ly

 

2
0
1
2
 r

e
m

in
d
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 o
f 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

P
ro

v
id

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
5
: 

S
IM

S
: 

A
u

th
o

ri
s
e
d

 S
ig

n
a
to

ri
e
s
 L

is
t 

(E
x
.2

4
) 

 T
h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 T

e
a
m

 s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
u
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 o

f 
a
ll 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 s

ig
n
a
to

ry
 l
is

ts
.

T
h
e
 P

a
ym

e
n
t 

A
u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
L
is

ti
n
g
 (

P
A

C
L
) 

te
s
te

d
 w

a
s
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 b

y 
a
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 n

o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 s

ig
n
a
to

ri
e
s
 l
is

t 
h
e
ld

 b
y 

th
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
F

u
n
d
in

g
 

T
e
a
m

. 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 s
ta

te
d
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 s

ig
n
a
to

ri
e
s
 l
is

t 
w

a
s
 o

u
t-

o
f-

d
a
te

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 

th
e
y 

w
e
re

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

e
tt

y 
c
a
s
h
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 s

ig
n
a
to

ri
e
s
 l
is

t,
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 

c
o
m

p
e
n
s
a
ti
n
g
 c

o
n
tr

o
l.
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 D
a
v
id

 

S
h
ir
e
r

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 a

n
 u

n
a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
ig

n
s
 t

h
e
 P

A
C

L
 a

n
d
 a

s
 

th
e
 s

ig
n
a
to

ri
e
s
 l
is

ts
 a

re
 n

o
t 

u
p
 t

o
 d

a
te

 t
h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

T
h
is

 

c
o
u
ld

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 p

a
ym

e
n
t 

o
f 

in
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 o

r 
fr

a
u
d
u
le

n
t 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
.

A
g
re

e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 C

re
d
it
o
r 

T
e
a
m

 w
it
h
in

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
F

u
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 p

u
rs

u
e
 t

h
is

 a
ft

e
r 

h
a
lf
-t

e
rm

 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

ti
m

e
 t

o
 d

o
 t

h
is

.

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
N

o
te

 p
la

c
e
d
 o

n
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 E
x
tr

a
n
e
t 

1
5
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 

2
0
1
3
 –

 c
o
p
y 

o
f 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
. 

F
ile

 h
e
ld

 i
n
 

o
ff

ic
e
 c

o
n
ta

in
in

g
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 f

o
rm

s
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
. 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 f

o
rm

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

h
a
s
e
d

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

P
ro

v
id

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
6
: 

S
IM

S
: 

R
e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 S

IM
S

 u
p

lo
a
d

 t
o

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

P
a
y
a
b

le
 s

y
s
te

m
 (

E
x
.2

5
) 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 u

s
e
s
 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
to

ta
l 
s
h
e
e
t 

a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
. 

 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 S

IM
S

 u
p
lo

a
d
 f

ile
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 P
a
ya

b
le

 s
ys

te
m

 a
ft

e
r 

e
v
e
ry

 S
IM

S
 u

p
lo

a
d
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
s
h
e
e
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
. 

T
h
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
 f

o
rm

a
l 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 e

x
is

ts
. 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

a
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
s
h
e
e
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
.

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 D
a
v
id

 

S
h
ir
e
r

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 n

o
t 

a
ll 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
 a

re
 u

p
lo

a
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 P
a
ya

b
le

 s
ys

te
m

 f
o
r 

p
a
ym

e
n
t.

T
h
is

 i
s
 n

o
w

 d
o
n
e
. 

 R
e
p
o
rt

s
 f

ro
m

 S
IM

S
 a

re
 s

e
n
t 

to
 C

re
d
it
o
rs

 w
h
o
 t

h
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 

d
is

c
re

p
a
n
c
ie

s
 t

o
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
F

u
n
d
in

g

C
o

m
p

le
te

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 -

 F
ile

 

in
 R

e
le

v
a
n
t 

O
ff

ic
e
 i
f 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
7
: 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
: 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 T
a
x
 B

e
n

e
fi

t 
d

u
p

li
c
a
te

 p
a
y
m

e
n

t 

(E
x
. 

4
0
) 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 r
e
v
ie

w
 a

ll 
c
a
s
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

p
o
o
l 
re

p
o
rt

 

a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 m

a
n
u
a
l 
a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 c

la
im

s
.

 

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
	



��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
 
!
�"
 
!
��
#�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�$
�
%�
�
&
&
�
�
�
�#
�
�'
()
�(
�"
 
!

�
��
*�
�

Page 35



F
in

d
in

g
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
P

ri
o

ri
ty

A
u

d
it

o
r 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

A
c
ti

o
n

s
C

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
:

U
p

d
a
te

:
E

v
id

e
n

c
e

C
it

y
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 -
 F

o
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 N

o
rt

h
g
a
te

 s
ys

te
m

 t
o
 t

h
e
 C

iv
ic

a
 

s
ys

te
m

, 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 4

8
 c

la
im

s
 w

it
h
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
£
1
7
,4

0
3
.3

3
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 

d
u
p
lic

a
te

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

(C
T

B
) 

p
a
ym

e
n
t 

in
 e

rr
o
r.

 T
h
e
s
e
 c

la
im

s
 w

e
re

 l
o
g
g
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o
rr

e
c
te

d
.

T
e
s
ti
n
g
 f

o
u
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
d
e
 a

 d
u
p
lic

a
te

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

p
a
ym

e
n
t 

to
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

3
6
1
2
3
6
3
3
9
0
 f

o
r 

c
la

im
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

1
0
0
9
3
2
8
.

A
s
 a

t 
4
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
d
 n

o
t 

a
m

e
n
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 c

la
im

s
.

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 M
 

W
a
te

rs
/J

 S
c
o
tn

e
y

L
o
w

T
h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

p
o
s
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

la
im

a
n
ts

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

is
 w

ro
n
g
. 

C
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 t

e
s
ti
n
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
 i
s
s
u
e
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 d

u
p
lic

a
te

d
 C

T
B

 p
a
ym

e
n
ts

, 

C
IV

IC
A

 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y 

ra
n
 a

 u
ti
lit

y 
id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

4
8
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 c

la
im

s
. 

 A
ll 

c
la

im
s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 c

o
rr

e
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 u

p
d
a
te

d
. 

T
h
e
 C

T
B

 p
o
s
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 c

h
e
c
k
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 c

o
rr

e
c
t.

C
o

m
p

le
te

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

P
ro

v
id

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
8
: 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
: 

B
e
n

e
fi

t 
p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 (
E

x
.4

1
) 

 T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 a
 S

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
s
 a

ll 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 p
a
ym

e
n
ts

 b
e
fo

re
 

s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
.

A
u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

p
a
ym

e
n
ts

 b
y 

a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

b
e
fo

re
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
 i
s
 n

o
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 M
 

W
a
te

rs
/J

 S
c
o
tn

e
y

H
ig

h
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 p

a
ym

e
n
t 

o
f 

in
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 o

r 
fr

a
u
d
u
le

n
t 

p
a
ym

e
n
ts

, 
a
s
 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

a
ym

e
n
t 

fi
le

 t
o
 b

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
.

A
ll 

H
B

 p
a
ym

e
n
t 

ru
n
s
 (

B
A

C
S

 &
 C

h
e
q
u
e
) 

a
re

 n
o
w

 c
o
u
n
te

rs
ig

n
e
d
 b

y 
a
 s

e
n
io

r 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
z
e
d
 s

ig
n
a
to

ry
 l
is

t 
b
e
fo

re
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
. 

 S
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
ts

 

n
o
w

 r
e
c
o
rd

 d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

c
re

a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 p

a
ym

e
n
t 

fi
le

, 
c
o
u
n
te

r 
s
ig

n
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

a
n
d
 o

ff
e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

ile
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

P
ro

v
id

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
9
: 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
: 

R
e
n

t 
R

e
b

a
te

 R
e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

s
 (

E
x
.4

2
) 

 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 a

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

is
e
d
 f

o
rm

a
t 

fo
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
im

e
ly

 t
h
re

e
-w

a
y 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r,

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
n
d
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
n
ts

 s
ys

te
m

, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 b

y 
a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r.

 A
ll 

e
n
tr

ie
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

n
g
 i
te

m
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
.

E
a
s
in

g
to

n
 a

n
d

 W
e
a
r 

V
a
ll

e
y

P
ri
o
r 

to
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
, 

R
e
n
t 

R
e
b
a
te

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

s
ys

te
m

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 E

a
s
t 

D
u
rh

a
m

 H
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 D

a
le

 a
n
d
 V

a
lle

y 
H

o
m

e
s
 s

ys
te

m
s
 h

a
v
e
 o

n
ly

 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
s
ys

te
m

s
. 

C
it

y
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

  
 T

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

re
c
o
n
c
ile

 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

s
ys

te
m

 t
o
 

th
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
n
ts

 s
ys

te
m

. 
In

s
te

a
d
 i
t 

is
 o

n
ly

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile

s
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 s
ys

te
m

 t
o
 

th
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

D
u

rh
a
m

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 (
U

n
it

a
ry

) 
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
.

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
  

- 
C

 

B
la

c
k
b
u
rn

/ 
T

 R
o
b
in

s
o
n

H
ig

h
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 v

a
lu

e
s
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
n
ts

 

s
ys

te
m

s
 d

o
 n

o
t 

a
g
re

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 s
ys

te
m

. 

A
t 

th
e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
th

e
 w

a
lk

th
ro

u
g
h
, 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
d
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

n
e
w

 m
e
rg

e
d
 s

ys
te

m
. 

S
in

c
e
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
, 

a
 f

u
ll 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

th
re

e
 o

f 
th

e
 H

R
A

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
w

it
h
 a

n
y 

d
is

c
re

p
a
n
c
ie

s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 

n
o
te

d
. 

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

in
te

rn
a
lly

. 
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
E

D
H

, 
D

&
V

H
 a

n
d
 D

C
H

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
R

e
n
ts

 R
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

th
re

e
 a

re
a
s
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 3
0
: 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
: 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 T
a
x
 B

e
n

e
fi

t 
R

e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

s
 (

E
x
. 

4
2
) 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 a

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

is
e
d
 f

o
rm

a
t 

fo
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

A
 s

e
n
io

r 
s
h
o
u
ld

 r
e
v
ie

w
 a

ls
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

A
ll 

e
n
tr

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

n
g
 i
te

m
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 

 N
o
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 -

 I
a
n
 

H
e
rb

e
rs

o
n
 /

 S
u
s
a
n
 O

liv
e
r

H
ig

h
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 v

a
lu

e
s
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

fo
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

m
a
y 

n
o
t 

a
g
re

e
 t

o
 t

h
o
s
e
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 s

ys
te

m
s
.

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 m

e
rg

e
d
 n

e
w

 s
ys

te
m

 f
u
ll 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 

p
la

c
e
. 

 S
in

c
e
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
-c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 3
1
: 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
: 

R
e
n

t 
A

ll
o

w
a
n

c
e
 R

e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

s
 (

E
x
.4

2
) 

 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 a

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

is
e
d
 f

o
rm

a
t 

fo
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

A
 

s
e
n
io

r 
s
h
o
u
ld

 r
e
v
ie

w
 a

ls
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

A
ll 

e
n
tr

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

n
g
 i
te

m
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 

 

C
h

e
s
te

r-
le

-S
tr

e
e
t

T
h
e
 f

o
rm

a
t 

o
f 

th
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

u
n
re

c
o
n
c
ile

d
 

it
e
m

s
 w

it
h
 a

 v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
£
1
1
0
,0

0
0
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
. 

C
it

y
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

T
h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 B
A

C
S

 r
e
tu

rn
e
d
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 1

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

–
 2

3
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 o

f 
£
2
,3

6
6
.1

6
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
is

 b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 B

A
C

S
 

p
a
ym

e
n
t 

o
f 

£
6
7
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d
 o

n
 1

3
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
.

P
re

 m
e
rg

e
d

 C
h

e
s
te

r 
le

 S
tr

e
e
t 

 -
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
e
 d

is
c
re

p
a
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

a
re

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
 t

h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

C
it

y
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 -
 T

h
e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 a

p
p
e
a
re

d
 t

o
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 £

6
7
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
is

 w
a
s
 a

 

re
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
n
 u

n
c
le

a
r 

e
x
p
la

n
a
ti
o
n
. 

It
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 a

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 s
ys

te
m

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 d

e
ta

ils
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 e

x
p
la

in
 t

h
e
 

d
is

c
re

p
a
n
c
y.

S
e
d

g
e
fi

e
ld

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

T
h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 m

e
rg

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 p
a
ym

e
n
ts

 o
f 

£
1
,9

7
7
,0

9
7
.3

3
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

s
ys

te
m

 t
h
a
t 

w
e
re

 n
o
t 

in
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.

 I
n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
fo

llo
w

-u
p
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 p

a
ym

e
n
t 

w
a
s
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.

  
T

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 m

e
rg

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 

p
a
ym

e
n
ts

 o
f 

£
1
,9

7
7
,0

9
7
.3

3
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

s
ys

te
m

 t
h
a
t 

w
e
re

 n
o
t 

in
 t

h
e
 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.

 I
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
fo

llo
w

-u
p
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 p

a
ym

e
n
t 

w
a
s
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

D
u

rh
a
m

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 -
 M

e
rg

e
d

 -
 T

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 a

 

ti
m

e
ly

 m
a
n
n
e
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 b

y 
a
 s

e
n
io

r 

o
ff

ic
e
r.

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
  

- 
C

 

B
la

c
k
b
u
rn

/ 
T

 R
o
b
in

s
o
n

H
ig

h
S

e
d

g
e
fi

e
ld

 -
 T

h
is

 a
m

o
u
n
t 

w
a
s
 t

h
e
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 p

a
ym

e
n
t 

m
a
d
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 

s
h
u
td

o
w

n
 o

f 
th

e
 N

o
rt

h
g
a
te

 s
ys

te
m

. 
T

h
is

 w
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

S
e
d
g
e
fi
e
ld

 s
ys

te
m

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ile

d
 a

n
d
 b

a
la

n
c
e
d
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

D
u

rh
a
m

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 -
 M

e
rg

e
d

 -
 F

o
llo

w
in

g
 ‘
g
o
 l
iv

e
’ 
o
f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 s
ys

te
m

, 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ile

 p
a
ym

e
n
ts

 o
n
 a

 m
o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

 g
o
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 

A
 f

u
ll 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 m

e
rg

e
d
 s

ys
te

m
, 

w
it
h
 a

n
y 

d
is

c
re

p
a
n
c
ie

s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 n

o
te

d
. 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 M

a
y 

2
0
1
2
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

C
o

m
p

le
te

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 3
2
: 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
: 

F
ir

s
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n

t 
m

a
d

e
 t

o
 l

a
n

d
lo

rd
s
 (

E
x
.4

3
) 

  
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 o
n
ly

 m
a
k
e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
a
ym

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

la
im

a
n
t's

 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
 i
f 

th
e
 c

la
im

a
n
t 

h
a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 t

h
e
 p

a
ym

e
n
t.

  
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 f

o
llo

w
e
d
 t

h
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 A

4
/2

0
1
1
 o

f 
m

a
k
in

g
 f

ir
s
t 

p
a
ym

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

la
n
d
lo

rd
s
, 

a
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
o
rs

. 
In

 t
h
e
 o

n
e
 

c
a
s
e
 t

e
s
te

d
, 

th
e
 c

la
im

a
n
t 

m
a
d
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y 

re
c
e
iv

e
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
a
ym

e
n
t 

d
ir
e
c
t

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
  

- 
C

 

B
la

c
k
b
u
rn

/ 
T

 R
o
b
in

s
o
n

H
ig

h
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
re

 p
a
yi

n
g
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
a
ym

e
n
t 

o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

B
e
n
e
fi
t 

to
 t

h
e
 w

ro
n
g
 r

e
c
ip

ie
n
t 

a
n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 b
e
 l
ia

b
le

 t
o
 

re
p
a
y 

th
e
 c

la
im

a
n
t 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
a
ym

e
n
t.

 I
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 b

re
a
c
h
in

g
 t

h
e
 D

a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 A

c
t 

2
0
0
0
 

b
y 

p
a
yi

n
g
 t

h
e
 c

la
im

a
n
ts

 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 c

la
im

a
n
ts

 c
o
n
s
e
n
t.

H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

(L
H

A
 &

 A
4
/2

0
1
1
) 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 s

ta
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

a
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 m
a
y 

m
a
k
e
 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
a
ym

e
n
t 

o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

to
 t

h
e
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
, 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
y 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
a
t 

it
 

w
ill

 a
s
s
is

t 
th

e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

in
 s

e
c
u
ri
n
g
 o

r 
re

ta
in

in
g
 a

 t
e
n
a
n
c
y.

C
o

m
p

le
te

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 3
3
: 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
: 

P
a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 (

E
x
.4

4
) 

  
  

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 p

a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 e

n
te

re
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 

m
e
rg

e
d
 s

ys
te

m
. 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 c
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 a

 s
e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

h
a
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 t

h
e
 p

a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

n
e
w

 m
e
rg

e
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

s
ys

te
m

.

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 M
 

W
a
te

rs
/J

 S
c
o
tn

e
y

H
ig

h
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 p

a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

e
rg

e
d
 s

ys
te

m
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

w
ro

n
g
ly

 e
n
te

re
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 b

y 

th
e
 s

ys
te

m
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
a
c
c
u
ra

te
.

S
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
ts

 w
e
re

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 d
e
ta

ili
n
g
 a

ll 
p
a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 s

e
t 

a
n
d
 w

h
ils

t 
a
ll 

p
a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 w

e
re

 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 b

y 
a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

th
e
 s

p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
ts

 w
e
re

 n
o
t 

c
o
u
n
te

rs
ig

n
e
d
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

M
o
v
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
b
ill

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

ll 
p
a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 s

e
t 

in
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
. 

A
ll 

p
a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
u
n
te

rs
ig

n
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
te

r 
s
ig

n
in

g
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 

a
d
o
p
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

p
a
ra

m
e
te

r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

P
ro

v
id

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 3
4
: 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 T
a
x
: 

R
e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

 o
f 

V
O

A
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

 t
o

 R
V

 

re
p

o
rt

s
 (

E
x
.3

2
) 

  
 T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 b

y 
a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r.

 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
V

O
A

 s
c
h
e
d
u
le

 t
o
 b

a
n
d
in

g
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
. 

 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 b

y 
a
 

s
e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r.

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 K
 C

o
a
d

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
 a

n
d
 a

s
 n

o
 

re
v
ie

w
 t

a
k
e
s
 p

la
c
e
 t

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 r
e
c
o
rd

 t
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y 
a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r.

C
o

m
p

le
te

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

P
ro

v
id

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 3
5
: 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 T
a
x
 a

n
d

 N
N

D
R

: 
U

n
a
b

le
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

o
f 

n
e
w

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 (

E
x
.3

4
 a

n
d

 4
0
) 

  
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
s
 

fo
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 s

u
it
a
b
ly

 f
ile

d
.

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 s
ta

te
d
 t

h
a
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

re
p
o
rt

 a
ll 

n
e
w

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 o

r 
a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 t

h
a
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 a

n
d
 N

N
D

R
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

o
n
e
 n

e
w

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 

re
a
d
ily

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 

a
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 f

o
r 

te
s
ti
n
g
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 w
a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 a

t 

S
e
d
g
e
fi
e
ld

 a
n
d
 N

N
D

R
 a

t 
D

e
rw

e
n
ts

id
e
, 

d
u
e
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 

o
n
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
s
it
e
s
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 K
 C

o
a
d
/A

 

S
e
a
rl
e

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

s
o
m

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

c
h
a
rg

e
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 

a
n
d
 N

N
D

R
 a

s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 n
o
t 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
.

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 u

n
it
a
ry

 s
ys

te
m

s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
, 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
t 

in
to

 p
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 c

e
n
tr

a
lis

e
d
 a

n
d
 f

ile
d
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

P
ro

v
id

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 3
6
: 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 T
a
x
 a

n
d

 N
N

D
R

 :
 A

u
th

o
ri

s
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

P
a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 

(E
x
.4

6
 a

n
d

 E
x
.3

7
) 

  
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

s
h
o
u
ld

 r
e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 p

a
ra

m
e
te

rs
, 

a
n
d
 f

o
rm

a
l 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 k

e
p
t.

  
  

 

S
e
d

g
e
fi

e
ld

T
h
e
 p

a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

e
re

 i
n
p
u
t 

in
to

 t
h
e
 s

ys
te

m
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y 
a
n
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
ff

ic
e
r.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
m

o
n
th

s
 

a
ft

e
r 

e
n
te

ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 p

a
ra

m
e
te

rs
. 

T
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 o

n
ly

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
ta

k
in

g
 

p
la

c
e
 i
n
 r

e
tr

o
s
p
e
c
t.

 

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
	



��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
 
!
�"
 
!
��
#�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�$
�
%�
�
&
&
�
�
�
�#
�
�'
()
�(
�"
 
!

+
��
*�
�

Page 36



F
in

d
in

g
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
P

ri
o

ri
ty

A
u

d
it

o
r 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

A
c
ti

o
n

s
C

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
:

U
p

d
a
te

:
E

v
id

e
n

c
e

C
o

u
n

c
il

 t
a
x
 -

 W
e
a
r 

V
a
ll

e
y
, 

T
e
e
s
d

a
le

 a
n

d
 D

e
rw

e
n

ts
id

e
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

S
e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 e
n
te

re
d
 t

h
e
 p

a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 a

n
d
 m

o
re

 j
u
n
io

r 
s
ta

ff
 t

h
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 t

h
e
m

 (
N

B
 

T
e
e
s
d
a
le

 -
 a

 s
e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

d
id

 n
o
t 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
 t

h
e
 N

N
D

R
 p

a
ra

m
e
te

rs
).

  
T

h
is

 

is
 a

 c
o
n
tr

o
l 
w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 a

s
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a
t 

ju
n
io

r 
s
ta

ff
 d

o
 n

o
t 

h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

e
x
p
e
rt

is
e
 a

n
d
 m

a
y 

fe
e
l 
p
re

s
s
u
re

d
 i
n
to

 a
g
re

e
in

g
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

m
o
re

 s
e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 w
h
e
n
 

e
rr

o
rs

 h
a
v
e
 o

c
c
u
rr

e
d
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 C
h

e
s
te

r-
le

-S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n

d
 E

a
s
in

g
to

n

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 c
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

fi
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
u
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 o

f 

p
a
ra

m
e
te

rs
. 

C
it

y
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 –
 N

N
D

R
 o

n
ly

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 c
la

im
e
d
 t

h
e
 p

a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 w

e
re

 i
n
p
u
t 

b
y 

tw
o
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 

b
y 

a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

w
h
o
 c

la
im

e
d
 t

h
e
y 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 t

h
e
 p

a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 h

a
s
 

s
ig

n
e
d
 t

h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 i
n
p
u
tt

in
g
 o

ff
ic

e
r.

 T
h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 d

o
e
s
 

n
o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
y 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
n
o
th

e
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
re

v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

a
ra

m
e
te

rs
. 

T
h
e
re

fo
re

 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 b

y 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

. 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

D
u

rh
a
m

 C
o

u
n

ty
 U

n
it

a
ry

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 c
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ry
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 

p
a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 a

ft
e
r 

m
ig

ra
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
s
ys

te
m

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 u
n
it
a
ry

 s
ys

te
m

. 
  

  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 M
 

W
a
te

rs
/J

 S
c
o
tn

e
y

H
ig

h
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 p

a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 w

e
re

 i
n
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 

n
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

w
a
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 e

rr
o
rs

.

A
ll 

fo
rm

e
r 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
s
it
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 o
b
s
o
le

te
 i
.e

. 
S

e
d
g
e
fi
e
ld

, 
W

e
a
r 

V
a
lle

y,
 T

e
e
s
d
a
le

, 

D
e
rw

e
n
ts

id
e
, 

C
h
e
s
te

r-
le

-S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 E

a
s
in

g
to

n
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

D
u

rh
a
m

 C
o

u
n

ty
 U

n
it

a
ry

 -
 S

p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
ts

 w
e
re

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 d
e
ta

ili
n
g
 a

ll 
p
a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 

s
e
t 

a
n
d
 w

h
ils

t 
a
ll 

p
a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 w

h
e
re

 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 b

y 
a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

th
e
 s

p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
ts

 

w
e
re

 n
o
t 

c
o
u
n
te

rs
ig

n
e
d
. 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
b
ill

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

ll 

p
a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 w

e
re

 s
e
t 

in
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

A
ll 

p
a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 w

e
re

 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
u
n
te

rs
ig

n
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
te

r 
s
ig

n
in

g
 

h
a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

p
a
ra

m
e
te

r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 3
7
: 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 T
a
x
 a

n
d

 N
N

D
R

: 
F

u
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
re

c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

s
 

(E
x
.6

2
) 

  
 T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 t
ry

 t
o
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 a

ll 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

n
g
 i
te

m
s
 r

e
a
d
y 

fo
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
. 

A
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

s
h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
. 

G
o
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
ll 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 b
a
s
is

. 

T
h
e
 U

n
it
a
ry

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 a

n
d
 N

N
D

R
 s

ys
te

m
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 a

 

ti
m

e
ly

 m
a
n
n
e
r 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

n
g
 i
te

m
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 

w
e
re

 u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 e

x
p
la

in
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 o
ff

ic
e
rs

 i
n
te

n
d
 t

o
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
 m

o
s
t 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

n
g
 i
te

m
s
 r

e
a
d
y 

fo
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

n
o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

 

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 K
 C

o
a
d
/ 

J
 

D
o
w

s
o
n

H
ig

h
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
 a

ll 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 

a
n
d
 N

N
D

R
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
.

E
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
. 

A
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 w

a
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 c

lo
s
e
d
o
w

n
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

 

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
fo

rm
a
 L

o
g
. 

W
e
e
k
ly

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
/u

p
d
a
te

s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
.

A
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

h
a
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

ll 
in

c
o
m

e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

 p
re

-a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 c

h
e
c
k
lis

t,
 o

n
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

a
 m

o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

.

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
 F

o
rm

a
 L

o
g
 i
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
, 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 &

 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 s

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

m
o
n
th

ly
. 

R
e
c
s
 c

h
e
c
k
e
d
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 &

 r
e
v
ie

w
.A

ll 
R

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

2
0
1
1
 a

re
 s

a
v
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 F

o
ld

e
r 

e
a
c
h
 

m
o
n
th

.R
e
c
o
n
c
ili

n
g
 i
te

m
s
 a

re
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 d

e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 o

n
 

a
n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 b

a
s
is

C
o

m
p

le
te

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

P
ro

v
id

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 3
8
: 

N
N

D
R

: 
R

e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

 o
f 

V
O

 S
c
h

e
d

u
le

s
 t

o
 R

V
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 

(E
x
.3

6
) 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 

b
y 

a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r.

D
u

rh
a
m

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 –
 A

ll
 S

it
e
s

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
V

O
A

 s
c
h
e
d
u
le

 t
o
 b

a
n
d
in

g
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
. 

 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 b

y 
a
 

s
e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r.

E
a
s
in

g
to

n

F
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
 t

h
e
 V

O
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

 s
ta

te
s
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 o

f 
2
,3

6
5
 w

it
h
 a

 

ra
te

a
b
le

 v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
4
9
,2

3
1
,6

5
1
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
re

p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 N

N
D

R
 

s
ys

te
m

 s
h
o
w

s
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 o

f 
2
,3

6
4
 w

it
h
 a

 r
a
te

a
b
le

 v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
4
9
,2

5
4
,9

0
1
. 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 c
o
u
ld

 

n
o
t 

e
x
p
la

in
 t

h
is

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 K
 C

o
a
d
/A

 

S
e
a
rl
e

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
 a

n
d
 a

s
 n

o
 

re
v
ie

w
 t

a
k
e
s
 p

la
c
e
 t

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

A
ls

o
 r

is
k
 t

h
a
t 

N
N

D
R

 

re
c
o
rd

s
 a

re
 i
n
c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 n

o
t 

a
ll 

N
N

D
R

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

th
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
s

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 r
e
c
o
rd

 t
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y 
s
e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r

C
o

m
p

le
te

C
o

m
p

le
te

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

P
ro

v
id

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 3
9
: 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
n

ts
: 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
fe

e
d

e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 u

p
lo

a
d

 f
il

e
s
 n

o
t 

d
o

c
u

m
e
n

te
d

 (
E

x
.2

6
) 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 s
h
o
u
ld

 s
ig

n
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 h

a
rd

c
o
p
y 

s
u
m

m
a
ry

 f
ile

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 f

e
e
d
e
r 

s
ys

te
m

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 b

a
tc

h
 u

p
lo

a
d
 f

ile
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
n
ts

 s
ys

te
m

. 
  

  
  

  
  

  

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
t 

E
a
s
t 

D
u
rh

a
m

 H
o
m

e
s
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ile

 t
h
e
 f

e
e
d
e
r 

s
ys

te
m

 u
p
lo

a
d
 f

ile
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 b

a
tc

h
 

u
p
lo

a
d
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
n
ts

 s
ys

te
m

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

it
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 n
o
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ry
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 k

e
p
t.

 T
h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
e
 f

o
r 

b
o
th

 C
a
s
h
 R

e
c
e
ip

ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

fi
le

s
  

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 K
 C

o
a
d
/J

 

H
u
g
h
e
s

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

ta
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 a

s
 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
d
. 

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 e

rr
o
rs

 m
a
y 

o
c
c
u
r 

th
a
t 

a
re

 n
o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

T
h
is

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y 
D

C
C

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

R
e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
s
 a

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
h
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 I

C
O

N
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 r

e
n
t 

s
ys

te
m

s
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
n
ts

 t
e
a
m

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 

u
p
lo

a
d
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 r

e
n
t 

s
ys

te
m

s
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 4
0
: 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
n

ts
: 

W
e
e
k
ly

 c
a
s
h

 r
e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

 n
o

t 

d
o

c
u

m
e
n

te
d

 (
E

x
.2

7
) 

 A
ll 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
, 

c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 

b
y 

a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r.

 P
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

la
c
e
d
 o

n
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 Y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
n
ts

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
. 

 A
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
s
h
e
e
t 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 t

o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

 
T

h
e
 w

e
e
k
ly

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
s
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t 

fo
r 

E
D

H
, 

fo
r 

b
o
th

 C
a
s
h
 

R
e
c
e
ip

ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

p
a
ym

e
n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
p
a
ym

e
n
ts

 a
s
 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 O

rc
h
a
rd

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 (

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 n

o
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 f

o
rm

a
lly

).
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 

n
o
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 b

y 
a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r.

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 K
 C

o
a
d
 /

 J
 

H
u
g
h
e
s

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

ta
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 a

s
 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
d
. 

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 e

rr
o
rs

 m
a
y 

o
c
c
u
r 

th
a
t 

a
re

 n
o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

T
h
is

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y 
D

C
C

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

R
e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
s
 a

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
h
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 I

C
O

N
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 r

e
n
t 

s
ys

te
m

s
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
n
ts

 t
e
a
m

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 

u
p
lo

a
d
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 r

e
n
t 

s
ys

te
m

s
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 4
1
: 

R
e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
n

ts
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 G
e
n

e
ra

l 

L
e
d

g
e
r 

n
o

t 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 (

E
x
. 

2
8
) 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
ye

a
r-

e
n
d
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

th
re

e
 s

it
e
s
. 

A
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

s
h
o
u
ld

 r
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
 a

ll 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

E
a
s
in

g
to

n

A
s
 a

t 
1
0
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 

A
p
ri
l 
to

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 c
o
n
tr

o
l 
s
h
e
e
t 

th
a
t 

w
ill

 f
o
rm

a
lly

 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

th
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 a

re
 h

o
p
in

g
 t

o
 u

s
e
 t

h
is

 t
o
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

a
ll 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 m

o
n
th

ly
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
tr

o
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
 

W
e
a
r 

V
a
ll

e
y
 a

n
d

 C
it

y
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

N
o
 m

o
n
th

ly
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
n
ts

 s
ys

te
m

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 J
 H

u
g
h
e
s

H
ig

h
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
 a

ll 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

R
e
n
t 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
.

T
h
e
 `

in
fo

rm
a
l`
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

s
e
v
e
ra

l 
ye

a
rs

 b
y 

th
e
 R

e
n
t 

te
a
m

 a
t 

E
D

H
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 d

id
 n

o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
 a

 s
ig

n
e
d
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
s
h
e
e
t.

 I
t 

is
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 f
o
llo

w
 t

h
e
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 f
o
rm

a
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d

C
o

m
p

le
te

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 4
2
: 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
n

ts
: 

A
u

th
o

ri
s
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
n

ts
 u

p
ra

ti
n

g
 

c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
 (

E
x
.2

9
) 

T
h
e
 r

e
n
ts

 u
p
ra

ti
n
g
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 

b
a
s
is

.
A

 s
e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

h
a
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
n
t 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

u
s
e
d
 t

o
 

u
p
ra

te
 t

h
e
 r

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
th

re
e
 s

it
e
s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
is

 w
a
s
 i
n
 r

e
tr

o
s
p
e
c
t 

s
e
v
e
ra

l 
m

o
n
th

s
 

a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 u

p
ra

ti
n
g
 t

o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
. 

 T
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

im
e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l.

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 J
 H

u
g
h
e
s

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
n
t 

c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 e

rr
o
rs

 t
h
a
t 

w
e
re

 n
o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

T
h
e
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
n
t 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 r

e
n
ts

 

e
in

g
 u

p
lo

a
d
e
d
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 e

v
id

e
n
c
in

g
 t

h
is

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 w
a
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 r

e
tr

o
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
 T

h
e
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 

s
ig

n
e
d
 o

ff
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 u

p
lo

a
d
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 4
3
: 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
n

ts
: 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 r

e
n

t 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 r

e
n

ts
 s

y
s
te

m
 (

E
x
.3

0
) 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 a
g
re

e
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
n
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
n
ts

 s
ys

te
m

 o
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 b
a
s
is

. 
  

 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
 r

a
n
d
o
m

 c
h
e
c
k
 o

f 
1
5
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

th
re

e
 s

it
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
tr

o
s
p
e
c
t 

s
e
v
e
ra

l 
m

o
n
th

s
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 r
e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 u
p
lo

a
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
n
ts

 s
ys

te
m

s
. 

T
h
e
re

fo
re

 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

im
e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 c

o
n
tr

o
l.
  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 J
 H

u
g
h
e
s

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
rr

e
c
tl
y 

u
p
lo

a
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
ll 

th
re

e
 r

e
n
t 

s
ys

te
m

s
 h

a
d
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 r

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 

u
p
lo

a
d
e
d
 c

o
rr

e
c
tl
y,

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
s
 n

o
te

d
 a

b
o
v
e
, 

th
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 e

v
id

e
n
c
in

g
 t

h
is

 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 w
a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 r

e
tr

o
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
D

u
ri
n
g
 a

u
d
it
 s

a
m

p
le

 c
h
e
c
k
in

g
, 

n
o
 

e
rr

o
rs

 w
e
re

 f
o
u
n
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 u

p
lo

a
d
. 

T
h
e
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

a
n
d
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 u

p
lo

a
d
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 4
4
: 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
n

ts
: 

R
e
n

t 
d

o
w

n
lo

a
d

 a
n

d
 u

p
lo

a
d

 (
E

x
.3

9
) 

 T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 o
ff

ic
e
rs

 g
a
in

 a
n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 s

o
 t

h
e
y 

c
a
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 w

o
rk

, 
o
r 

if
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
is

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 

c
a
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e
 d

o
w

n
lo

a
d
 t

h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
.

T
h
e
 r

e
n
t 

d
o
w

n
lo

a
d
 a

n
d
 u

p
lo

a
d
 f

o
r 

C
it
y 

o
f 

D
u
rh

a
m

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y 
a
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
b
a
s
e
d
 

in
 S

p
a
in

. 
It

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

u
s
 t

o
 w

a
lk

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
.

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 J
 H

u
g
h
e
s

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
is

 n
o
t 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 r

e
n
t 

d
o
w

n
lo

a
d
 

a
n
d
 u

p
lo

a
d
s
 c

o
rr

e
c
tl
y 

a
n
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
n
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

In
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 d

a
ta

 l
o
a
d
 o

f 
n
e
w

 r
e
n
ts

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 s

ys
te

m
, 

th
e
 r

e
n
ts

 a
re

 

c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 a

s
 a

b
o
v
e
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 w

o
rk

. 
S

h
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 

n
o
t 

b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

, 
th

e
n
 t

h
e
 s

ys
te

m
 s

u
p
p
lie

r,
 N

o
rt

h
g
a
te

, 
(o

r 
o
th

e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

) 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

n
y 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

.

C
o

m
p

le
te

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 4
5
: 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
n

ts
: 

N
o

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 

(E
x
.4

5
) 

T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
ll 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 c

o
rr

e
c
tl
y.

  
  

  

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
	



��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
 
!
�"
 
!
��
#�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�$
�
%�
�
&
&
�
�
�
�#
�
�'
()
�(
�"
 
!

	
��
*�
�

Page 37



F
in

d
in

g
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
P

ri
o

ri
ty

A
u

d
it

o
r 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

A
c
ti

o
n

s
C

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
:

U
p

d
a
te

:
E

v
id

e
n

c
e

A
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
n
ts

 s
ys

te
m

. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
is

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

in
v
o
lv

e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y 
re

m
o
v
e
d
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y 
a
n
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 
is

 c
o
rr

e
c
t.

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 J
 H

u
g
h
e
s

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 e

it
h
e
r 

b
e
in

g
 p

ri
v
a
te

ly
 

b
o
u
g
h
t 

o
r 

d
e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 

a
n
d
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 a

n
d
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 w

ro
n
g
ly

 r
a
is

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
s
e
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
.

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t

h
e
 R

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

s
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 R

e
n
t 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t.

 A
n
y 

e
rr

o
rs

 a
re

 s
p
o
tt

e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
s
h
o
u
ld

 a
 R

T
B

 n
o
t 

b
e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 

to
 c

h
a
rg

e
 t

h
e
 r

e
n
t,

 t
h
e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

te
n
a
n
t 

a
d
v
is

e
s
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
b
le

m
. 

S
im

ila
rl
y,

 s
h
o
u
ld

 a
 d

e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y 
n
o
t 

b
e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
, 

th
e
 r

e
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 w
o
u
ld

 

b
e
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 a
n
d
 u

p
o
n
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
b
le

m
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 f

o
u
n
d
.

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
c
h
e
c
k
 a

t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 F

in
a
l 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 

w
h
e
re

 a
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
to

c
k
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 H

R
A

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t.

 

A
 s

im
ila

r 
m

id
-y

e
a
r 

c
h
e
c
k
 t

o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

S
u
b
s
id

y 
B

a
s
e
 d

a
ta

 r
e
tu

rn
 a

n
d
 w

h
ils

t 
th

is
 r

e
tu

rn
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

v
a
lid

, 
it
 i
s
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 (

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

in
te

n
ti
o
n
 t

o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
is

 m
id

-y
e
a
r 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 4
6
: 

C
a
s
h

 R
e
c
e
ip

ti
n

g
: 

S
u

s
p

e
n

s
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
(E

x
.5

8
) 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 c
le

a
r 

th
e
 s

u
s
p
e
n
s
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

la
rg

e
 i
te

m
s
 b

y 
th

e
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
. 

  
  

  
  

A
s
 a

t 
1
5
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 t

h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
v
a
lu

e
 i
n
 s

u
s
p
e
n
s
e
 w

a
s
 £

1
,6

1
3
,3

6
1
.5

2
. 

O
f 

th
is

 b
a
la

n
c
e
, 

£
1
,5

6
8
,8

7
1
.3

4
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
. 

T
h
is

 d
o
e
s
 s

h
o
w

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 s

u
s
p
e
n
s
e
 i
te

m
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 v

e
ry

 h
ig

h
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 s

e
e
n
 e

a
rl
y 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
2
 w

h
ic

h
 

o
c
c
u
rr

e
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

in
c
o
rr

e
c
t 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 m

e
a
n
in

g
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 

a
u
to

m
a
ti
c
a
lly

 a
llo

c
a
te

d
. 

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 n

o
w

 r
e
s
o
lv

e
d
.

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 K
 C

o
a
d
/J

 

D
o
w

s
o
n

H
ig

h
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
 h

ig
h
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
in

c
o
m

e
 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
rr

e
c
tl
y 

p
o
s
te

d
 

b
y 

th
e
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
.

T
h
e
 r

e
 -

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
. 

 S
u
s
p
e
n
s
e
 a

m
o
u
n
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 c

le
a
re

d
 

o
n
 a

 d
a
ily

 b
a
s
is

 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 w

e
e
k
ly

 b
y 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

T
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 e

n
s
u
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll 

p
a
ym

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 p
o
s
te

d
 o

n
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
2
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

V
o
lu

m
e
 a

n
d
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
s
u
s
p
e
n
s
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
 l
o
c
a
l 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r,
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 b

o
th

 w
e
e
k
ly

 

a
n
d
 m

o
n
th

ly
. 

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 4
7
: 

C
a
s
h

 R
e
c
e
ip

ti
n

g
: 

C
a
s
h

 s
h

e
e
t 

to
ta

ls
 r

e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

 n
o

t 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e
d

 (
E

x
.5

9
) 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
. 

  
 

N
o
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
h
 t

a
k
e
n
 b

y 
th

e
 S

p
e
n
n
ym

o
o
r 

C
a
s
h
 

O
ff

ic
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 I

C
O

N
 f

o
r 

th
e
 d

a
te

 t
e
s
te

d
, 

a
s
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
h
 o

ff
ic

e
 p

ri
n
te

rs
 

w
e
re

 n
o
t 

w
o
rk

in
g
. 

T
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 n

o
 h

a
rd

 c
o
p
y 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 o

b
ta

in
e
d
. 

 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 d
id

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

s
ta

te
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 I

C
O

N
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 v

a
lu

e
s
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ile

d
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
is

 r
e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 n

o
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
d
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 K
 C

o
a
d
 /

 J
 

D
o
w

s
o
n

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 

e
rr

o
rs

 a
re

 n
o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

U
p
o
n
 f

a
ilu

re
 o

f 
a
 p

ri
n
te

r,
 e

n
d
 o

f 
d
a
y 

re
p
o
rt

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

a
c
k
 o

ff
ic

e
. 

A
ll 

c
a
s
h
ie

rs
 b

a
n
k
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ile

d
 f

ro
m

 1
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 b

a
n
k
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 f

o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

A
n
y 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 c

a
s
h
-u

p
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 c

a
n
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 

v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
-p

ri
n
te

d
. 

(S
e
e
 E

v
id

e
n
c
e
).

 D
a
ily

 

c
h
e
c
k
s
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 A
L
L
 

b
a
n
k
in

g
s
 a

re
 c

o
rr

e
c
c
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y 

h
a
v
e
 

g
o
n
e
 i
n
 t

o
 B

a
n
k
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 S

ys
te

m
. 

A
g
a
in

 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ile

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

a
n
k
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t.

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 

s
it
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

ys
te

m
s
.A

d
d
it
io

n
a
lly

,a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 C

a
s
h
 H

a
n
d
lin

g
 P

o
lic

y,
re

c
e
n
tl
y 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 &

 u
p
d
a
te

d

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 4
8
: 

C
a
s
h

 R
e
c
e
ip

ti
n

g
: 

C
a
s
h

 u
p

lo
a
d

 f
il

e
s
 r

e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

 (
E

x
.6

0
) 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile

 a
ll 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

th
a
t 

a
re

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y 

th
e
 u

p
lo

a
d
 f

ile
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 b

y 
a
 

s
e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r.

 
A

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 C

a
s
h
 u

p
lo

a
d
 f

ile
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 I

C
O

N
 

s
ys

te
m

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
h
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r,

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
is

 w
a
s
 o

n
ly

 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 1

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
ly

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile

s
 t

h
e
 e

le
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 u

p
lo

a
d
 f

ile
 c

o
d
e
d
 t

o
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

9
3
6
9
0
0
 -

 S
ys

te
m

 C
a
s
h
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.

 A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

9
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
 o

n
ly

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile

d
 £

1
,0

2
5
,4

2
7
.9

9
 o

f 
£
2
,7

8
1
,7

3
1
.2

6
 t

h
a
t 

w
a
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 

in
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
h
 u

p
lo

a
d
 f

ile
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 b

y 
a
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r.

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 K
 C

o
a
d
 /

 J
 

D
o
w

s
o
n

H
ig

h
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

h
ig

h
lig

h
t 

d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 u

p
lo

a
d
 f

ile
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r,

 a
s
 i
t 

o
n
ly

 

fo
c
u
s
e
s
 o

n
 o

n
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
s
 n

o
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 

a
n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
.

O
ri
g
in

a
lly

 t
h
is

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
ly

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

m
o
u
n
ts

 g
o
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 I

C
O

N
, 

w
h
ic

h
 

e
x
p
la

in
s
 t

h
a
t 

d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
. 

S
in

c
e
 t

h
e
n
, 

th
e
 d

a
ily

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 a

ll 
in

c
o
m

e
. 

A
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

n
o
w

 h
a
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

ll 
in

c
o
m

e
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

 p
re

-a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 c

h
e
c
k
lis

t,
 o

n
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

a
 m

o
n
th

ly
 

b
a
s
is

.

C
o

m
p

le
te

T
h
e
 I

C
O

N
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 G

L
 w

a
s
 o

n
ly

 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 o

n
 a

 d
a
ily

 b
a
s
is

 o
n
 t

h
e
 1

s
t 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
n
 a

ls
o
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 r

e
tr

o
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 b
a
c
k
 t

o
 w

h
e
n
 I

C
O

N
 

w
a
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 -

 1
6

th
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
1
.R

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

a
 m

o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

 a
n
d
 

fo
rm

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
 

F
o
rm

a
 L

o
g
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 e

a
rl
ie

r.
IC

O
N

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

ro
lle

d
 o

u
t 

to
 e

v
e
ry

 r
e
m

a
in

in
g
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 

b
y 

A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
3

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 4
9
: 

C
a
s
h

 R
e
c
e
ip

ti
n

g
: 

D
u

p
li

c
a
te

 R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
s
 (

E
x
.6

1
) 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

in
c
o
m

e
 p

o
s
te

d
 t

o
 d

u
p
lic

a
te

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 g

a
in

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

o
s
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t.

  

W
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 I
C

O
N

 s
ys

te
m

 w
a
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 m
a
n
y 

d
u
p
lic

a
te

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
s
ys

te
m

s
. 

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

o
r 

o
n
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

m
a
y 

b
e
 w

ro
n
g
ly

 p
o
s
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 o

th
e
r 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 d

u
p
lic

a
te

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
. 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 

s
ta

te
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 i
s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

a
n
 i
s
s
u
e
 a

s
 t

h
is

 w
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e

a
rl
y 

in
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 

T
h
e
y 

h
a
v
e
 

a
ls

o
 s

ta
te

d
 t

h
e
 f

u
n
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
y 

e
rr

o
rs

. 
 

K
 C

o
a
d
/J

 D
o
w

s
o
n

L
o
w

T
h
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
ri
s
k
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 p

o
s
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

ro
n
g
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

is
 

n
o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

u
t 

th
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 
ri
s
k
.

A
n
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 w

a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
ll 

d
u
p
lic

a
te

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 w

h
e
re

 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 c

h
e
c
k
e
d
 f

o
r 

w
ro

n
g
 p

a
ym

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 I

C
O

N
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 r

u
le

s
 w

e
re

 a
m

e
n
d
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
is

 c
o
u
ld

 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

h
a
p
p
e
n
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

A
c
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 o

n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 C

iv
ic

a
's

 

S
o
lu

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
is

s
u
e
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
s
o
lv

e
d
 b

y 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
, 

i.
e
.a

ll 
d
u
p
lic

a
te

d
 w

e
re

 r
e
-

re
fe

re
n
c
e
d
,c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 c
o
n
ta

c
te

d
,b

a
n
k
 r

u
le

s
 

a
n
d
 v

a
lid

a
ti
o
n
 w

e
re

 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 &

 

ti
g
h
te

n
e
d
,a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

h
o
ld

e
r 

ta
b
le

s
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
, 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
lin

e
s
 f

o
r 

in
te

rf
a
c
e
s
 &

 

im
p
e
x
e
s
.F

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 s

it
e

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 5
0
: 

B
a
n

k
 R

e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

s
: 

B
a
n

k
 R

e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

s
 n

o
t 

p
re

p
a
re

d
 

o
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
e
d

 o
n

 a
 t

im
e
ly

 b
a
s
is

 (
E

x
.5

6
) 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 B
a
n
k
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 b
a
s
is

. 
 

A
s
 a

t 
2
6
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

re
c
e
n
tl
y 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 C

o
u
n
ty

 F
u
n
d
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 3

1
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 a
n
d
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
2
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 s
ig

n
e
d
 a

s
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 

a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 o

n
 2

7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 b

u
t 

th
e
y 

c
o
n
ta

in
e
d
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 
a
m

o
u
n
ts

 o
f 

it
e
m

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

b
a
n
k
 b

u
t 

n
o
t 

in
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.

 N
o
t 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 a

m
o
u
n
ts

 w
e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

o
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
 

le
v
e
l.

P
ic

k
e
d
 u

p
 b

y 
th

e
 S

p
e
n
n
ym

o
o
r 

te
a
m

 w
h
e
re

 e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
. 

A
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

W
e
e
k
ly

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
/ 

u
p
d
a
te

s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
 d

ra
ft

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
. 

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
 m

a
tc

h
in

g
 

e
x
e
rc

is
e
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y.

 T
h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
 r

e
fe

rs
 t

o
 m

a
te

ri
a
l,
 u

n
re

c
o
n
c
ile

d
 i
te

m
s
, 

th
is

 

re
fe

rs
 t

o
 c

h
e
q
u
e
 a

n
d
 B

A
C

S
 p

a
ym

e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 O

p
e
n
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 s

ys
te

m
 

a
n
d
 n

o
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 O

ra
c
le

. 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

N
o
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 s

in
c
e
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 

s
ta

te
d
 t

h
a
t 

o
n
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 d

is
tr

ic
t,

 n
o
t 

e
a
c
h
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t,

 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 

6
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 I
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

d
is

tr
ic

t 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

N
o
 I

n
c
o
m

e
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 f

u
n
d
 b

a
n
k
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 

T
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 t

h
e
 b

a
n
k
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 w

it
h
in

 I
C

O
N

 i
s
 n

o
t 

w
o
rk

in
g
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
 B

a
n
k
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 b
a
s
is

. 
B

a
n
k
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 b

e
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 e

v
e
n
 t

h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
y 

in
c
lu

d
e
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

n
g
 

it
e
m

s
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 K

 C
o
a
d
 /

 J
 

D
o
w

s
o
n
 /

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 -

 

Ia
n
 S

m
a
ll

H
ig

h
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

b
a
n
k
 o

r 
G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

e
rr

o
rs

 w
ill

 n
o
t 

b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
rr

e
c
te

d
 o

n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 b
a
s
is

.

 A
s
 t

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 n

o
 i
n
te

rf
a
c
e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 u

n
ti
l 
A

p
ri
l-
1
2
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

G
L
 

c
o
d
in

g
 i
n
 O

ra
c
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 i
te

m
s
, 

m
a
n
u
a
l 
jo

u
rn

a
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
s
te

a
d
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
n
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y 

to
 m

a
tc

h
 b

a
n
k
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 (

B
A

C
S

 b
a
tc

h
 

v
a
lu

e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
c
h
e
q
u
e
 a

m
o
u
n
ts

) 
w

it
h
 m

a
n
u
a
l 
jo

u
rn

a
l 
e
n
tr

ie
s
 (

b
a
tc

h
 

a
m

o
u
n
ts

).
 T

h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y 
th

e
 w

/e
 2

0
/5

/1
2
. 

A
s
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
, 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
s
 a

t 
3
0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 

S
in

c
e
 t

h
is

 d
a
te

, 
e
a
c
h
 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 o

p
e
ra

te
d
 o

n
 a

n
 i
m

p
re

s
t 

b
a
s
is

 (
in

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

c
re

d
it
 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

re
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 o

n
 a

 d
a
ily

 b
a
s
is

 o
v
e
r 

to
 t

h
e
 I

n
c
o
m

e
 

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

a
n
d
 a

re
 a

c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f

o
r 

v
ia

 I
C

O
N

).
 A

n
y 

d
e
b
it
s
 t

h
a
t 

h
it
 t

h
e
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

a
re

 c
o
d
e
d
 m

a
n
u
a
lly

 i
n
 O

ra
c
le

. 
T

h
e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
s
 o

n
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 

w
e
re

 b
ro

u
g
h
t 

to
 z

e
ro

 a
s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
.T

h
e
 f

in
a
l 
e
x
e
rc

is
e
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

to
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 G

L
 b

a
la

n
c
e
s
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
, 

re
c
o
n
c
ile

 t
o
 z

e
ro

 a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
1
1
/1

2
. 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 b

C
o

m
p

le
te

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

In
c
o
m

e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t 

in
 1

1
/1

2
 

w
a
s
 n

o
t 

d
o
n
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
a
t 

ye
a
r 

u
n
ti
l 
a
 

m
a
n
u
a
l 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 1
2
 a

n
d
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

fi
n
a
l 
o
n
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

in
 M

a
rc

h
 1

2
. 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 s

u
p
p
lie

d
. 

G
o
in

g
 

fo
rw

a
rd

, 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

o
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 a
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 b
a
s
is

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 5
1
: 

B
a
n

k
 R

e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

s
: 

M
a
te

ri
a
l 

s
u

m
 o

f 
it

e
m

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 b

a
n

k
 

n
o

t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n

 G
e
n

e
ra

l 
L

e
d

g
e
r 

(E
x
. 

5
7
) 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 o

n
ly

 a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 w

h
e
n
 a

ll 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

n
g
 i
te

m
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

  

C
o
m

p
le

te

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
	



��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
 
!
�"
 
!
��
#�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�$
�
%�
�
&
&
�
�
�
�#
�
�'
()
�(
�"
 
!

,
��
*�
�

Page 38



F
in

d
in

g
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
P

ri
o

ri
ty

A
u

d
it

o
r 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

A
c
ti

o
n

s
C

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
:

U
p

d
a
te

:
E

v
id

e
n

c
e

N
o
 i
n
te

rf
a
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 O

p
e
n
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 s

ys
te

m
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

e
x
is

ts
. 

T
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
ra

n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

o
s
te

d
 m

a
n
u
a
lly

. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 l
a
rg

e
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

n
g
 i
te

m
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 B

a
n
k
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 i
te

m
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 B

a
n
k
 

b
u
t 

n
o
t 

ye
t 

p
o
s
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r.

 F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
 t

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 

to
ta

l 
o
f 

£
1
0
0
.9

 m
ill

io
n
. 

S
o
m

e
, 

b
u
t 

n
o
t 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
s
, 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d

o
w

n
 

to
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
l.
 E

v
e
n
 t

h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
s
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

n
g
 i
te

m
s
 e

x
is

t,
 t

h
e
 b

a
n
k
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re

 s
ti
ll 

b
e
in

g
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 -

 K
 C

o
a
d
/J

 

D
o
w

s
o
n

H
ig

h
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

w
ill

 n
o
t 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 

b
a
n
k
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 m

a
y 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 o

th
e
r 

a
re

a
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

b
u
d
g
e
ta

ry
 c

o
n
tr

o
l.
 M

a
n
u
a
l 
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
s
 a

n
 a

d
d
e
d
 r

is
k
 o

f 

e
rr

o
r 

o
r 

m
a
n
ip

u
la

ti
o
n

A
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

n
o
w

 h
a
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

ll 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

 p
re

-a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 c

h
e
c
k
lis

t,
 o

n
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

a
 m

o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

.

C
o

m
p

le
te

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 5
2
: 

S
P

O
C

C
: 

N
o

 r
e
c
o

n
c
il

ia
ti

o
n

 b
e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h

e
 S

P
O

C
C

 s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 

th
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a
b

le
 s

y
s
te

m
 (

E
x
.3

1
) 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 p
e
rf

o
rm

 f
o
rm

a
l 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 S

P
O

C
C

 s
ys

te
m

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 

P
a
ya

b
le

 S
ys

te
m

. 
A

 s
e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

s
h
o
u
ld

 r
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 f

o
rm

a
l 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 P
a
ya

b
le

 s
ys

te
m

 a
n
d
 S

P
O

C
C

 

s
ys

te
m

. 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 s
ta

te
d
 t

h
e
y 

g
a
in

 a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll 

p
a
ym

e
n
ts

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

S
P

O
C

C
 s

ys
te

m
 a

re
 u

p
lo

a
d
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 P
a
ya

b
le

 s
ys

te
m

 f
o
r 

p
a
ym

e
n
t,

 i
f 

n
o
 

e
rr

o
r 

w
a
rn

in
g
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 f

ile
 i
s
 u

p
lo

a
d
e
d
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 P
a
ya

b
le

 -
 C

h
ri
s
 

J
o
n
e
s

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t

h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 P
a
ya

b
le

 s
ys

te
m

 a
n
d
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

w
ill

 n
o
t 

b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
.

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 g

o
v
e
rn

e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 o

f 
O

ra
c
le

, 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
/c

o
n
tr

o
l 
s
h
e
e
ts

 a
re

 

n
o
w

 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
, 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 a

n
d
 f

ile
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 e

a
c
h
 u

p
lo

a
d
. 

 A
n
 A

P
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
o
r 

re
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

C
o

m
p

le
te

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

P
ro

v
id

e
d

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
	



��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
 
!
�"
 
!
��
#�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�$
�
%�
�
&
&
�
�
�
�#
�
�'
()
�(
�"
 
!

-
��
*�
�

Page 39



R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

F
in

d
in

g
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
P

ri
o

ri
ty

A
u

d
it

o
r 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

E
v
id

e
n

c
e
 

P
ro

v
id

e
d

C
o

m
p

le
te

 B
y
:

O
n

 t
a
rg

e
t/

 a
h

e
a
d

 o
f 

ta
rg

e
t/

 

b
e
h

in
d

 t
a
rg

e
t 

/ 
c
o

m
p

le
te

 /
 

n
o

t 
d

u
e

1
R

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 -

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

A
s
s
e
ts

 -
 M

ic
h
a
e
l 
G

ilb
e
y

H
ig

h
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

V
a
lu

e
r 

w
ill

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
ic

h
 a

s
s
e
ts

 

a
re

 r
e
v
a
lu

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 t

o
 a

v
o
id

 a
n
y
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 w

it
h
 

p
a
rt

 v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 a

t 
A

p
ri

l 
a
n
d
 a

t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 (

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
) 

a
re

 f
u
lly

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 a

s
 

w
e
ll 

a
s
 e

s
ta

te
s
 b

e
fo

re
 d

e
c
id

in
g
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

to
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
A

 f
u
ll 

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
 a

t 
1
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2
.

R
o
lli

n
g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
. 

A
g
re

e
 r

o
lli

n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
. 

 

Is
s
u
e
 i
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 A

s
s
e
ts

 -
 

V
a
lu

e
r.

  
C

o
m

p
le

te
 a

g
re

e
d
 

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 a

g
re

e
d
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

T
h
e
 r

o
lli

n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r.

  
T

h
e
 

in
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 V

a
lu

e
r 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
d
, 

re
q
u
e
s
ti
n
g
 

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 

2
8
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
3
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 F

in
a
l 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 T
im

e
ta

b
le

.

2
8
-F

e
b
-1

3
N

o
t 

D
u
e

2
A

s
s
e
t 

R
e
g
is

te
r 

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 L

e
d
g
e
r

Ia
n
 H

e
rb

e
rs

o
n

H
ig

h
R

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 f

ix
e
d
 a

s
s
e
t 

re
g
is

te
r 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
le

d
g
e
r 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

c
lo

s
e
d
o
w

n
 p

e
ri

o
d
 a

n
d
 m

u
s
t 

re
c
o
n
c
ile

 t
o
 a

ll 
fi
g
u
re

s
 i
n
 

th
e
 P

P
E

 n
o
te

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
rs

 a
n
d
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

ra
ft

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 a

s
s
e
t 

re
g
is

te
r 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 

y
e
a
r 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
s
).

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
, 

th
e
y
 

d
id

 n
o
t 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

ly
 v

e
ri

fy
 a

ll 
th

e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

P
P

E
 n

o
te

. 
 F

ro
m

 2
0
1
2
/1

3
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
ill

 b
e
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 v

e
ri

fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
ll 

m
o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 P

P
E

 N
o
te

. 
 I
t 

is
 

a
g
re

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 a

s
s
e
t 

re
g
is

te
r 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
s
),

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
is

 i
s
 a

 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 a

s
 i
t 

re
q
u
ir

e
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
a
l 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
s
 t

o
 c

a
p
it
a
l 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
t 

is
 o

n
ly

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 

fi
n
a
lis

e
 a

t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
. 

 I
t 

is
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

ti
m

e
 

c
o
n
s
u
m

in
g
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 t

o
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

 t
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
s
 

fo
r 

a
d
d
in

g
 v

a
lu

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

s
s
e
t.

C
o
m

p
le

te
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ila

ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

e
n
tr

ie
s
 i
n
 P

P
E

 n
o
te

. 
E

v
a
lu

a
te

 

th
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

o
f 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
s
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r.

3
0
-J

u
n
-1

3
N

o
t 

D
u
e

3
A

s
s
e
t 

R
e
g
is

te
r 

- 

M
ig

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

D
w

e
lli

n
g
s

Ia
n
 H

e
rb

e
rs

o
n

H
ig

h
E

a
s
in

g
to

n
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
w

e
lli

n
g
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 a

re
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 a

 

v
ill

a
g
e
 b

a
s
is

 a
n
d
 n

o
t 

o
n
 a

n
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
a
s
s
e
t 

b
a
s
is

. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 l
o
o
k
 t

o
 m

ig
ra

te
 a

ll 
th

re
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
s
s
e
t 

re
g
is

te
rs

 f
o
r 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
 o

n
to

 t
h
e
 I
P

F
 

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

a
s
 s

o
o
n
 a

s
 i
s
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a
b
le

 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 

th
is

 i
s
s
u
e
. 

S
e
p
a
ra

te
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 -

 2
2
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a
s
 s

u
ff

e
re

d
 s

o
m

e
 

d
e
la

y
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 d

e
la

y
s
 a

t 
C

IP
F

A
 

in
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
 d

a
ta

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
n
fl
ic

ti
n
g
 w

o
rk

lo
a
d
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
. 

 

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

s
s
e
ts

 

w
ill

 b
e
 w

it
h
 C

IP
F

A
 b

y
 2

8
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
3
. 

 T
h
is

 d
e
la

y
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 c

lo
s
in

g
 o

f 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

.

2
8
-F

e
b
-1

3
N

o
t 

D
u
e

4
W

o
rk

in
g
 P

a
p
e
rs

H
ila

ry
 A

p
p
le

to
n

H
ig

h
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

fi
n
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 

w
o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
rs

 a
re

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 b

y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 c

lo
s
e
d
o
w

n
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

 f
u
ll 

s
e
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 

fo
r 

th
e
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
. 

T
h
e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 

c
le

a
r 

a
u
d
it
 t

ra
il 

to
 t

h
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

n
o
te

s
. 

T
h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

ill
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 e
ff

o
rt

 

b
u
t 

I 
a
m

 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
u
d
it
 q

u
e
ri

e
s
 

w
ill

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 a

n
d
 m

o
re

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
tl
y
 s

o
 w

ill
 t

h
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
s
 

o
n
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

’ 
ti
m

e
.

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 a

re
 d

is
c
u
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

a
t 

a
n
d
 e

x
te

n
t 

o
f 

w
o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
rs

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
o
r 

w
o
u
ld

 e
x
p
e
c
t 

to
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

 W
h
e
n
 

d
e
v
is

in
g
 t

h
e
 F

in
a
l 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 C

lo
s
u
re

 o
f 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

, 
it
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

to
 b

u
ild

 i
n
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

im
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
g
o
o
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
rs

. 
 A

 

c
e
n
tr

a
l 
re

p
o
s
it
o
ry

 w
ill

 b
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

ly
 s

ig
n
p
o
s
ts

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
rs

 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 N

o
te

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

.

A
d
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 '
w

o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
' 
in

to
 F

in
a
l 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 

T
im

e
ta

b
le

. 
C

re
a
te

 a
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 

re
p
o
s
it
o
ry

 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
p
o
s
it
 o

f 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
rs

 

re
a
d
y
 f

o
r 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
. 

 E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
rs

 i
s
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
.

3
0
-J

u
n
-1

3
N

o
t 

D
u
e

5
H

R
A

 R
e
n
ts

A
z
h
a
r 

R
a
fi
q

H
ig

h
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
e
re

 u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 b

re
a
k
d
o
w

n
 

o
f 

th
e
 w

e
e
k
ly

 r
e
n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 f

ig
u
re

, 
fo

r 
th

e
 w

e
e
k
 

0
2
/0

1
/2

0
1
2
 –

 0
8
/0

1
/2

0
1
2
, 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 D

u
rh

a
m

 C
it
y
 

H
o
m

e
s
 r

e
n
ts

 s
y
s
te

m
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

n
ly

 o
n
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
w

h
o
 

w
o
rk

s
 o

ff
s
it
e
 h

a
s
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 

a
n
 i
n
te

rr
o
g
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 s
h
o
u
ld

 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
is

 

ta
s
k
.

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 t

h
e
 R

e
n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
  

–
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 w
e
 

a
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 s
y
s
te

m
 r

e
p
o
rt

 

w
h
ic

h
 d

e
ta

ils
 a

ll 
tr

a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

v
e
r 

a
 p

e
ri

o
d
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

 U
n
fo

rt
u
n
a
te

ly
, 

th
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 a

 t
e
x
t 

fi
le

 a
n
d
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 t

o
 s

o
rt

/q
u
e
ry

 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

iz
e
 o

f 
s
u
c
h
 f

ile
s
 c

a
n
 a

ls
o
 n

e
g
a
te

 

m
a
n
u
a
l 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
. 

 A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

u
s
e
s
 a

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r,
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 o
th

e
r 

m
e
a
n
s
 o

f 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 r
e
p
o
rt

s
. 

 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 c

a
n
 

b
e
 g

a
in

e
d
 b

y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

. 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 w
ill

 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
rs

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 w

h
a
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
/i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 A

u
d
it
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 c
a
n
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 

A
rr

a
n
g
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d
 

re
p
o
rt

s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
s
 s

o
o
n
 

a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
. 

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 t
h
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 a

 f
o
rm

a
t 

th
a
t 

a
llo

w
s
 i
n
te

rr
o
g
a
ti
o
n
 i
.e

. 
n
o
t 

a
 t

e
x
t 

fi
le

. 
 C

o
n
s
id

e
r 

h
o
w

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
k
ill

s
 &

 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 t

o
 i
n
te

rr
o
g
a
te

 t
h
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 c

a
n
 b

e
 g

a
in

e
d
. 

3
0
-J

u
n
-1

3
N

o
t 

D
u
e

6
H

R
S

 A
L
M

O
s

A
z
h
a
r 

R
a
fi
q

H
ig

h
B

o
th

 E
a
s
t 

D
u
rh

a
m

 H
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 D

a
le

 a
n
d
 V

a
lle

y
 

H
o
m

e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 t

o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 s
h
o
w

 a
 

c
h
a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

‘S
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t’
 a

n
d
 

‘R
e
p
a
ir

s
 a

n
d
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
’ 
o
n
 t

h
e
ir

 p
e
ri

o
d
ic

 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fe
e
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 m
o
re

 r
o
b
u
s
t 

m
e
th

o
d
 f

o
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 p

re
p
a
re

 t
h
e
 

c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

.

T
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 A

L
M

O
s
 

is
 a

 s
in

g
le

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

in
 r

e
tu

rn
 f

o
r 

a
 s

in
g
le

 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fe
e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 

a
n
d
 w

e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

h
a
v
e
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

re
p
a
ir

s
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

. 
T

h
e
 t

w
o
 A

L
M

O
s
 p

re
p
a
re

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

a
n
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 a

c
t 

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir

 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
 a

 d
is

ti
n
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
t 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 
 T

h
e
 

fi
g
u
re

s
 u

s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

re
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

n
d
 f

u
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
 

A
L
M

O
s
. 

T
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 r
e
q
u
ir

e
d
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 a

re
 r

o
b
u
s
t 

is
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 

S
h
o
w

in
g
 a

 n
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
 i
s
 n

o
t 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 
 T

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 e

n
tr

ie
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 H

R
A

 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

a
re

 d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 

A
L
M

O
 c

o
lle

a
g
u
e
s
.

D
is

c
u
s
s
 t

h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
. 

 

P
ro

v
id

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

o
 f

 t
h
e
 s

p
lit

 o
f 

th
e
 

A
L
M

O
 f

e
e
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

.

3
0
-J

u
n
-1

3
N

o
t 

D
u
e

Page 40



C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d

 r
et

u
rn

s 
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 2
01

1/
12

D
u

rh
am

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
ci

l

Agenda Item 8

Page 41



C
o
n
te
n
ts

B
ac

kg
ro

un
d

01

F
in

di
ng

s

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n
fe

es

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 D
et

ai
l

A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

02 03 04 05

2

A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

05 O
ur

 r
ep

or
ts

 a
re

 p
re

pa
re

d 
in

 th
e 

co
nt

ex
t o

f t
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 

‘S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 a

ud
ite

d 
bo

di
es

’. 
R

ep
or

ts
 a

nd
 

le
tte

rs
 p

re
pa

re
d 

by
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 a
ud

ito
rs

 a
nd

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 to

 m
em

be
rs

 o
r 

of
fic

er
s 

ar
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r 

th
e 

so
le

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

an
d 

w
e 

ta
ke

 n
o 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 a
ny

 m
em

be
r 

or
 o

ffi
ce

r 
in

 th
ei

r 
in

di
vi

du
al

 c
ap

ac
ity

 o
r 

to
 a

ny
 

th
ird

 p
ar

ty
. 

Page 42



0
1

B
ac

kg
ro

un
d

B
ac

kg
ro

un
d

3

Page 43



B
ac
kg
ro
un
d

T
h

e
 s

c
o

p
e

 o
f 

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

W
e 
ar
e 
re
qu
ire
d 
by
 s
ec
tio
n 
28
 o
f t
he
 A
ud
it 
C
om
m
is
si
on
 A
ct
 1
99
8 
to
 c
er
tif
y 
so
m
e 
cl
ai
m
s 
an
d 
re
tu
rn
s 
fo
r 
gr
an
ts
 o
r 
su
bs
id
ie
s 
pa
id
 b
y 
th
e 

go
ve
rn
m
en
t d
ep
ar
tm
en
ts
 a
nd
 p
ub
lic
 b
od
ie
s 
to
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il.
 W

e 
ch
ar
ge
 a
 fe
e 
to
 c
ov
er
 t
he
 fu
ll 
co
st
 o
f m
ee
tin
g 
th
is
 r
eq
ui
re
m
en
t. 

go
ve
rn
m
en
t d
ep
ar
tm
en
ts
 a
nd
 p
ub
lic
 b
od
ie
s 
to
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il.
 W

e 
ch
ar
ge
 a
 fe
e 
to
 c
ov
er
 t
he
 fu
ll 
co
st
 o
f m
ee
tin
g 
th
is
 r
eq
ui
re
m
en
t. 

T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
is
 r
es
po
ns
ib
le
 f
or
 c
om
pi
lin
g 
gr
an
t 
cl
ai
m
s 
an
d 
re
tu
rn
s 
th
at
 fo
llo
w
 th
e 
re
qu
ire
m
en
ts
 a
nd
 t
im
es
ca
le
 s
et
 b
y 
th
e 
gr
an
t p
ay
in
g

de
pa
rt
m
en
ts
. 
T
he
 k
ey
 fe
at
ur
es
 o
f t
he
 c
ur
re
nt
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 a
re
:

•
F
or
 c
la
im
s 
an
d 
re
tu
rn
s 
be
lo
w
 £
10
0,
00
0 
th
e 
C
om
m
is
si
on
 d
oe
s 
no
t 
ce
rt
ify
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
. 

•
F
or
 c
la
im
s 
an
d 
re
tu
rn
s 
be
tw
ee
n 
£1
00
,0
00
 a
nd
 £
50
0,
00
0,
 a
ud
ito
rs
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
 li
m
ite
d 
te
st
s 
to
 a
gr
ee
 f
or
m
 e
nt
rie
s 
to
 u
nd
er
ly
in
g 
re
co
rd
s,
 

bu
t d
o 
no
t u
nd
er
ta
ke
 a
ny
 t
es
tin
g 
of
 e
lig
ib
ili
ty
 o
f e
xp
en
di
tu
re
. 

•
F
or
 c
la
im
s 
an
d 
re
tu
rn
s 
ov
er
 £
50
0,
00
0,
 a
ud
ito
rs
 a
ss
es
s 
th
e 
co
nt
ro
l e
nv
iro
nm
en
t 
fo
r 
pr
ep
ar
in
g 
th
e 
cl
ai
m
 o
r 
re
tu
rn
 t
o 
de
ci
de
 if
 w
e 
ca
n 

pl
ac
e 
re
lia
nc
e 
on
 it
. W

he
re
 w
e 
pl
ac
e 
re
lia
nc
e 
on
 th
e 
co
nt
ro
l e
nv
iro
nm
en
t, 
au
di
to
rs
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
 li
m
ite
d 
te
st
s 
to
 a
gr
ee
 f
ro
m
 e
nt
rie
s
to
 

un
de
rly
in
g 
re
co
rd
s 
bu
t d
o 
no
t 
un
de
rt
ak
e 
an
y 
te
st
in
g 
of
 th
e 
el
ig
ib
ili
ty
 o
f e
xp
en
di
tu
re
 o
r 
da
ta
. W

he
re
 w
e 
ca
nn
ot
 p
la
ce
 r
el
ia
nc
e
on
th
e 

co
nt
ro
l e
nv
iro
nm
en
t, 
au
di
to
rs
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
 a
ll 
th
e 
te
st
s 
in
 th
e 
ce
rt
ifi
ca
tio
n 
in
st
ru
ct
io
n 
an
d 
us
e 
th
ei
r 
as
se
ss
m
en
t o
f 
th
e 
co
nt
ro
l e
nv
iro
nm
en
t 

to
 in
fo
rm
 d
ec
is
io
ns
 o
n 
th
e 
te
st
in
g 
re
qu
ire
d.
 T
hi
s 
m
ea
ns
 w
e 
ca
n 
re
du
ce
 t
he
 a
ud
it 
fe
es
 f
or
 c
er
tif
ic
at
io
n 
w
or
k 
if 
th
e 
co
nt
ro
l e
nv
iro
nm
en
t 
is
 

4

to
 in
fo
rm
 d
ec
is
io
ns
 o
n 
th
e 
te
st
in
g 
re
qu
ire
d.
 T
hi
s 
m
ea
ns
 w
e 
ca
n 
re
du
ce
 t
he
 a
ud
it 
fe
es
 f
or
 c
er
tif
ic
at
io
n 
w
or
k 
if 
th
e 
co
nt
ro
l e
nv
iro
nm
en
t 
is
 

st
ro
ng
. 

•
F
or
 c
la
im
s 
sp
an
ni
ng
 o
ve
r 
m
or
e 
th
an
 o
ne
 y
ea
r, 
th
e 
fin
an
ci
al
 li
m
its
 a
bo
ve
 r
el
at
e 
to
 th
e 
am
ou
nt
 c
la
im
ed
 o
ve
r 
th
e 
en
tir
e 
lif
e 
of
 th
e 
cl
ai
m
 

an
d 
w
e 
te
st
 a
cc
or
di
ng
ly
. T
he
 a
pp
ro
ac
h 
im
pa
ct
s 
on
 th
e 
gr
an
ts
 w
or
k 
w
e 
ca
rr
y 
ou
t, 
pl
ac
in
g 
m
or
e 
em
ph
as
is
 o
n 
th
e 
hi
gh
 v
al
ue
 c
la
im
s.
 

Page 44



B
ac
kg
ro
un
d

D
ur
ha
m
 C
ou
nt
y 
C
ou
nc
il 
(t
he
 C
ou
nc
il)
 r
ec
ei
ve
d 
so
m
e 
 £
98
4 
m
ill
io
n 
in
 fu
nd
in
g 
fr
om
 v
ar
io
us
 g
ra
nt
-p
ay
in
g 
go
ve
rn
m
en
t 
de
pa
rt
m
en
ts
 in
 

20
11
/1
2 
(£
1 
bi
lli
on
 in
 2
01
0/
11
)*
. 
T
he
se
 d
ep
ar
tm
en
ts
at
ta
ch
 c
on
di
tio
ns
 to
 s
om
e 
of
 t
he
se
 g
ra
nt
s 
an
d 
w
he
re
 t
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
ca
nn
ot
 e
vi
de
nc
e 

co
nd
iti
on
s 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
m
et
, 
th
e 
fu
nd
in
g 
ca
n 
be
 a
t 
ris
k.
 

co
nd
iti
on
s 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
m
et
, 
th
e 
fu
nd
in
g 
ca
n 
be
 a
t 
ris
k.
 

It 
is
 th
er
ef
or
e 
im
po
rt
an
t 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
ca
n 
de
m
on
st
ra
te
 t
ha
t i
t: 

•
ha
s 
pu
t 
in
 p
la
ce
 a
de
qu
at
e 
ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
 t
o 
pr
ep
ar
e 
an
d 
au
th
or
is
e 
ea
ch
 c
la
im
 a
nd
 r
et
ur
n 
(w
e 
ca
ll 
th
is
 th
e 
co
nt
ro
l e
nv
iro
nm
en
t)
; 
an
d 

•
ca
n 
ev
id
en
ce
 t
ha
t i
t h
as
 m
et
 t
he
 c
on
di
tio
ns
 a
tta
ch
ed
 to
 e
ac
h 
cl
ai
m
.

T
hi
s 
re
po
rt
 s
um
m
ar
is
es
 t
he
 f
in
di
ng
s 
fr
om
 o
ur
 c
er
tif
ic
at
io
n 
w
or
k 
fo
r 
th
e 
20
11
/1
2 
fin
an
ci
al
 y
ea
r.

5

* 
so
ur
ce
: N
ot
e 
37
 g
ra
nt
 in
co
m
e 
of
 th
e 
20
11
/1
2 
fin
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
, 
ex
cl
ud
in
g 
co
un
ci
l t
ax
 in
co
m
e

Page 45



0
2

F
in

di
ng

s
F

in
di

ng
s

6

Page 46



F
in

di
ng

s

Y
o

u
r 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t

W
e 
as
se
ss
ed
 y
ou
r 
co
nt
ro
l e
nv
iro
nm
en
t 
fo
r 
th
e 
fiv
e 
sp
ec
ifi
ed
 c
la
im
s 
an
d 
re
tu
rn
s:

•
H
ou
si
ng
 a
nd
 C
ou
nc
il 
Ta
x 
B
en
ef
it 
su
bs
id
y:

•
P
oo
lin
g 
of
 h
ou
si
ng
 c
ap
ita
l r
ec
ei
pt
s 
re
tu
rn
;

•
P
oo
lin
g 
of
 h
ou
si
ng
 c
ap
ita
l r
ec
ei
pt
s 
re
tu
rn
;

•
H
R
A
 s
ub
si
dy

•
N
N
D
R
; a
nd

•
Te
ac
he
rs
 P
en
si
on
s.
 

W
e 
di
d 
no
t 
id
en
tif
y 
an
y 
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 w
ea
kn
es
se
s 
in
 y
ou
r 
co
nt
ro
l e
nv
iro
nm
en
t.

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
li
fi

c
a
ti

o
n

s

W
he
re
 o
ur
 c
er
tif
ic
at
io
n 
w
or
k 
id
en
tif
ie
s 
er
ro
rs
 o
n 
a 
cl
ai
m
 o
r 
re
tu
rn
 t
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 a
m
en
d 
th
e 
cl
ai
m
 o
r 
re
tu
rn
 t
o 
co
rr
ec
t 
th
e
er
ro
r. 
 W
he
re
 w
e 

co
nc
lu
de
d 
th
at
 t
he
 c
la
im
 o
r 
re
tu
rn
 is
 n
ot
 fa
irl
y 
st
at
ed
 o
r 
in
 a
cc
or
da
nc
e 
w
ith
 th
e 
as
so
ci
at
ed
 te
rm
s 
an
d 
co
nd
iti
on
s 
w
e 
w
ill
 is
su
e 
a 
qu
al
ifi
ca
tio
n 

le
tte
r 
to
 th
e 
gr
an
t-
pa
yi
ng
 b
od
y 
to
 d
ra
w
 it
s 
at
te
nt
io
n 
to
 o
ur
 fi
nd
in
gs
.

W
e 
ce
rt
ifi
ed
 f
iv
e 
cl
ai
m
s 
an
d 
re
tu
rn
s 
in
 2
01
1/
12
. 
O
ne
 w
as
 s
ub
je
ct
 t
o 
a 
qu
al
ifi
ca
tio
n 
le
tte
r 
bu
t n
o 
am
en
dm
en
t 
(h
ou
si
ng
 a
nd
 c
ou
nc
il
ta
x 

7

W
e 
ce
rt
ifi
ed
 f
iv
e 
cl
ai
m
s 
an
d 
re
tu
rn
s 
in
 2
01
1/
12
. 
O
ne
 w
as
 s
ub
je
ct
 t
o 
a 
qu
al
ifi
ca
tio
n 
le
tte
r 
bu
t n
o 
am
en
dm
en
t 
(h
ou
si
ng
 a
nd
 c
ou
nc
il
ta
x 

be
ne
fit
s 
(H
B
/C
T
B
))
, a
no
th
er
 w
as
 s
ub
je
ct
 to
 a
 q
ua
lif
ic
at
io
n 
le
tte
r 
an
d 
am
en
dm
en
t 
(n
at
io
na
l n
on
 d
om
es
tic
 r
at
es
 (
N
N
D
R
3)
) 
an
d 
a 
th
ird
 w
as
 

su
bj
ec
t t
o 
am
en
dm
en
t 
on
ly
  (
H
R
A
 s
ub
si
dy
).
 

B
ot
h 
th
e 
H
B
/C
T
B
 a
nd
 N
N
D
R
3 
re
tu
rn
s 
 w
er
e 
m
or
e 
co
m
pl
ic
at
ed
 in
 2
01
1/
12
 d
ue
 to
 t
he
 c
om
pl
ex
iti
es
 o
f 
ha
vi
ng
 e
ig
ht
 s
ys
te
m
s 
fo
r 
9 
m
on
th
s 

an
d 
th
e 
si
ng
le
 c
om
bi
ne
d 
sy
st
em
 fo
r 
3 
m
on
th
s.
 D
ur
in
g 
 2
01
2/
13
, 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
ha
s 
co
ns
id
er
ab
ly
 s
tr
en
gt
he
ne
d 
re
co
nc
ili
at
io
n 
an
d 
co
nt
ro
l 

pr
oc
es
se
s.
 T
he
 N
N
D
R
3 
is
 n
ow
 r
un
 a
nd
 r
ec
on
ci
le
d 
on
 a
 m
on
th
ly
 b
as
is
 a
nd
 o
ffi
ce
rs
 h
av
e 
ag
re
ed
 a
 r
an
ge
 o
f w
ho
le
 c
la
im
s 
re
vi
ew
s 
(e
g
se
lf-

em
pl
oy
ed
 c
la
im
s)
 w
hi
ch
 it
 is
 h
op
ed
 w
ill
 r
ed
uc
e 
is
su
es
 r
ai
se
d 
du
rin
g 
C
A
K
E
 te
st
in
g 
on
 t
he
 H
B
/C
T
B
 c
la
im
 o
ve
r 
th
e 
la
st
 c
ou
pl
e 
of
 y
ea
rs
. A
 fu
ll 

su
m
m
ar
y 
of
 th
e 
cl
ai
m
s 
an
d 
re
tu
rn
s 
is
 in
cl
ud
ed
  a
t 
 A
pp
en
di
x 
 A
. 

A
  s
um
m
ar
y 
of
 r
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
ns
 a
re
 in
cl
ud
ed
 a
t  
A
pp
en
di
x 
B
. 

Page 47



0
3

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
F

ee
s

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
F

ee
s

8

Page 48



C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
F

ee
s

F
or
 2
01
1/
12
 t
he
 to
ta
l f
ee
 f
or
 c
er
tif
ic
at
io
n 
of
 c
la
im
s 
an
d 
re
tu
rn
s 
w
as
 £
61
,0
00
 (
£1
03
,5
00
  
20
10
/1
1)
. 
 T
hi
s 
re
pr
es
en
ts
 0
.0
2%
 o
f t
he
va
lu
e 

ce
rt
ifi
ed
 (
0.
03
%
 2
01
0/
11
).
T
hi
s 
a 
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 
on
 f
ee
s 
ch
ar
ge
d 
in
 p
re
vi
ou
s 
ye
ar
s 
as
 a
 r
es
ul
t 
of
:  

•
a 
re
du
ct
io
n 
in
 th
e 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 c
la
im
s 
ab
ov
e 
th
e 
£5
00
,0
00
 t
hr
es
ho
ld
;

•
a
re
du
ct
io
n 
in
 th
e 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 c
la
im
s 
fo
r 
w
hi
ch
 th
e 
A
ud
it 
C
om
m
is
si
on
 h
as
 m
ad
e 
ce
rt
ifi
ca
tio
n 
ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
; 
an
d

•
a
re
du
ct
io
n 
in
 th
e 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 c
la
im
s 
fo
r 
w
hi
ch
 th
e 
A
ud
it 
C
om
m
is
si
on
 h
as
 m
ad
e 
ce
rt
ifi
ca
tio
n 
ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
; 
an
d

•
an
 im
pr
ov
em
en
t 
in
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
 f
or
 p
re
pa
rin
g 
cl
ai
m
s 
an
d 
re
tu
rn
s 
( 
m
os
t 
no
ta
bl
y 
on
 th
e 
ho
us
in
g 
an
d 
co
un
ci
l t
ax
 b
en
ef
it 

cl
ai
m
 w
he
re
 a
dd
iti
on
al
 t
es
tin
g 
by
 c
lie
nt
 s
ta
ff 
pr
io
r 
to
 a
ud
it 
re
su
lte
d 
in
 fe
w
er
 c
as
e 
fa
ils
).

9

Page 49



0
4

A
pp

en
di

x
A

pp
en

di
x

A
 –

S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 c
er

tif
ie

d 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d 

re
tu

rn
s 

1
0

Page 50



0
1

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 –
S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 c

er
tif

ie
d 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s

C
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
tu

rn
s
 a

b
o

v
e
 £

5
0
0
,0

0
0

C
la

im
 o

r

R
e

tu
rn

V
a

lu
e

 (
£

)
W

a
s 

re
li

a
n

ce
 p

la
ce

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t?

 

V
a

lu
e

 o
f 

a
n

y
 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t

W
a

s 
a

 q
u

a
li

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 l

e
tt

e
r 

is
su

e
d

?
R

e
tu

rn
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t?
 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t

s 
m

a
d

e
 £

is
su

e
d

?

H
o

u
si

n
g

 a
n

d
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l T

a
x 

B
e

n
e

fi
t 

S
ch

e
m

e

2
2
8
,8
1
7
,0
7
7

O
u

r 
a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 t

o
 t

h
is

 c
la

im
 d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

a
ll

o
w

 r
e

li
a

n
ce

 

o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
e

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
t.

  T
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 

a
g

re
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 D

w
P

 i
s 

to
 t

e
st

 a
n

 i
n

it
ia

l s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 

e
a

ch
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
ty

p
e

 a
n

d
 e

va
lu

a
te

 r
e

su
lt

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h

a
t 

w
o

rk
. 

n
il

Ye
s

Te
st

e
d

 2
0

 c
a

se
s 

fo
r 

e
a

ch
 o

f 
th

e
 

4
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
ty

p
e

s 
(n

o
n

-H
R

A
, 

re
n

t 

re
b

a
te

s,
 r

e
n

t 
a

ll
o

w
a

n
ce

s 
a

n
d

 

co
u

n
ci

l 
ta

x 
b

e
n

e
fi

t)
, 
w

it
h

 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l t

e
st

in
g

 o
f 

lo
ca

l 

sc
h

e
m

e
 c

a
se

s.
 I

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

co
u

n
ci

l 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

te
st

in
g

 o
f 

4
0

 c
a

se
s 

in
 a

re
a

s 

w
h

e
re

 e
rr

o
rs

 w
e

re
 f

o
u

n
d

 in
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

. 
F
o

u
n

d
 f

e
w

e
r 

d
is

cr
e

p
a

n
ci

e
s 

th
is

 y
e

a
r,

 m
o

st
 

1
1

d
is

cr
e

p
a

n
ci

e
s 

th
is

 y
e

a
r,

 m
o

st
 

w
e

re
 n

o
t 

si
g

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

va
lu

e
s 

th
e

m
se

lv
e

s 
b

u
t 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 

e
xt

ra
p

o
la

te
d

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 w

h
o

le
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 in

cl
u

d
e

d
 in

 t
h

e
 

Q
L.

 T
o

ta
l 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 

e
a

ch
 e

rr
o

r 
is

 c
a

lc
u

la
te

d
 b

y 

a
p

p
ly

in
g

 t
h

e
 e

rr
o

r 
ra

te
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

to
ta

l v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
ff

e
ct

e
d

 

e
n

tr
y 

in
 t

h
e

 c
la

im
 u

si
n

g
 

su
b

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
w

h
e

re
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 

-
to

ta
l e

xt
ra

p
o

la
te

d
 s

u
b

si
d

y 

o
ve

rp
a

ym
e

n
t 

o
f 

£
5

4
8

,2
9

0
. 

Page 51



0
1

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 –
S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 c

er
tif

ie
d 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
C

la
im

s
 a

n
d

 r
e
tu

rn
s
 a

b
o

v
e
 £

5
0
0
,0

0
0

C
la

im
 o

r

R
e

tu
rn

V
a

lu
e

 (
£

)
W

a
s 

re
li

a
n

ce
 p

la
ce

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t?

 

V
a

lu
e

 o
f 

a
n

y
 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t

W
a

s 
a

 q
u

a
li

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 l

e
tt

e
r 

is
su

e
d

?
R

e
tu

rn
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t?
 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t

s 
m

a
d

e
 £

is
su

e
d

?

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l N
o

n
 

–
D

o
m

e
st

ic
 

R
a

te
s 

re
tu

rn

1
0
7
,4
1
5
,0
1
0

N
o

 –
A

 c
o

m
p

le
x
 c

la
im

, 
w

it
h

 a
 l
a

rg
e

 v
o

lu
m

e
 o

f 
tr

a
n

sa
ct

io
n

s 

so
 a

 h
ig

h
 p

o
ss

ib
il
it

y
 o

f 
h

u
m

a
n

 e
rr

o
r.

 

1
,4
9
8
,1
2
1

D
a

ta
 m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 

is
su

e
. 

M
e

rg
e

r 
 

tw
o

 N
o

rt
h

ga
te

 

si
te

s
in

to
 t

h
e

 

n
e

w
 C

iv
ic

a

sy
st

e
m

 g
a

ve
 

ri
se

 t
o

 

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 

N
N

D
R

 r
e

tu
rn

 

a
n

d
 

Ye
s

T
h

e
 Q

L 
re

fe
rr

e
d

 t
o

 e
rr

o
rs

 i
n

 

sy
st

e
m

 r
e

p
o

rt
s 

u
se

d
 t

o
 

co
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e

 r
e

tu
rn

 a
n

d
 t

o
 a

 

fe
w

 e
rr

o
rs

 n
o

te
d

 in
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
p

le
 

te
st

e
d

 o
n

 r
a

te
a

b
le

 v
a

lu
e

s,
  

sm
a

ll
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 r

a
te

 r
e

li
e

f 
g

iv
e

n
, 

in
co

m
p

le
te

 e
vi

d
e

n
ce

 t
o

 

su
p

p
o

rt
 c

la
im

 f
o

r 
sm

a
ll

 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 r
a

te
 r

e
li

e
f 

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

s 

a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 f
o

r 
e

m
p

ty
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s.

1
2

a
n

d
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

Te
a

ch
e

rs
’ 

P
e

n
si

o
n

 

re
tu

rn

2
9
,5
4
1
.6
6
0

N
o

 –
A

 h
ig

h
 v

a
lu

e
 c

la
im

 w
it

h
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 v
o

lu
m

e
 o

f 

tr
a

n
sa

ct
io

n
s.

 Q
L 

is
su

e
d

 i
n

 p
re

vi
o

u
s 

ye
a

r.
 

N
il

N
o

P
o

o
li

n
g

 o
f 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 

ca
p

it
a

l 

re
ce

ip
ts

2
,0
8
4
,7
5
9

N
o

 -
S
a

ti
sf

a
ct

o
ry

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 b
u

t 
fi

g
u

re
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 

cl
a

im
 c

o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 a
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

so
u

rc
e

s.
 

N
il

N
o

H
R

A
 s

u
b

si
d

y
-4
,1
9
9
,4
8
6

N
o

 -
B

e
ca

u
se

 o
f 

th
e

 t
e

ch
n

ic
a

l 
n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

is
 c

la
im

 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
le

x 
tr

a
n

sa
ct

io
n

s 
a

n
d

 c
a

lc
u

la
ti

o
n

s.
 

-4
5

1
,1

6
8

N
o

To
ta

l
3
6
3
,6
5
9
,0
2
0

Page 52



0
1

A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 –
S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns

R
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty

A
g

re
e

d
 a

ct
io

n
D

a
te

 f
o

r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
t

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 o
ff

ic
e

r

ty
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

t

io
n

M
o

re
 r

ig
o

ro
u

s 
ch

e
ck

s 
o

f 

cl
a

im
s 

b
e

fo
re

 s
u

b
m

is
si

o
n

 

to
 t

h
e

 G
ra

n
ts

 c
o

o
rd

in
a

to
r

A
ll

 c
la

im
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

 

co
m

p
il

e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 e

n
su

re
 

th
a

t 
cl

a
im

s 
a

re
 c

o
m

p
il
e

d
 

in
 li

n
e

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 g
ra

n
ts

 

p
ro

to
co

l.
 C

la
im

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 c
ro

ss
-r

e
fe

re
n

ce
d

 t
o

 

th
e

 r
e

le
va

n
t 

C
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 

In
st

ru
ct

io
n

s 
a

n
d

e
vi

d
e

n
ce

 p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

H
M

o
re

 r
ig

o
ro

u
s 

ch
e

ck
s 

o
f 

cl
a

im
s 

b
e

fo
re

 s
u

b
m

is
si

o
n

 

to
 t

h
e

  
G

ra
n

ts
 C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

r.

A
ll

 c
la

im
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

 c
o

m
p

il
e

rs
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 

cl
a

im
s 

a
re

 c
o

m
p

il
e

d
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 g

ra
n

ts
 

p
ro

to
co

l.

A
 n

o
te

 t
o

 b
e

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

d
 o

n
 f

il
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 

cl
a

im
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
tu

rn
s 

 o
f 

th
e

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n

 w
h

ic
h

 t
a

ke
s 

p
la

ce
 a

t 
th

e
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 a

t 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 g
ra

n
t 

is
 s

ig
n

e
d

 

b
y 

th
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
se

d
 s

ig
n

a
to

ry

2
0

1
2

-1
3

G
ra

n
ts

 c
o

o
rd

in
a

to
r 

–
se

rv
ic

e
 

fi
n

a
n

ce

1
3

e
vi

d
e

n
ce

 p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 h

a
ve

 c
h

e
ck

e
d

 

th
e

 c
la

im
 b

e
fo

re
 

su
b

m
is

si
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 G
ra

n
ts

 

C
o

o
rd

in
a

to
r.

A
 n

o
te

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

in
cl

u
d

e
d

 o
n

 f
il
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

a
u

d
it

e
d

 c
la

im
s 

a
n

d
 

re
tu

rn
s 

 o
f 

th
e

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n

 

w
h

ic
h

 t
a

ke
s 

p
la

ce
 a

t 
th

e
 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

 a
t 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
 

g
ra

n
t 

is
 s

ig
n

e
d

 b
y 

th
e

 

a
u

th
o

ri
se

d
 s

ig
n

a
to

ry
.

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Audit Committee 
 

21 February 2013 
 

Co-opted Members to the Audit 
Committee 

 

 

 
 

Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. To seek the views of members on the appointment of co-opted 

Members to the Audit Committee and make recommendations to 
Council. 

 
Background 
 
2. On 10 December 2007 the Audit Committee agreed to appoint 2 co-

opted non-voting members to the Audit Committee for a three year 
fixed contract. The co-options accorded with CIPFA’s “Audit 
Committees: practical guidance for local authorities”. 

 
3. Following an advert in the press inviting applications, prospective 

candidates were interviewed on 28 February 2008 and two co-opted 
Members were appointed. 

 
4. Their appointments were due to expire on 28 February 2011, and the 

Audit Committee agreed on 6 January 2011 to make recommendations 
to Council to re-appoint the two existing co-opted members until May 
2013. The Council agreed to the committee’s recommendation. 

 
5. The views of the Committee are sought on whether to recommend that 

the Council extend further their fixed term contracts, and if so for how 
long, or whether to place an advert in the local press and seek 
applications. There is nothing in the Council’s guidance to indicate that 
existing members could not be re-appointed. 

 
6. If the Committee was minded to seek new applications it is suggested 

that a process be recommended to the Council whereby an advert be 
placed in the press, and that the Chairman and Vice-Chairman be 
authorised to draw up a short-list in consultation with the Corporate 
Director, Resources, the Head of Internal Audit, and Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services; with selected applicants to be interviewed by the 
Audit Committee. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 55



Recommendation 
 

7. That the Committee request that Council either:- 
 

(i) Agree to make new appointments, advertise the posts, and 
delegate the appointments to the Audit Committee, or 

 
(ii)  Extend the appointment of the current co-opted members until a 
fixed date. 
 
 
 
 

Contact:  Ros Layfield          Tel:    03000 269 708 

 

Page 56



 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 
Finance-  
Travelling and subsistence costs of the successful applicants in attending 
meetings/ training events of the Audit Committee, plus advertising and printing 
costs can be met from within existing budgets. 
 
Staffing-  
None 
 
Risk-  
None 
 
Equality and Diversity/ Public Sector Equality Duty-  
A recruitment process would be carried out in accordance with the Council’s 
recruitment procedure. 
 
Accommodation-  
None 
 
Crime and disorder-  
None 
 
Human rights-  
None 
 
Risk-  
None 
 
Consultation- Risk-  
None 
 
Procurement- Risk-  
None 
 
Disability Issues-  
A recruitment process would be carried out in accordance with the Council’s 
recruitment procedure. 
 
Legal Implications-  
None 
 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 7 

 

Audit Committee 
 

21st February 2013 
 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
Quarter Ended 31st December 2012 
  

 

 

 
 

Report of Manager of Internal Audit & Risk 

 
PURPOSE OF THE REPORT   

 
1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members of work carried out by Internal 

Audit during the period July to December 2012.  

2 The report aims to: 

• Provide a high level of assurance, or otherwise, on internal controls 
operated across the Council that have been subject to audit 

• Advise you of significant issues where controls need to improve to 
effectively manage risks 

• Advise you of any other types of audit work carried out such as grant 
certification or consultancy reviews where an assurance on the control 
environment may not be applicable 

• Advise you of amendments to planned work 

• Advise you of unplanned work carried out or to be carried out 

• Track progress on the response to audit reports and the 
implementation of agreed audit recommendations 

• Advise you of any changes to the audit process 

• Provide an update on our performance indicators comparing actual 
performance against planned  

 
3 Appendices attached to this report are summarised below.  Those marked 

with an asterisk are not for publication (Exempt information under Part 3 of 
Schedule 12a to the Local Government Act 1972, paragraph 3.) 

Appendix 1 Report Implications 
Appendix 2  Background to preparation and approval of the 2012/13 plan 
Appendix 3  Audit methodology 
Appendix 4  Progress on plan  
Appendix 5 Final reports issued this quarter 
Appendix 6 High and medium priority actions raised and implemented 
Appendix 7 *Overdue actions 
Appendix 8 * Limited or no assurance opinion audits 

Agenda Item 10

Page 59



Page 2 of 7 

Appendix 9    Performance Indicators 
 

BACKGROUND 

4 Internal Audit is an independent, objective assurance and consultancy activity 
designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. 

5 The background to the preparation and approval of the 2012/13 annual audit 
plan and the approved risks based audit strategy to be applied to deliver it is 
attached at Appendix 2. 

6 The audit methodology used to determine the risk priority for addressing audit 
findings and how we arrive at our assurance opinions is given in Appendix 3.  

PROGRESS AGAINST PLANNED WORK 

7 A summary of the approved annual plan for each service grouping, updated to 
reflect work in progress and/or brought forward from last year’s plan, is 
attached at Appendix 4.  The status of each audit as at 31st December 2012 is 
indicated.   

8 The status of each type of planned audit, as shown in Appendix 4, is 
summarised below: 

Status  Assurance Advice & 
Consultancy  

Counter Fraud 

Not Yet Started 15 2 8 

Planning & Preparation 22 3 1 

TOR agreed 14 1 2 
Fieldwork in progress 25 17 4 
Complete (draft or final 
report stage) 

39 7 2 

Defer to 2013/14 1 0 0 
Cancel 1 2 0 
Total 117 32 17 

9 Where work is finalised the resultant assurance opinion, if applicable, is also 
shown in Appendix 4. 

10 A summary of final audit reports issued this quarter is given in Appendix 5.  

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES ARISING THIS QUARTER 

Amendments to the approved 2012/13 Audit Plan  

11 The following amendments to planned work have been agreed with Corporate 
Directors this quarter: 

Service 
Grouping 

Audit  Audit Type Type of 
Amendment 

Reason 

ACE Internet Assurance Defer to 
2013/14 

As the development of the 
new internet site has been 
delayed, the proposed 
assurance work will no longer 
be required during 2012/13. A 
request has been made to 

Page 60



Page 3 of 7 

Service 
Grouping 

Audit  Audit Type Type of 
Amendment 

Reason 

defer this to 2013/14. 

CAS POPPIE 
System 
Review 

Assurance Cancellation  This planned assurance audit, 
carried forward from last 
year’s plan, has been 
cancelled as the responsibility 
for the system is to transfer to 
DCC as part of the public 
health transfer, It was agreed 
that assurance on the 
management of identified 
risks would be considered as 
part of the wider  Public 
Health Transition due 
diligence work being 
undertaken. 

NS Cash 
receipting and 
reconciliation 
arrangements 
– Indoor 
Facilities. 

Advice & 
Consultancy 

Cancellation Initially a service request, it 
was agreed with the Strategic 
Manager - Indoor Sport & 
Leisure that the audit would 
be cancelled as identified 
risks to service objectives had 
been considered as part of 
the Gym Management review 
and there was no perceived 
added value of doing any 
further testing at this time. 

RED Small Projects Advice & 
Consultancy 

Cancellation  Initially a service request, it 
was agreed that there was no 
longer a need to carry out this 
work as the issue of concern 
had already been addressed 
internally. 

12 29 new unplanned reviews have been added to the plan this quarter.  Of 
these 19 relate to investigations. Details of investigations will be provided in 
the 6 monthly fraud and irregularity update report. 

13 The 10 new unplanned reviews added to address new or emerging risks from 
the contingency provision within the plan are:  

Service 
Grouping 

Audit  Audit Type 

ACE CIC Grant Application Advice & Consultancy 
CAS Durham Federation – School 

Request 
Assurance 

CAS Control Risk Self Assessment in 
Schools 

Advice & Consultancy 

NS Quality Management System – 2nd 
Visit 

Advice & Consultancy 

NS Cash collection at outside events Advice & Consultancy 
NS Competition Line Contract Review 

- Invoice Reconciliation 
Advice & Consultancy 

RES PCC election Advice & Consultancy 
RES County Council elections Advice & Consultancy 

RES RIPA Assurance 
RES ICON Cash Management V11 

Project  
Advice and Consultancy 

Page 61



Page 4 of 7 

Outstanding Management Responses to Draft Reports 

14 Responses to the following draft reports were overdue as at 31 December 
2012. 

Service 
Grouping 

Audit Date 
Issued 

Key 
Contact  

Assurance 
Opinion 

Comment 

CAS Procurement 
in Schools 

30 Oct 
2012 

Head of 
Education  

Moderate IA progressing 
matters with 
Corporate 
Procurement and 
School Funding 
Managers. 

CAS St. Mary 
Magdalene 
R.C. Aided 
Primary 
School 

27 Nov 
2012 

Head 
Teacher 

Substantial Final report issued 
25 January 2013. 

 
Reports Awaiting Sign Off from Heads of Service 

15 The following draft reports have been reviewed by the key contact but are 
awaiting sign off from the relevant Head of Service. 

Service 
Grouping 

Audit Date 
Issued 

Date 
Response 
provided 
by key 
contact 

Issued 
to Head 
of 
Service 

Assurance 
Opinion 

Comment 

NS Gala 
Theatre 

13 Nov 
2012 

13 Dec 
2012 

11 Jan 
2013 

Moderate IA progressing 
matters with 
responsible 
Head of 
Service. 

NS Onsite 
procedures 
for disposal 
of waste 
materials 

24 Oct 
2012 

16 Nov 
2012 

03 Dec 
2012 

Limited IA met with 
responsible 
Heads of 
Service / 
Managers on 
08 Feb 2013 
to progress. 

Response to audit findings and recommendations 

16 Details of the numbers of High and Medium priority ranking recommendations 
raised and overdue, by Service Grouping and Audit Year, are given in 
Appendix 6. A summary of progress on actions due by the 31 December 2012 
is given below: 

 

 

 

Page 62



Page 5 of 7 

Service Actions 
Due by 
31/12/12 

Overdue 
Actions by 
Original 
Target 
Dates  

Overdue 
Actions 
where 
revised date 
agreed  

Revised 
overdue 
actions 

  No  % No  % No  % 
ACE 9 2 22 2 100 0 0 

CAS 113 11 10 10 91 1 1 
NS 377 19 5 10 53 12 3 
RED 296 10 3 9 90 1 0 
RES 340 39 11 39 100 7 2 
TOTAL 1135 81 7 70 86 21 2 

17 Details of all 81 actions overdue against original target dates are provided in 
Appendix 7. Your attention is drawn to the 21 actions, which are overdue by 
either the original target date or revised target date where agreed.   These are 
highlighted in bold in Appendix 7.  

18 Those recommendations reported last quarter as overdue that are still overdue 
are highlighted in bold italics.  

Limited / No Assurance Opinion Audits   

19 7 audits were finalised in this quarter which resulted in an inadequate 
assurance opinion (limited or no assurance opinion). Action plans have been 
agreed and either have been or are being implemented to address all of the 
control weaknesses identified. 

20 A summary of the key findings from each of these reviews is provided in 
Appendix 8. 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 
21 A summary of our actual performance at the end of December compared to 

agreed target performance indicators is given in Appendix 9. 
 
22 This is the second quarter of the 2012/13 audit plan (July 2012 - June 2013). 

39 out of 117 planned assurance reviews are complete. Work has 
commenced on another 61 which on average is estimated to be 36% 
complete. Consequently after the 6 months performance, the target to deliver 
90% of planned assurance reviews is on track. However some slippage on 
delivery is expected in the next six months due to a reduction in the forecast 
of audit days available for the rest of the year. This is primarily due to: 
 

• Temporary secondment (promotion) of principal auditor  

• Unsuccessful attempt to recruit an additional IT Auditor 

• Higher than forecast sickness absence  

• More resources required for counter fraud and irregularity work, 
especially in relation to the National Fraud Initiative exercise and 
responsive investigations 

• Some planned reviews in new areas requiring more resource than 
originally estimated. 

 

Page 63



Page 6 of 7 

23 The gap between the revised forecast of audit days required to deliver the 
plan and the revised forecast of audit days available will be managed through 
a combination of agency staff and / or work being allocated to our Internal 
Audit partner, PriceWaterhouseCoopers. 
 

24 In the longer term it is intended to fill the shortfall in IT audit skills through a 
combination of creating a trainee IT auditor post, to work alongside the 
existing in house IT auditor, and buying in specialist technical expertise 
through a call off consultancy agreement following a targeted procurement 
exercise.  

 
  
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

25 Members are asked to note,: 

• The amendments made to the 2012/13 Annual Audit Plan 

• Work undertaken by Internal Audit during the quarter ended December 
2012 and  

• Note the progress made by service managers in responding to the 
work of Internal Audit 

  

Contact:  Avril Wallage  Tel: 03000 269645  

Page 64



Page 7 of 7 

 
Appendix 1:  Implications 
 
Finance 
 
There are no direct financial implications arising for the Council as a result of this 
report, although we aim through our audit planning arrangements to review core 
systems in operation and ensure through our broad programme of work that the 
Council has made safe and efficient arrangements for the proper administration of its 
financial affairs. 

Staffing 
 
None 
 
Risk 
 
This report requires no decision and so a risk assessment has not been carried out  
 
Equality and Diversity 
 
None 
 
Accommodation 
 
None 
 
Crime and disorder 
 
None 
 
Human rights 
 
None 
 
Consultation 
 
None 
 
Procurement 
 
None 
 
Disability Discrimination Act 
 
None 
 
Legal Implications 
 
None   
 

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
Appendix 2 
 

Background to the preparation of the 2012/13 Annual Audit Plan 
 

1 The 2012/13 annual audit plan was developed in consultation with each 
service grouping’s senior management team and was endorsed by CMT and 
the Audit Committee on the 6th June 2012 and the 28th June 2012 
respectively.  

2 The planned assurance work included in the plan reflects the agreed audit 
strategy to review each key service activity and each key system over a five 
year rolling programme.   In applying a risk based approach we aim to support 
managers embed operational/inherent risk management through the 
development of Control Risk Assessments (CRAs).  

3 Through the development of CRAs in consultation with nominated key 
contacts, as part of the planning and preparation stage of each planned 
assurance review, we will add value by helping service managers to: 

• Identify and assess risks 

• Document service objectives, risks and existing controls 

• Assess the adequacy of the existing control framework (control design) 
and identify additional controls to improve operational risk management 
and /or highlight controls that are unnecessary 

• Identify and assess the reliability of assurance provided from other 
sources to avoid any unnecessary duplication and  highlight any 
assurance gaps 

4 Through independent testing of expected controls we add value by providing 
reliable and objective assurance that controls established by managers are 
operating in practice and that they are effective in reducing the likelihood and / 
or impact of agreed risks occurring. 

5 Through the identification and assessment of operational risks we are also 
able to add value to the strategic risk management process. This is done by    
providing assurance that controls identified to manage strategic risks are both 
adequate and effective. Potential new or emerging strategic risks may also be 
identified.  

6 Applying a risk based audit approach ensures that audit resources are 
focused on the right things.   The planning and preparation stage of each 
audit review with the right key contact(s) is essential. It is not until this 
planning and preparation stage is complete that we can determine the scope 
and timing of each audit.   

7 Following initial planning and preparation discussions, draft terms of reference 
specifying the proposed scope of each audit will be issued for the agreement 
of the key contact.   The planned start date (fieldwork) and planned 

Page 67



Page 2 of 2 

completion date (issue of draft report) will also be shown. It should be noted 
that wherever possible any timing preferences expressed by service 
managers at the audit planning and preparation stage will be considered 
when determining planned start dates but these cannot be guaranteed. 

8 Confirmation of actual start dates and expected completion dates will be given 
to key contacts prior to fieldwork commencing.  It should be noted that these 
timescales are subject to the following assumptions: 

• All relevant documentation, including source data, reports and procedures 
will be made available promptly on request 

!"" Staff and management will make reasonable time available for interviews 

and will promptly follow-up questions or requests for documentation and 

!"" Assistance will be available in scheduling meetings and interviews where 

required 

9 Should audit staff not be able to commence the fieldwork as planned, the key 
contact will be advised accordingly. Wherever possible advance notice will be 
given but there may be circumstances when this cannot be done e.g 
unplanned leave of absence. Likewise, we request that should a key contact 
become aware of something that may prevent the fieldwork starting as 
planned that they immediately let us know so that if necessary audit resources 
can be reallocated. 

10 Should any problems be encountered in progressing an audit these will be 
reported to the relevant head of service and /or the Corporate Director, and if 
necessary the Audit Committee. 

11 In accordance with our Internal Audit Charter, we will give an assurance 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal controls each time we complete an 
assurance review. 

12 The % of planned assurance reviews completed from the annual audit plan is 
one of the corporate basket of indicators which is monitored through the 
Council’s quarterly performance reporting framework and is challenged by the 
Audit Committee. Failure to deliver the agreed plan may prevent an annual 
audit opinion being given and the Council failing to meet its statutory 
requirements. It will also delay the embedding of operational risk management 
exposing the Council to potential greater risk. 

13 It is managers’ responsibility to ensure that effective controls operate within 
their service areas. To provide independent assurance that adequate 
progress is made in the implementation of agreed recommendations at the 
appropriate service operational level, all high and medium recommendations 
contained within actions plans within individual audit reports are followed up 
by internal audit.  The method of audit follow up will vary according to the 
priority of the recommendation.  In addition, listings of all recommendations 
outstanding at the end of each month are produced and issued to nominated 
representatives to assist your own internal monitoring processes.  

14 Audit recommendations are allocated a priority ranking reflecting the 
significance of the audit findings to which they relate. 

Page 68



A
S

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 O

P
IN

IO
N

 M
E

T
H

O
D

O
L

O
G

Y
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 

F
in

d
in

g
s

 
 In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
fi
n

d
in

g
s
 a

re
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
ir
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
n
d
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 
ra

ti
o

n
a
le

 i
n
 t
h

e
 t

a
b
le

s
 b

e
lo

w
: 

 Im
p

a
c
t 

R
a
ti

n
g

 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
R

a
ti

o
n

a
le

 

C
ri

ti
c
a
l 

 
A

 f
in

d
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

c
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

: 
 

 
C

ri
ti

c
a
l 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

(S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
is

ru
p
ti
o
n
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

) 

 
C

ri
ti

c
a
l 

m
o
n
e
ta

ry
 o

r 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

im
p
a
c
t 

(I
n
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
5
%

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 o

r 
e

x
p
e

n
d
it
u
re

 b
u
d
g

e
t 

) 
  

 
C

ri
ti

c
a
l 

b
re

a
c
h
 i
n
 l
a
w

s
 a

n
d
s
 r

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 t
h

a
t 

c
o
u
ld

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

fi
n
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
e
q

u
e

n
c
e
s
 

(I
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o

n
 b

y
 r

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 b
o
d
y
 o

r 
fa

ilu
re

 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g

 s
ta

tu
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
g
im

e
) 

 

 
C

ri
ti

c
a
l 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

(S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

re
p
u
ta

ti
o
n

a
l 
d

a
m

a
g
e
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

/c
e
n
tr

a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e

n
t 

a
n
d
/o

r 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 f
ro

m
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

) 
 

C
ri

ti
c
a
l 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t

h
e
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 o

r 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

 
(L

o
s
s
 o

f 
lif

e
/s

e
ri

o
u
s
 i
n
ju

ry
 t
o
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 o

r 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

) 

M
a
jo

r 
A

 f
in

d
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

c
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

: 

 
M

a
jo

r 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

(D
is

ru
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

) 
 

M
a
jo

r 
m

o
n
e
ta

ry
 o

r 
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
im

p
a
c
t 

(1
-5

%
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 o

r 
e
x
p
e

n
d
it
u
re

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

) 
  

 
M

a
jo

r 
b
re

a
c
h
 i
n
 l
a
w

s
, 

re
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 o

r 
in

te
rn

a
l 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

(n
o
n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
jo

r 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n

a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
m

o
n
e
ta

ry
 o

r 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
r 

re
p
u
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
) 

  
 

M
a
jo

r 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t
h

e
 r

e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
/o

r 
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 f
ro

m
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

  

M
in

o
r 

A
 f

in
d

in
g

 t
h

a
t 

c
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

: 
 

M
in

o
r 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

(V
e
ry

 l
it
tl
e
 o

r 
n
o
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

) 

 
M

in
o

r 
m

o
n
e
ta

ry
 o

r 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

im
p
a
c
t 

(l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 1

%
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 o

r 
e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
u

d
g
e
t 

) 
  

 
M

in
o

r 
b
re

a
c
h
 i
n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

(n
o
n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 v

e
ry

 l
it
tl
e
 o

r 
n
o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
m

o
n
e
ta

ry
 o

f 
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
r 

re
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
) 

  L
ik

e
li

h
o

o
d

 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
c
ri

te
ri

a
 

P
ro

b
a
b

le
 

H
ig

h
ly

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 e

v
e

n
t 

w
ill

 o
c
c
u
r 

(>
5
0
%

 c
h
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
o
c
c
u
rr

in
g
) 

P
o

s
s
ib

le
  

R
e

a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 l
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 e

v
e
n
t 

w
ill

 o
c
c
u
r 

(1
0
%

 -
 5

0
%

 c
h
a

n
c
e
 o

f 
o
c
c
u
rr

in
g
) 

U
n

li
k
e
ly

 
T

h
e
 e

v
e
n
t 
is

 n
o
t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o
 o

c
c
u
r 

(<
1
0
%

 c
h
a

n
c
e
 o

f 
o
c
c
u
rr

in
g
) 

Page 69



A
S

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 O

P
IN

IO
N

 M
E

T
H

O
D

O
L

O
G

Y
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 

O
v
e

ra
ll

 F
in

d
in

g
 R

a
ti

n
g

  
 

 T
h

is
 g

ri
d
 i
s
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
 t
h

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
fi
n
d

in
g
 r

a
ti
n

g
. 
 

 

L
IK

E
L

IH
O

O
D

  
 

 
 

P
ro

b
a
b
le

 
M

 
H

 
H

 

P
o
s
s
ib

le
 

L
 

M
 

H
 

U
n
lik

e
ly

 
L

 
L
 

L
 

 
M

in
o
r 

M
a
jo

r 
C

ri
ti
c
a
l 

 
IM

P
A

C
T

  
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 o
f 

o
u

r 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 

 W
e
 d

e
fi
n
e

 t
h
e
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 o
f 

o
u

r 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 e
a
c
h
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
fi
n

d
in

g
 a

s
 f
o
llo

w
s
; 

 H
ig

h
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
m

p
e

ra
ti
v
e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
/s

y
s
te

m
/p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

e
x
p

o
s
e
d
 t
o
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
ri

s
k
 f
ro

m
 w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
o
r 

k
e
y
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 
M

e
d

iu
m

 
A

c
ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
/s

y
s
te

m
/p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

e
x
p
o
s
e
d

 t
o
 m

a
jo

r 
ri

s
k
 f
ro

m
 w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 

L
o

w
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
/s

y
s
te

m
/p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 i

s
 n

o
t 

e
x
p
o
s
e
d
 t

o
 m

in
o

r 
ri

s
k
 f
ro

m
 w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

  
A

c
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 d

e
s
ir

a
b
le

 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 m

in
o
r 

w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 i

n
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

th
a
t 

if
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

m
a
y
 n

o
t 

re
d

u
c
e

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
r 

lik
e
lih

o
o
d
 o

r 
a
 r

is
k
 o

c
c
u
rr

in
g
 b

u
t 

s
h
o

u
ld

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 e

n
h
a

n
c
e

d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

o
r 

b
e
tt
e
r 

v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
. 
  

 
 O

v
e

ra
ll

 A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 O

p
in

io
n

  
 B

a
s
e

d
 u

p
o
n
 t

h
e
 r

a
ti
n
g

s
 o

f 
fi
n
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
d
it
 a

s
 s

u
m

m
a
ri

s
e
d
 i
n
 r

is
k
 m

a
tr

ix
 a

b
o

v
e
 w

e
 d

e
fi
n

e
 t
h

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
c
o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

 o
p

in
io

n
s
: 

  F
u

ll
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
o
u
n

d
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
/s

y
s
te

m
/s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a

g
e
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
s
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

(N
o
 H

, 
M

 o
r 

L
 f
in

d
in

g
s
/r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o
n
s
) 

S
u

b
s
ta

n
ti

a
l 
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
o
u
n
d
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

o
l,
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 s
o
m

e
 w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 p

u
t 

s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

t 
m

in
o
r 

ri
s
k
. 
(N

o
 H

 
o
r 

M
 f
in

d
in

g
s
/r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d

a
ti
o
n

s
) 

  

M
o

d
e
ra

te
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
W

h
ils

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 b

a
s
ic

a
lly

 a
 s

o
u
n
d
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

o
l,
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 s
o
m

e
 w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 p

u
t 

s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

t 
m

a
jo

r 
ri

s
k
. 
(N

o
 H

 f
in

d
in

g
s
/r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o
n
s
) 

L
im

it
e
d

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
T

h
e
re

 
a
re

 
w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 

in
 

k
e
y
 

a
re

a
s
 

in
 

th
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 

o
f 

c
o
n
tr

o
l,
 

w
h
ic

h
 

p
u
t 

th
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

a
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

ri
s
k
.(

H
 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
/r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
) 

N
o

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
is

 w
e
a
k
 a

s
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 n

u
m

e
ro

u
s
  
k
e
y
 a

re
a
s
 a

re
 i
n
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 l
e

a
v
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

p
e
n
 t
o
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
ri

s
k
 o

f 
e
rr

o
r 

o
r 

a
b

u
s
e
 

 

Page 70



S
e
rv

ic
e

A
u

d
it

 R
e
f

R
e
v
ie

w
 T

y
p

e
S

ta
tu

s
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 O

p
in

io
n

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E

D
e
fe

rr
e
d

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

S
c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
D

e
le

g
a
ti
o
n

1
1
0
7
5
/2

0
1
3

C
o
u
n
te

r 
F

ra
u
d

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

A
w

a
rd

 o
f 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

9
9
9
0
0
x
/2

0
1
3
/0

5
C

o
u
n
te

r 
F

ra
u
d

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

D
e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
In

te
re

s
ts

9
9
9
0
0
x
/2

0
1
3
/0

6
C

o
u
n
te

r 
F

ra
u
d

D
ra

ft
 R

e
p
o
rt

P
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
is

k
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

1
1
0
7
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

6
6
5
3
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

G
ra

n
ts

 R
e
c
e
iv

a
b
le

9
9
9
0
0
/2

0
1
3
/0

1
C

o
u
n
te

r 
F

ra
u
d

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

G
ra

n
ts

 P
a
ya

b
le

9
9
9
0
0
/2

0
1
3
/0

2
C

o
u
n
te

r 
F

ra
u
d

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

C
a
s
h
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

9
9
9
0
0
/2

0
1
3
/0

3
C

o
u
n
te

r 
F

ra
u
d

T
o
R

 i
s
s
u
e
d

P
a
yr

o
ll:

 I
D

E
A

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

9
9
9
0
0
/2

0
1
3
/0

4
C

o
u
n
te

r 
F

ra
u
d

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

P
a
yr

o
ll:

 T
im

e
s
h
e
e
ts

9
9
9
0
0
/2

0
1
3
/0

5
C

o
u
n
te

r 
F

ra
u
d

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

P
a
yr

o
ll:

 O
v
e
rt

im
e

9
9
9
0
0
/2

0
1
3
/0

6
C

o
u
n
te

r 
F

ra
u
d

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

P
a
yr

o
ll:

 S
ta

rt
e
rs

 a
n
d
 L

e
a
v
e
rs

9
9
9
0
0
/2

0
1
3
/0

7
C

o
u
n
te

r 
F

ra
u
d

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

E
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 A

llo
w

a
n
c
e
s

9
9
9
0
0
/2

0
1
3
/0

8
C

o
u
n
te

r 
F

ra
u
d

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

C
re

d
it
o
r 

P
a
ym

e
n
ts

 -
 Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y 

re
v
ie

w
*

9
9
9
0
0
/2

0
1
3
/0

9
a

C
o
u
n
te

r 
F

ra
u
d

C
o
m

p
le

te

C
re

d
it
o
r 

P
a
ym

e
n
ts

 -
 Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y 

re
v
ie

w
*

9
9
9
0
0
/2

0
1
3
/0

9
b

C
o
u
n
te

r 
F

ra
u
d

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

C
re

d
it
o
r 

P
a
ym

e
n
ts

 -
 Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y 

re
v
ie

w
*

9
9
9
0
0
/2

0
1
3
/0

9
c

C
o
u
n
te

r 
F

ra
u
d

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

D
U

R
H

A
M

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 0
1

 J
U

L
Y

 2
0

1
2

 T
O

 3
0

 J
U

N
E

 2
0

1
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 a
s

 a
t 

3
1

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

C
re

d
it
o
r 

P
a
ym

e
n
ts

 -
 Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y 

re
v
ie

w
*

9
9
9
0
0
/2

0
1
3
/0

9
c

C
o
u
n
te

r 
F

ra
u
d

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

C
re

d
it
o
r 

P
a
ym

e
n
ts

 -
 Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y 

re
v
ie

w
*

9
9
9
0
0
/2

0
1
3
/0

9
d

C
o
u
n
te

r 
F

ra
u
d

T
o
R

 i
s
s
u
e
d

H
o
u
s
in

g
 T

e
n
a
n
c
y

9
9
9
0
0
/2

0
1
3
/1

0
C

o
u
n
te

r 
F

ra
u
d

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
F

ra
u
d
 I

n
it
ia

ti
v
e

9
9
9
0
3
/2

0
1
3

C
o
u
n
te

r 
F

ra
u
d

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

* 
=

 1
 T

o
R

 f
o
r 

th
e
 4

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y 

re
v
ie

w
s
. 

A
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

3
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 a
n
 i
n
te

ri
m

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
, 

w
it
h
 a

 f
u
ll 

re
p
o
rt

 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y 
M

a
y 

2
0
1
3
.

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

W
o

rk
 i

n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 @

 3
0
/0

6
/1

2

E
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 A

llo
w

a
n
c
e
s

H
R

&
O

D
1
0
2
6
0
x
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

M
o
d
e
ra

te

In
c
o
m

e
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
: 

D
e
b
to

rs
F

in
a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
0
4
0
0
x
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

L
im

it
e
d

C
a
s
h
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n

F
in

a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
0
4
6
0
x
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

L
im

it
e
d

G
L
: 

K
e
y 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e

1
0
6
0
9
x
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

L
im

it
e
d

C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 L

a
w

s
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
s

L
e
g
a
l 
&

 D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

1
1
0
9
5
x
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

M
o
d
e
ra

te

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

- 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e

1
1
0
5
1
x
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

- 
T

e
n
d
e
ri
n
g

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e

1
1
0
5
3
x
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 S
a
fe

ty
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
H

R
&

O
D

1
1
2
4
0
x
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l

Page 71



S
e
rv

ic
e

A
u

d
it

 R
e
f

R
e
v
ie

w
 T

y
p

e
S

ta
tu

s
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 O

p
in

io
n

D
U

R
H

A
M

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 0
1

 J
U

L
Y

 2
0

1
2

 T
O

 3
0

 J
U

N
E

 2
0

1
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 a
s

 a
t 

3
1

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

D
e
s
ig

n
 &

 P
ri
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

IC
T

6
5
0
0
0
x
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

D
ra

ft
 R

e
p
o
rt

 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y 

fo
r 

IC
T

IC
T

9
8
1
0
1
x
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

D
ra

ft
 R

e
p
o
rt

 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

- 
Q

u
o
ta

ti
o
n
s

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e

1
1
0
5
2
x
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

C
o
m

p
le

te
N

/A

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 T

ra
v
e
l 
&

 A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

L
e
g
a
l 
&

 D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

1
0
1
1
7
x
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

C
o
m

p
le

te
N

/A

D
ig

it
a
l 
D

u
rh

a
m

IC
T

9
8
1
1
2
x
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

A
u

d
it

s
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

O
ra

c
le

 E
B

S
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e

1
0
6
0
4
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

- 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

R
e
g
is

te
r

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e

1
1
0
5
4
x
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

W
h
is

tl
e
b
lo

w
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

L
e
g
a
l 
&

 D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

1
1
1
7
1
x
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

M
o
d
e
ra

te

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 P
o
lic

y 
- 

P
h
ys

ic
a
l 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

IC
T

9
8
1
0
3
x
/2

0
1
3
/0

4
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

A
u

d
it

s
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x

F
in

a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

0
0
5
0
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

N
N

D
R

F
in

a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

0
0
5
5
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

H
o
u
s
in

g
 &

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

F
in

a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

0
0
7
0
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

S
u
b
s
id

y
F

in
a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

0
0
7
1
5
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

D
ra

ft
 R

e
p
o
rt

R
e
v
s
 &

 B
e
n
s
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s

F
in

a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

0
0
7
2
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l

P
2
P

F
in

 S
e
rv

/C
o
rp

 F
in

a
n
c
e

1
0
1
5
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

T
o
R

 i
s
s
u
e
d

P
a
yr

o
ll

H
R

&
O

D
1
0
2
1
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

In
c
o
m

e
 &

 D
e
b
t 

R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

F
in

a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
0
4
0
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

In
c
o
m

e
 &

 D
e
b
t 

R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

F
in

a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
0
4
0
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

C
a
rd

 T
e
rm

in
a
ls

F
in

a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
0
4
1
7
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

IC
O

N
 C

a
s
h
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

F
in

a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
0
4
6
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

T
o
R

 i
s
s
u
e
d

S
h
o
rt

 T
e
rm

 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e

1
0
5
0
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

D
ra

ft
 R

e
p
o
rt

B
a
n
k
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e

1
0
6
0
2
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

T
o
R

 i
s
s
u
e
d

B
u
d
g
e
ta

ry
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
&

 R
e
p
o
rt

in
g

F
in

a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
0
6
0
5
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

T
o
R

 i
s
s
u
e
d

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

5
1
 C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e

1
0
6
5
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

B
a
n
k
in

g
 A

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e

1
0
9
0
7
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

T
a
x
a
ti
o
n
 -

 P
A

Y
E

H
R

&
O

D
1
0
2
1
3
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

T
a
x
a
ti
o
n
 -

 V
A

T
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e

1
0
9
1
5
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

C
a
rd

s
F

in
a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
0
9
2
5
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

T
o
R

 i
s
s
u
e
d

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

L
e
g
a
l 
&

 D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

1
0
9
5
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

T
o
R

 i
s
s
u
e
d

F
le

x
ib

le
 W

o
rk

in
g
 &

 C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s

H
R

&
O

D
1
1
0
2
1
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

U
n
ix

 S
e
c
u
ri
ty

IC
T

9
8
0
0
4
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

W
in

d
o
w

s
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

IC
T

9
8
0
1
1
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

In
te

rn
e
t 

S
e
c
u
ri
ty

IC
T

9
8
0
1
2
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 -
 F

o
re

n
s
ic

 R
e
a
d
in

e
s
s

IC
T

9
8
1
0
3
/2

0
1
3
/0

1
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 -
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 i
n
c
id

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

IC
T

9
8
1
0
3
/2

0
1
3
/0

2
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 -
 S

ys
te

m
s
 D

e
v
 &

 M
tc

e
 

IC
T

9
8
1
0
3
/2

0
1
3
/0

3
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 -
 W

a
rr

a
n
ty

IC
T

9
8
1
0
3
/2

0
1
3
/0

4
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

Page 72



S
e
rv

ic
e

A
u

d
it

 R
e
f

R
e
v
ie

w
 T

y
p

e
S

ta
tu

s
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 O

p
in

io
n

D
U

R
H

A
M

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 0
1

 J
U

L
Y

 2
0

1
2

 T
O

 3
0

 J
U

N
E

 2
0

1
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 a
s

 a
t 

3
1

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

In
c
o
m

e
 &

 E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 P
ro

je
c
t

IC
T

9
8
1
1
4
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

O
ra

c
le

 w
o
rk

s
tr

e
a
m

s
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e

1
0
6
0
7
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
S

L
A

s
F

in
a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
0
9
2
9
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

R
IP

A
 G

ro
u
p

L
e
g
a
l 
&

 D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

1
1
0
1
1
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

N
e
tw

o
rk

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e

1
1
0
5
7
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 F
o
ru

m
IC

T
9
8
1
0
3
x
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

S
e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
q

u
e
s
ts

L
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 S

c
h
e
m

e
F

in
a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

0
0
5
1
0
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

C
o
m

p
le

te
N

/A

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

re
d
it
 c

a
rd

s
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e

1
0
9
0
8
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

L
e
a
s
e
s

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e

1
0
9
2
7
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

P
e
tt

y 
C

a
s
h
 U

s
a
g
e

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e

1
0
9
2
8
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

T
o
R

 i
s
s
u
e
d

A
c
c
e
s
s
 C

o
n
tr

o
ls

IC
T

9
8
0
3
7
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

P
u
b
lic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 N

e
tw

o
rk

IC
T

9
8
1
0
8
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

In
v
o
ic

e
 s

c
a
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
e
x
in

g
F

in
a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
0
4
6
5
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

O
ra

c
le

 E
P

M
 p

ro
je

c
t

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e

1
0
6
1
6
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

O
ra

c
le

 B
I 

p
ro

je
c
t

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e

1
0
6
1
7
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

O
ra

c
le

 R
1
2
 p

ro
je

c
t

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e

1
0
6
1
8
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 F

u
n
d

F
in

a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
0
9
2
6
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

T
o
R

 i
s
s
u
e
d

U
n

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk

R
IP

A
L
e
g
a
l 
&

 D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

1
1
0
1
1
a
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

IC
O

N
 v

1
1
 p

ro
je

c
t

F
in

a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
0
4
6
0
/2

0
1
3
/0

1
A

d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

P
C

C
 E

le
c
ti
o
n
s

L
e
g
a
l 
&

 D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

1
0
9
4
1
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

E
le

c
ti
o
n
s

L
e
g
a
l 
&

 D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

1
0
9
4
2
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

A
C

E

W
o

rk
 i

n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 @

 3
0
/0

6
/1

2

R
e
c
o
rd

s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 P
e
rf

.
1
1
0
1
0
x
/2

0
1
3
/0

4
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

A
u

d
it

s
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

P
G

F
: 

A
A

P
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

P
a
rt

s
 &

 C
o
m

m
 E

n
g
.

1
1
0
0
0
x
/2

0
1
3
/0

3
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

D
a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 -

 E
n
c
ry

p
ti
o
n

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 P
e
rf

.
1
1
0
1
0
x
/2

0
1
3
/0

3
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

In
tr

a
n
e
t

P
o
lic

y 
&

 C
o
m

m
s

1
1
0
0
5
x
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

*T
o
R

 i
s
s
u
e
d

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y 

P
la

n
n
in

g
P

o
lic

y 
&

 C
o
m

m
s

1
1
0
0
1
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

A
u

d
it

s
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n

Page 73



S
e
rv

ic
e

A
u

d
it

 R
e
f

R
e
v
ie

w
 T

y
p

e
S

ta
tu

s
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 O

p
in

io
n

D
U

R
H

A
M

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 0
1

 J
U

L
Y

 2
0

1
2

 T
O

 3
0

 J
U

N
E

 2
0

1
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 a
s

 a
t 

3
1

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

P
a
rt

s
 &

 C
o
m

m
 E

n
g
.

1
1
0
0
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

D
a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 -

 T
ra

in
in

g
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 P
e
rf

.
1
1
0
1
8
/2

0
1
3
/0

1
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

D
a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 -

 D
a
ta

 A
c
c
e
s
s
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 P
e
rf

.
1
1
0
1
8
/2

0
1
3
/0

2
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y 
- 

R
o
lli

n
g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
P

la
n
n
in

g
 &

 P
e
rf

.
1
1
0
8
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 -

 I
n
te

rn
e
t

P
o
lic

y 
&

 C
o
m

m
s

1
1
0
1
7
/2

0
1
3
/0

2
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

D
e
fe

r 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
c
e
 G

ro
u
p

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 P
e
rf

.
1
1
0
1
0
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 -

 I
n
te

rn
e
t 

D
e
v
.

P
o
lic

y 
&

 C
o
m

m
s

1
1
0
1
7
/2

0
1
3
/0

1
A

d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

B
u
ild

in
g
s

P
a
rt

s
 &

 C
o
m

m
 E

n
g
.

1
1
0
1
9
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

C
o
m

p
le

te
N

/A

U
n

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk

C
IC

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

P
a
rt

s
 &

 C
o
m

m
 E

n
g
.

9
9
8
1
5
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

C
o
m

p
le

te
N

/A

* 
=

 A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 a

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 w

a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 I

n
tr

a
n
e
t 

re
v
ie

w
, 

th
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 b

e
 d

e
la

ye
d
 u

n
ti
l 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
.

R
E

D
W

o
rk

 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 @

 3
0
/0

6
/1

2

D
u
rh

a
m

G
a
te

E
c
o
n
. 

D
e
v
. 

&
 H

o
u
s
in

g
9
9
8
0
5
x
/2

0
1
3
/0

1
A

d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

D
ra

ft
 R

e
p
o
rt

A
u

d
it

s
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
A

u
d

it
s
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 s

ys
te

m
P

la
n
n
in

g
 &

 A
s
s
e
ts

2
6
0
3
5
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

G
ra

n
ts

 p
ro

c
e
s
s

S
tr

a
t,

 P
ro

g
s
 &

 P
e
rf

.
0
0
6
0
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 D

u
rh

a
m

E
c
o
n
 D

e
v
 &

 H
o
u
s
in

g
1
3
5
6
1
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

P
re

p
a
ra

rt
io

n

H
R

 A
L
M

O
s
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

E
c
o
n
 D

e
v
 &

 H
o
u
s
in

g
0
0
8
1
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

T
a
x
i 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 f
o
llo

w
 u

p
T

ra
n
s
. 

&
 C

o
n
t.

 S
e
rv

.
2
5
8
9
5
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

A
u

d
it

s
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n

A
d
 h

o
c
 g

ra
n
t 

c
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

S
tr

a
t,

 P
ro

g
s
 &

 P
e
rf

.
0
0
6
0
1
/2

0
1
3

G
ra

n
t 

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

V
is

it
 C

o
u
n
ty

 D
u
rh

a
m

E
c
o
n
 D

e
v
 &

 H
o
u
s
in

g
1
4
6
1
5
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

T
o
R

 i
s
s
u
e
d

P
ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
E

c
o
n
 D

e
v
 &

 H
o
u
s
in

g
1
3
5
6
2
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

H
o
u
s
in

g
 T

e
n
a
n
c
ie

s
E

c
o
n
 D

e
v
 &

 H
o
u
s
in

g
0
0
8
2
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

S
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
T

ra
n
s
. 

&
 C

o
n
t.

 S
e
rv

.
1
3
0
9
2
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

S
e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
q

u
e
s
ts

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
- 

M
ys

te
ry

 S
h
o
p
p
in

g
P

la
n
n
in

g
 &

 A
s
s
e
ts

2
6
0
4
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

T
o
R

 i
s
s
u
e
d

P
ro

je
c
t 

G
e
n
e
s
is

S
tr

a
t,

 P
ro

g
s
 &

 P
e
rf

.
2
6
0
4
5
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

T
o
R

 i
s
s
u
e
d

P
ro

je
c
ts

 o
u
ts

id
e
 o

f 
s
c
o
p
e
 o

f 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
T

ra
n
s
. 

&
 C

o
n
t.

 S
e
rv

.
2
6
0
4
6
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

R
e
q
u
e
s
t 

to
 

C
a
n
c
e
l

Page 74



S
e
rv

ic
e

A
u

d
it

 R
e
f

R
e
v
ie

w
 T

y
p

e
S

ta
tu

s
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 O

p
in

io
n

D
U

R
H

A
M

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 0
1

 J
U

L
Y

 2
0

1
2

 T
O

 3
0

 J
U

N
E

 2
0

1
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 a
s

 a
t 

3
1

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

U
ti
lit

y 
B

ill
s

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 A
s
s
e
ts

2
6
0
4
7
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

N
S

W
o

rk
 i

n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 @

 3
0
/0

6
/1

2

S
tr

e
e
t 

L
ig

h
ti
n
g
 

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
5
0
0
9
/2

0
1
2
.b

f
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

F
u
ll

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

G
ym

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

s
S

p
o
rt

 &
 L

e
is

u
re

 -
 

In
d
o
o
r 

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s

1
2
2
6
0
/2

0
1
2
.b

f 
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

M
o
d
e
ra

te

T
ra

d
e
 W

a
s
te

D
ir
e
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 

S
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e

2
2
0
1
0
/2

0
1
2
.b

f 
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

N
/A

A
u

d
it

s
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

H
o
u
s
in

g
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 -

 G
a
s
 S

e
rv

ic
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 

R
e
p
a
ir
s

D
ir
e
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 

B
u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

2
0
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2
.b

f
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l

P
o
llu

ti
o
n
 C

o
n
tr

o
l

E
H

C
P

 -
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

1
2
2
6
5
/2

0
1
2
.b

f 
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

H
ig

h
w

a
ys

 M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
5
8
9
0
/2

0
1
2
.b

f
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

A
u

d
it

s
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n

S
to

re
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

P
ro

je
c
ts

 &
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 /

 D
ir
e
c
t 

2
0
0
2
0
/2

0
1
3
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

L
im

it
e
d

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 /

 D
ir
e
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
v
e
n
ts

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 T

e
s
ti
n
g
 -

 f
o
llo

w
 u

p
 f

ro
m

 2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
p
o
rt

 &
 L

e
is

u
re

 -
 

E
v
e
n
ts

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

1
3
4
3
0
/2

0
1
3
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

M
o
d
e
ra

te

N
o
n
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

M
O

T
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

D
ir
e
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 F
le

e
t

2
0
1
0
0
/2

0
1
3
/0

1
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

B
e
re

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

D
ir
e
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 

S
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e

1
3
0
0
3
/2

0
1
3
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

L
im

it
e
d

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

- 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 M

u
lt
ip

le
 

O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 L

ic
e
n
c
e
s

E
H

C
P

 -
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

1
3
0
3
1
/2

0
1
3
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

&
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

(f
o
llo

w
 u

p
 f

ro
m

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
)

D
ir
e
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 

S
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e

1
3
4
2
1
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 P

la
n
n
e
d
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

D
ir
e
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 

B
u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

6
0
7
2
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

D
u
rh

a
m

 C
it
y 

H
o
m

e
s
 -

 P
la

n
n
e
d
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

D
ir
e
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 

B
u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

1
3
0
9
8
/2

0
1
3
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

F
u
ll

Page 75



S
e
rv

ic
e

A
u

d
it

 R
e
f

R
e
v
ie

w
 T

y
p

e
S

ta
tu

s
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 O

p
in

io
n

D
U

R
H

A
M

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 0
1

 J
U

L
Y

 2
0

1
2

 T
O

 3
0

 J
U

N
E

 2
0

1
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 a
s

 a
t 

3
1

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

T
ra

d
e
 W

a
s
te

 -
 S

ys
te

m
s
 t

e
s
ti
n
g

D
ir
e
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 

S
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e

2
2
0
1
0
/2

0
1
3
/0

1
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

S
e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
q

u
e
s
ts

S
to

re
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

- 
O

n
 s

it
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 f

o
r 

s
to

re
s
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

/ 
d
is

p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 

w
a
s
te

 m
a
te

ri
a
ls

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

D
ir
e
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

2
5
0
0
1
/2

0
1
3
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

D
ra

ft
 R

e
p
o
rt

E
n
e
rg

y 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

S
p
o
rt

 &
 L

e
is

u
re

 -
 

In
d
o
o
r 

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s

1
3
4
2
2
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

G
a
la

 T
h
e
a
tr

e
 -

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 -
 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
, 

s
h
o
w

 s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 m

e
rc

h
a
n
d
is

in
g
. 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
B

o
x
 O

ff
ic

e

S
p
o
rt

 &
 L

e
is

u
re

 -
 

In
d
o
o
r 

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s

1
4
9
0
1
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

D
ra

ft
 r

e
p
o
rt

B
u
d
g
e
ta

ry
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
- 

F
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

d
u
p
lic

a
te

 r
e
c
e
ip

ti
n
g
 o

f 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
n
 s

ys
te

m
 a

n
d
 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 t
o
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

h
e
a
d
s

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
0
6
3
5
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

M
T

F
P

 S
a
v
in

g
s
 -

 U
s
e
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

v
e
h
ic

le
s
 f

o
r 

h
o
m

e
 t

o
 

w
o
rk

 j
o
u
rn

e
y 

D
ir
e
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 

C
o
u
n
ty

 F
le

e
t

2
0
1
0
0
/2

0
1
3
/0

2
A

d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

N
o
t 

 S
ta

rt
e
d

C
a
s
h
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
, 

c
a
s
h
 r

e
c
e
ip

ti
n
g
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 

o
f 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 m

e
th

o
d
s
) 

a
n
d
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

S
p
o
rt

 &
 L

e
is

u
re

 -
 

In
d
o
o
r 

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s

1
0
4
3
5
/2

0
1
3
/0

1
A

d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

C
a
n
c
e
lle

d

C
o
u
n
ty

 D
u
rh

a
m

 S
p
o
rt

S
p
o
rt

 &
 L

e
is

u
re

 -
 

In
d
o
o
r 

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s

1
2
2
1
1
/2

0
1
3
 

G
ra

n
t 

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n

N
o
t 

 S
ta

rt
e
d

M
a
rk

e
ts

E
H

C
P

 -
 C

o
n
s
u
m

e
r 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

1
3
3
5
1
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

U
n

p
la

n
n

e
d

 W
o

rk

N
S

 -
 Q

M
S

D
ir
e
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 

B
u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

9
9
8
0
6
/2

0
1
3
/0

3
A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

D
ra

ft
 R

e
p
o
rt

N
/A

N
S

 -
 Q

M
S

 S
e
c
o
n
d
 V

is
it

D
ir
e
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 

B
u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

9
9
8
0
6
/2

0
1
3
/0

4
A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

D
ra

ft
 R

e
p
o
rt

N
/A

S
c
h
o
o
l 
C

ro
s
s
in

g
 P

a
tr

o
l 
- 

R
e
ta

in
e
r 

p
a
ym

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

.

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

9
9
8
0
3
/2

0
1
3
/0

3
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

C
a
s
h
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

t 
o
u
ts

id
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

S
p
o
rt

 &
 L

e
is

u
re

 -
 

In
d
o
o
r 

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s

9
9
8
0
6
/2

0
1
3
/0

5
A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

C
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 L

in
e
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

R
e
v
ie

w
 -

 I
n
v
o
ic

e
 

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n

S
p
o
rt

 &
 L

e
is

u
re

 -
 

In
d
o
o
r 

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s

2
0
7
3
0
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

C
o
m

p
le

te
N

/A

C
A

S

W
o

rk
 i

n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 @

 3
0
/0

6
/1

2

C
a
ld

ic
o
tt

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 (
fo

rm
e
r 

C
Y

P
S

)

5
8
8
1
0
/2

0
1
2
.b

f 
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
F

in
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

M
o
d
e
ra

te

Page 76



S
e
rv

ic
e

A
u

d
it

 R
e
f

R
e
v
ie

w
 T

y
p

e
S

ta
tu

s
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 O

p
in

io
n

D
U

R
H

A
M

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 0
1

 J
U

L
Y

 2
0

1
2

 T
O

 3
0

 J
U

N
E

 2
0

1
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 a
s

 a
t 

3
1

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

C
a
ld

ic
o
tt

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 (
fo

rm
e
r 

A
W

H
)

5
8
8
0
9
/2

0
1
2
.b

f 
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
F

in
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l

S
ta

in
d
ro

p
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

7
3
1
4
1
/2

0
1
2
.b

f
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
F

in
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

L
im

it
e
d

P
A

Y
P

E
a
rl
y 

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 &

 

In
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t

8
8
8
0
5
/2

0
1
2
.b

f
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
F

in
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

L
im

it
e
d

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

in
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

7
0
0
5
6
/2

0
1
2
.b

f
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
D

ra
ft

 R
e
p
o
rt

S
c
h
o
o
l 
C

a
te

ri
n
g
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

7
0
2
2
0
/2

0
1
2
.b

f
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
F

in
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

F
u
ll

A
u

d
it

s
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

O
n
e
 P

o
in

t 
- 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

u
n
d
e
r 

5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 f

a
m

ili
e
s

E
a
rl
y 

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 &

 

In
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t

7
0
2
4
5
/2

0
1
2
/b

f
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
In

 P
ro

g
re

s
s

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 Q
u
a
lit

y 
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 C
Y

P
S

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 a
n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 T

ru
s
t

E
a
rl
y 

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 &

 

In
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t

7
0
0
5
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
P

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
ta

x
i 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

, 
fo

llo
w

 u
p
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
.

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

2
5
8
9
5
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

S
S

ID
 s

ys
te

m
 r

e
v
ie

w
P

la
n
n
in

g
 &

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

5
8
8
0
0
/2

0
1
2
.b

f
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 T

ra
n
s
it
io

n
  

- 
D

u
e
 D

ili
g
e
n
c
e

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

5
0
0
7
5
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

P
O

P
P

IE
 s

ys
te

m
 r

e
v
ie

w
P

la
n
n
in

g
 &

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

5
8
8
0
2
x
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

C
a
n
c
e
lle

d

S
tr

a
te

g
y

A
u

d
it

s
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n

C
o
u
n
ty

 D
u
rh

a
m

 C
a
re

 a
n
d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 S

h
a
re

d
 L

iv
e
s

A
d
u
lt
 C

a
re

5
0
0
8
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

D
ra

ft
 R

e
p
o
rt

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

O
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 

o
f 

C
a
re

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s

A
d
u
lt
 C

a
re

5
0
0
8
5
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

T
O

R
 i
s
s
u
e
d

L
o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 -

 t
o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 f
o
llo

w
-u

p
 o

n
 V

F
M

 

s
tu

d
y 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y 
S

e
rv

ic
e

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 C
a
re

7
8
4
6
3
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n

S
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 t
o
 f

o
c
u
s
 u

p
o
n
 P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

E
a
rl
y 

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 C
a
re

7
8
4
7
3
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 f
in

a
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
5
0
0
0
6
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l

T
ro

u
b
le

d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
E

a
rl
y 

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 &

 

In
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t

0
0
6
1
1
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

S
c
h

o
o

l'
s
 c

y
c
li

c
a
l 

a
u

d
it

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

B
la

c
k
h
a
ll 

C
o
lli

e
ry

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

7
2
7
3
7
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
F

in
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l

B
ro

o
m

 C
o
tt

a
g
e
s
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n
d
 N

u
rs

e
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

7
2
4
0
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
F

in
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

M
o
d
e
ra

te

K
in

g
 S

tr
e
e
t 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

7
2
7
5
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
F

in
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

M
o
d
e
ra

te

L
a
n
g
le

y 
M

o
o
r 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

7
2
4
5
5
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
F

in
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l

S
e
a
s
c
a
p
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

7
2
0
0
4
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
F

in
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l

W
e
llf

ie
ld

 S
c
h
o
o
l

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

7
4
2
1
8
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
F

in
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

M
o
d
e
ra

te

Page 77



S
e
rv

ic
e

A
u

d
it

 R
e
f

R
e
v
ie

w
 T

y
p

e
S

ta
tu

s
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 O

p
in

io
n

D
U

R
H

A
M

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 0
1

 J
U

L
Y

 2
0

1
2

 T
O

 3
0

 J
U

N
E

 2
0

1
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 a
s

 a
t 

3
1

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

W
o
ls

in
g
h
a
m

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

C
o
lle

g
e

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

7
4
1
3
9
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
F

in
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

M
o
d
e
ra

te

S
c
h
o
o
l 
A

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 -

 T
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 w

o
rk

 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 s
ta

ff
 t

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

in
te

rr
o
g
a
te

 A
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 d

a
ta

.

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

7
0
2
3
5
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

C
o
m

p
le

te

S
t.

 M
a
ry

 M
a
g
d
a
le

n
 R

.C
. 

A
id

e
d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

7
3
3
0
1
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
D

ra
ft

 R
e
p
o
rt

S
a
c
ri
s
to

n
 N

u
rs

e
ry

 a
n
d
 I

n
fa

n
t 

S
c
h
o
o
l

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

7
2
1
2
3
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
In

 P
ro

g
re

s
s

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

7
8
4
6
2
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
P

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 -
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 

w
ill

 b
e
 g

iv
e
n
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

th
ir
d
 p

a
rt

y 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 /

 C
h
ild

re
n
's

 

C
a
re

7
8
4
7
5
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
P

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n

C
a
ld

ic
o
tt

 C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

5
8
8
0
9
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

N
o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

S
e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
q

u
e
s
ts

S
c
h
o
o
l 
B

e
n
e
v
o
le

n
t 

F
u
n
d

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 C
a
re

7
0
1
0
7
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

P
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

5
0
0
3
1
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
T

O
R

 i
s
s
u
e
d

D
ir
e
c
t 

P
a
ym

e
n
ts

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

5
0
0
3
0
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
F

in
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

L
im

it
e
d

O
n
e
 P

o
in

t 
- 

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e

E
a
rl
y 

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 &

 

In
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t

7
0
2
4
5
/2

0
1
3
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
P

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n

S
c
h
o
o
l 
A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

- 
F

ix
e
d
 P

e
n
a
lt
y 

N
o
ti
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

.

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

7
8
4
5
3
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y 

C
o
m

p
le

te
N

/A

N
o
ti
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

.

A
w

a
rd

 o
f 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
a
y 

in
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

7
8
4
6
4
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

A
d
u
lt
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

5
0
0
6
5
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
P

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n

M
e
d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
P

la
n
 -

 H
o
m

e
 t

o
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 

C
o
lle

g
e
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

7
0
0
6
8
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
P

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n

B
lu

e
 B

a
d
g
e
 S

c
h
e
m

e
P

la
n
n
in

g
 &

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

9
9
9
0
3
/2

0
1
3

C
o
u
n
te

r 
F

ra
u
d
 -

 N
F

I
F

ie
ld

 W
o
rk

 

C
o
m

p
le

te

U
n

p
la

n
n

e
d

 W
o

rk

S
c
h
o
o
l 
s
u
rp

lu
s
 /

 d
e
fi
c
it
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

7
0
0
4
5
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
N

o
t 

S
ta

rt
e
d

D
u
rh

a
m

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

7
4
1
9
2
/2

0
1
3

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
D

ra
ft

 R
e
p
o
rt

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
R

is
k
 S

e
lf
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

in
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

7
0
0
7
0
/2

0
1
3

A
d
v
ic

e
 &

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y 

In
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

Page 78



 
Appendix 5 

FINAL REPORTS ISSUED THIS QUARTER 
 
2011/12 Audits 

 
Audit Area Brief Scope Opinion 

NS   

Street Lighting 
 

An assurance review that considered the effectiveness of the 
management of the risks associated with Street Lighting. 

Full 

Management of 
Gym Memberships 

An assurance review that considered the effectiveness of the 
management of the risks associated with Gym Memberships. 

Moderate 

Housing 
Maintenance - Gas 
Servicing and 
Responsive Repairs 

An assurance review that considered the effectiveness of the 

management of the risks associated with Gas Servicing and 
Responsive Repairs. 

Substantial 

ACE   

Data Quality Assurance review of the arrangements in place to ensure that; 
 
- Service performance is managed 
- Data quality of the performance information, upon which 

decisions are based is of a sufficient standard 

Moderate 

RES   

Declarations of 
Interest – Officers 

Corporate Counter Fraud review to identify any potential 
fraudulent or inappropriate activity arising from any declared 
or undeclared Officer interests. Specific Service based reports 
have been prepared and are currently at draft status. 

N/A 

Tendering 
Arrangements 

Assurance review of the arrangements in place to ensure that; 
 

- The procurement process adheres to legislation 
- Officers have necessary skills and knowledge 
- Competition is not restricted 
- Contracts are not split so that they do not exceed 

procurement thresholds 
- Contractors are aware of relevant procedures 
- The authority reviews the procurement process for 

improvement opportunities 
- The risk of collusion between tenderers is minimised 
- Tender documentation is complete 
- Stakeholder requirements are properly identified 
- Suppliers chosen are capable of delivering on 

contracts 

Substantial 

Compliance with 
Law and 
Regulations 

Assurance review of the arrangements in place to ensure that; 
 
- Legislative requirements are identified 
- Resources are available to ensure compliance with 

requirements 
- Specialist skills and knowledge are available 
- Processes are in place to identify emerging risks on 

legislative requirements  

Moderate 

Cash Collection Assurance review of the arrangements in place to ensure that; 
 
- The risk of employee theft/misappropriation is 

minimised 
- Cash collection records are retained as required by 

Limited 

Page 79



Audit Area Brief Scope Opinion 

financial regulations and document management policies & 
procedures 

- Postal remittances are adequately recorded and promptly 
processed 

- Staff are not placed in danger  
- Bank reconciliations are undertaken 
- All recovery action is appropriate  

Debtors Assurance review of the arrangements in place to ensure that; 
 
- Adequate supporting documentation is maintained to 

confirm the validity of the debt 
- All expected income is invoiced 
- System reconciliations are  undertaken to ensure 

prompt identification of mispostings / fraudulent 
activity 

- The direct debit guarantee is not breached 
- Performance of the service is adequate 
- Projects, such as expansions of the use of IT, are 

appropriately managed 
- Transaction records are not lost due to ICT systems 

failure 
 

Limited 

CAS   

School Review 
(Staindrop) 

An assurance review that considered the effectiveness of 
school financial management and governance arrangements. 
This review was requested by the Head Teacher who had 
concerns about the robustness of some of the arrangements 
in place. 

Limited 

Caldicott 
compliance –  
former CYPS 
former AWH 

An assurance review that considered the actions taken by the 
Authority to address each of the Caldicott principles. 

 
Moderate  
Substantial 

Positive Activities 
for Young People 
(PAYP) 

An assurance review that considered the effectiveness of 
PAYP arrangements operated under One Point at a sample of 
3 PAYP Centre/Projects and One Point Hubs. 

Limited 

School Catering An assurance review that considered the effectiveness of the 
management of the risks associated with the School Catering 
Contract for both Primary and Secondary Schools. 

Full 

 
2012/13 Audits 

 

Audit Area Brief Scope Opinion 

NS   

Events 
Management 

An assurance review that considered the effectiveness of the 
management of the risks associated with events management. 
This was a follow up review to work undertaken in 2011/12 that 
looked at events management controls design. 

Moderate 

Durham City Homes 
- Planned 
Maintenance 

An assurance review that considered the effectiveness of the 

management of the risks associated with Durham City Homes - 
Planned Maintenance. 

Full 

Stores Management An assurance review that considered the effectiveness of the 

management of the risks associated with Stores Management. 
Limited 

Bereavement 
Services 

An assurance review that considered the effectiveness of the 

management of the risks associated with Bereavement 
Services. 

Limited 

Page 80



 

RES   

Revenues & 
Benefits 
Reconciliations 

Assurance review of the arrangements in place to ensure that; 
 

- Material errors/fraudulent activities within feeder 
systems and/or the general ledger are identified 

- Performance is properly managed or monitored 
- Sufficient resources are in place for all activities 
- Issues contained within the Annual Governance 

Report have been addressed 
 

Substantial 

Whistleblowing Assurance review of the arrangements in place to ensure that; 
 
- The whistleblowing (Confidential reporting Code) 

reporting mechanisms are being utilised correctly 
- Officers deal with issues in accordance with the 

Confidential Reporting Code 
 

Moderate 

CAS   

7 School Reviews  
(Blackhall, Broom 
Cottages, King 
Street, Langley 
Moor, Seascape, 
Wellfield & 
Wolsingham) 

An assurance review that considered the effectiveness of 
school financial management and governance arrangements. 

3 Substantial 
4 Moderate 

Direct Payments An assurance review that considered the effectiveness of 
direct payments arrangements. 

Limited 

Management of 
Service Users 
finances and 
property 

An assurance review that considered the effectiveness of 
arrangements for the management of Service Users finances 
and property. 

Substantial 

 

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



P
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

A
u

d
it

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 6

R
is

k
 C

a
te

rg
o

ry
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 R

a
is

e
d

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 

D
u

e
( 

O
ID

)

O
v
e

rd
u

e
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 

w
h

e
re

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 

ta
rg

e
t 

d
a

te
 a

g
re

e
d

 

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 D
u

e
 

(R
ID

)

R
e

v
is

e
d

 T
o

ta
l 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 

O
v
e

rd
u

e

R
e

v
is

e
d

 T
o

ta
l 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 

o
v
e

rd
u

e
 %

D
u

e
 

N
o

t 
Y

e
t 

D
u

e
T

o
ta

l
N

o
 

%
N

o
 

%
N

o

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1

0
1

1
1

2
1

3
1

4

(3
-4

)
(3

-9
+

1
1

)
(7

-(
9

+
1

1
))

(1
3

/3
*1

0
0

 )

H
ig

h
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

M
e

d
iu

m
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

T
o

ta
l

5
5

4
0

4
�

�
1

�
�
�

0
4

�
�

H
ig

h
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

M
e

d
iu

m
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

T
o

ta
l

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�

O
v
e

ra
ll 

T
o

ta
l

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

H
ig

h
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

M
e

d
iu

m
	
�

	
�

	
�

�
	
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
	
�

�
�

T
o

ta
l

7
3

7
3

7
1

0
7

1
�

�
2

�
�
�

0
7

1
�

�

H
ig

h
�

�
	

�
	

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
	

�
�

M
e

d
iu

m
�
	

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

T
o

ta
l

3
3

3
2

2
7

0
2

7
�

�
4



�

0
2

8
�

�

H
ig

h
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

M
e

d
iu

m
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

T
o

ta
l

�
�

	
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

O
v
e

ra
ll 

T
o

ta
l

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
	

�
�
�
	

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
2

/1
3

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

A
C

E
2

0
1

1
/1

2

O
v
e

rd
u

e
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
 b

y
 

o
rg

in
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t 
d

a
te

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 w
h

e
re

 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 

ta
rg

e
t 

d
a

te
 

re
v
is

e
d

2
0

1
1

/1
2

N
S



�
�
�
��
�



�
�
�
��
�

Page 83



P
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

A
u

d
it

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 6

R
is

k
 C

a
te

rg
o

ry
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 R

a
is

e
d

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 

D
u

e
( 

O
ID

)

O
v
e

rd
u

e
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 

w
h

e
re

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 

ta
rg

e
t 

d
a

te
 a

g
re

e
d

 

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 D
u

e
 

(R
ID

)

R
e

v
is

e
d

 T
o

ta
l 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 

O
v
e

rd
u

e

R
e

v
is

e
d

 T
o

ta
l 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 

o
v
e

rd
u

e
 %

D
u

e
 

N
o

t 
Y

e
t 

D
u

e
T

o
ta

l
N

o
 

%
N

o
 

%
N

o

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1

0
1

1
1

2
1

3
1

4

(3
-4

)
(3

-9
+

1
1

)
(7

-(
9

+
1

1
))

(1
3

/3
*1

0
0

 )

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

O
v
e

rd
u

e
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
 b

y
 

o
rg

in
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t 
d

a
te

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 w
h

e
re

 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 

ta
rg

e
t 

d
a

te
 

re
v
is

e
d

�
�
�

	
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�

�
	

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
	
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�

��
�

�



�
	

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�



�
�
�

�
�
�

	
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�



�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�



�
	
�

�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
	

�
�
�
��
��
��

��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
	

�
�
�
	

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

�



�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�

��
�

�
�



�
�



�
	
�

�
�
	
�

�



�
�
�
�

�
�
	
�

�
�

�
�
�

�



�



�
�

�
�
�

�
	

�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
��

��
�



�
�



�
�



	
�

�


	
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�


	
�

�
�



�
�
�
��





�
�


��
�



�
�
�
��
�



�
�
�
��





�
�


��
�

R
E

D


�
�
�
��
�

Page 84



P
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

A
u

d
it

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 6

R
is

k
 C

a
te

rg
o

ry
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 R

a
is

e
d

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 

D
u

e
( 

O
ID

)

O
v
e

rd
u

e
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 

w
h

e
re

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 

ta
rg

e
t 

d
a

te
 a

g
re

e
d

 

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 D
u

e
 

(R
ID

)

R
e

v
is

e
d

 T
o

ta
l 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 

O
v
e

rd
u

e

R
e

v
is

e
d

 T
o

ta
l 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 

o
v
e

rd
u

e
 %

D
u

e
 

N
o

t 
Y

e
t 

D
u

e
T

o
ta

l
N

o
 

%
N

o
 

%
N

o

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1

0
1

1
1

2
1

3
1

4

(3
-4

)
(3

-9
+

1
1

)
(7

-(
9

+
1

1
))

(1
3

/3
*1

0
0

 )

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

O
v
e

rd
u

e
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
 b

y
 

o
rg

in
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t 
d

a
te

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 w
h

e
re

 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 

ta
rg

e
t 

d
a

te
 

re
v
is

e
d

R
E

S

�
�
�

	
�

	
�

	
�

�
	
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
	
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�






�





�
�

�
�
�
�

�


�

�
�

�

��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�



�
�
�



�

�
�
�

�
	

�
	

�



�
�





�
�



�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�








	

�
�

�
�
�

�
	

�
�

�
	

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�

��
�

�
�
�

�
�



	
	

�
	
	



�



�



�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�

	
�

�
�

�
�
�



�
�



�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�



�
�
�
�



�
�



�

�
�
�
��
��
��

��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
	

�
�

T
O

T
A

L

�
�
�

�
�
	

�
�
	

�
�
	

�
�
�
	

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
	

�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�

��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
	

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�

��
�

�


�

�


	

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
	

�
�



�

�
�
�
�



�

�

��
�



�
�



�
�



�



�


�



�
�

�
�

�
�

	
	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
	



	

	
�

�
	
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

	



�
�
�



�
�

�

��
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�



�



�

�
�

�
�



	
�

	
�

�
�
�
��
��
��

��
�

�


�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

	
�

�
�
�

	
�

�
�

�
�
�
�



�

�



�
�


��
�



�
�
�
��
�



�
�
�
��





�
�


��
�



�
�
�
��
�



�
�
�
��
�



�
�
�
��



Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 7 

 

 

 

PLEASE SEE ITEM NO. 14 

AS APPENDIX EXEMPT 

Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 8 

 

 

 

PLEASE SEE ITEM NO. 14 

AS APPENDIX EXEMPT 

Page 89



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



1
  

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 9
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 a
s
 a

t 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

 2
0
1

2
 

 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y
 

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
: 

T
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 a
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 t

o
 i

n
fo

rm
 t

h
e
 a

n
n

u
a
l 

a
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n
  

K
P

I 
M

e
a

s
u

re
 o

f 
A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e
n

t 
T

a
rg

e
t 

 &
 (

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 o

f 
 

M
e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t)
 

A
c

tu
a
l 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 a
u

d
it
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
%

 o
f 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 w

o
rk

 f
ro

m
 o

ri
g

in
a
l 
a

p
p
ro

v
e
d

 p
la

n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 t

o
 d

ra
ft
 r

e
p

o
rt

 s
ta

g
e
  

 

9
0

%
 

A
n
n

u
a

lly
 

N
o
t 

ye
t 

d
u
e

 

T
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
D

ra
ft
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
  

%
 o

f 
d
ra

ft
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
  

w
it
h

in
 3

0
 C

a
le

n
d
a

r 
d
a

y
s
 o

f 
e

n
d
 

o
f 
fi
e

ld
w

o
rk

/c
lo

s
u
re

 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
  

A
v
e
ra

g
e

 t
im

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d

 f
o
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

 

9
0

%
 

(Q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y)
 

 

9
6

%
 

1
2
 d

a
y
s
 o

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e

 

T
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
F

in
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

s
  

%
 o

f 
fi
n

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 w
it
h
in

 1
4
 c

a
le

n
d
a
r 

d
a

y
s
 o

f 
re

c
e

ip
t 

o
f 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

 t
im

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d

 f
o
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

 

9
5

%
 

(Q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y)
 

 

9
0

%
 

7
 d

a
y
s
 o

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e

 

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o

rt
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d

 t
o

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 

w
it
h
in

 o
n

e
 m

o
n
th

 o
f 

e
n
d
 o

f 
p

e
ri
o

d
  

1
0
0

%
 

(Q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y)
 

1
0
0

%
 

T
e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e

  
%

 o
f 

T
O

R
’s

 a
g
re

e
d
 w

it
h

 k
e
y 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 

in
 a

d
v
a

n
c
e
 o

f 

fi
e

ld
w

o
rk

 c
o
m

m
e

n
c
in

g
  

9
5

%
  

 (
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y)
 

9
6

%
 

Q
u

a
li
ty

 
O

b
je

c
ti

v
e
: 

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 a

d
d

in
g

 v
a

lu
e

  

K
P

I 
M

e
a

s
u

re
 o

f 
A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e
n

t 
T

a
rg

e
t 

&
 (

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 o

f 
 

M
e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t)
 

 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d

a
ti
o
n

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 
%

 o
f 
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h

 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 

9
5

%
 

(Q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y)
 

9
6

%
 

P
o

s
t 

A
u
d

it
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
  

S
u
rv

e
y
 F

e
e

d
b

a
c
k
 

%
 o

f 
c
u

s
to

m
e
rs

 s
c
o
ri

n
g
 a

u
d

it
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 g

o
o

d
 o

r 
a

b
o

v
e

 (
4
 o

u
t 

o
f 
5
) 

w
h

e
re

 1
 i
s
 p

o
o
r 

a
n
d
 5

 i
s
 v

e
ry

 g
o
o
d

 

1
0
0

%
 

(Q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y)
 

1
0
0

%
  
- 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 s

c
o
re

 4
.5

9
r 

C
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 f

e
e

d
b

a
c
k
  

R
e
s
p
o
n

s
e

 

%
 o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

re
tu

rn
in

g
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 

7
0

%
 

(Q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y)
 

2
3

%
 

C
o

s
t 

 
O

b
je

c
ti

v
e
: 

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 c

o
s
t 

e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e

 

K
P

I 
M

e
a

s
u

re
 o

f 
A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e
n

t 
T

a
rg

e
t 

&
 (

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 o

f 
 

M
e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t)
 

 

C
o
s
t 

p
e

r 
c
h
a

rg
e
a

b
le

 a
u

d
it
 d

a
y
 

C
IP

F
A

 B
e
n

c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 C

lu
b

 –
 C

o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

G
ro

u
p
 (

U
n
it
a

ry
) 

L
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n

 a
v
e
ra

g
e

 

(A
n

n
u

a
lly

) 

Y
e

s
 

2
0
1

1
/1

2
 A

c
tu

a
l 
–
 £

2
7

9
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 £

3
1

3
 

 

Page 91



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Audit Committee 
 
21 February 2013 
 
Sale of Windlestone Hall 
 

 

 
 

Joint Report of the External Auditor and the Manager of Internal 
Audit and Risk 

Purpose of the Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Audit Committee of a letter of 
complaint, sent to the Audit Commission, relating to the alleged selling of the 
Windlestone Hall at a price considerably lower than its value.  The complaint 
was referred to the Council’s external auditors, Mazars, to investigate.  

2. Similar concerns were also raised by Councillor Ord at the last meeting of the 
Audit Committee in November 2012.  

3. In response to the concerns raised, it was agreed with the Corporate Director 
Resources that a joint review of the sale would be carried out by External and 
Internal Audit, to help minimise the cost of additional external audit fees.   The 
investigation is now complete. 

4. The findings and conclusions from the review are set out in the attached 
response from the External Auditor to the complainant (Appendix 2) and the 
attached Internal Audit Report (Appendix 3). 

Recommendations and reasons 

 
5. Members are asked to consider the outcomes from the investigation to gain 

assurance that: 

a. The allegation has been appropriately investigated 

b. Officers are taking appropriate action, to improve the management of 
risks associated with land and building disposals, in response to the 
control weaknesses identified through this review.  

 

 

 

Contact:  Avril Wallage  Tel: 03000 269645 
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 93



 

 

 

 
 
Finance – No direct financial implications as a result of this report. 

Staffing -. None directly l 

 
Risk – None directly  
 

Equality and Diversity/ Public Sector Equality Duty – None  

 

Accommodation – None directly 

 

Crime and Disorder – None. 

 

Human Rights - None. 

 

Consultation – None  

 

Procurement – None.  

 

Disability issues – None. 

 

Legal Implications – Ensuring compliance with S123 , Local Government Act 1972 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 
 

 
Sale of Windlestone Hall 

 
Internal Audit Reference 99902/2013/12 

 
 

Report status: Final Report   
Date: February 2013 
Prepared by: Avril Wallage, Manager of Internal Audit 

& Risk 
Reviewed by: Catherine Banks, External Audit 
Issued to: Stuart Timmiss, Head of Planning and 

Assets 
Ian Thompson, Corporate Director 
Regeneration and Economic 
Development 
Gerard Darby, Asset Services Manager 
Don McLure, Corporate Director 
Resources 
Colette Longbottom, Head of Legal 
Services & Democratic Services  
David Taylor, Property, Planning and 
Projects Manager, Legal Services   

 
 
 

                     

Page 99



Internal Audit Report: Windlestone Hall 

 

2 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1. This report relates to the Internal Audit review of the Sale of Windlestone Hall 
for £241K in November 2011. 

 
2. The review was added to the 2012/13 Annual Audit Plan at the request of the 

Corporate Director of Resources, following the receipt of a letter of complaint 
from Councillor Shuttleworth sent to the External Auditor. The complaint 
relates to the alleged selling of the property at a price considerably lower 
than its value.  A full and public investigation was requested into the sale. 

 
3. In considering its response, External Audit agreed to work in consultation 

with Internal Audit to investigate the matter. 
  

4. Concerns regarding the sale have also been raised by Cllr Reg Ord at Audit 
Committee on 22 November 2012. 

 
5. This report details the audit findings of the joint investigation to provide an 

independent opinion on the appropriateness of the Council’s actions 
regarding the sale. In arriving at this opinion, the effectiveness of systems 
and procedures in place to demonstrate whether or not the Council achieved 
best value for money from the sale have been reviewed. 

 
6. The key findings of the review are summarised below: 

 

• The property is a Grade II* Listed Building set in registered parkland in 
a conservation area. As such, any planning permissions need to 
reflect the expectations of English Heritage. 

   

• The two valuations referred to in Cllr Shuttleworth’s letter of £.1.8m 
and £1.5m refer to the year end valuations for capital accounting 
purposes as at March 2007 and 2008.  These valuations were based 
on the acceptance of a conditional offer from a building company to 
develop the property and site for residential use.  This offer was made 
in response to a marketing exercise carried out in 2006. The 
downward valuation reflected on-going negotiations relating to 
planning restrictions.   

 

• Security and running costs including heating during the winter months 
were identified as in the region of £100K per annum with urgent 
maintenance works required identified in the region of £300K.  The 
overall costs of renovation were estimated at £3.5 -£3.7m. 

 

• Prior to the sale in November 2011, the last valuation for capital 
accounting purposes was £900K, carried out in January 2009. This 
was based on previous negotiations and reflected market conditions 
which were in decline.     

 

• Negotiations with the developer appear to have ended in June 2010 
following confirmation of the full extent of planning restrictions to meet 

Page 100



Internal Audit Report: Windlestone Hall 

 

3 

 

English Heritage’s requirements.  It became clear at this time that an 
enabling solution, involving new build in the grounds to generate 
sufficient funding to refurbish the existing hall as proposed by the 
developer, was no longer considered financially viable. This was due 
to the restriction on new build imposed by English Heritage and the 
down turn in the property market. 

 

• It is clearly documented that any enabling should be minimal. 
Consequently, it was agreed that the property would need to be 
remarketed.  

 

•     It is not clear what actions were taken by officers to actively market the 
property from June 2010. No serious interest in the property appears 
to have been expressed until May 2011 when a prospective buyer 
contacted the Council expressing an interest to purchase the property 
for use as a private dwelling, with the option in future to run an equine 
training school.   

 

•     An unconditional ‘as seen’ offer was subsequently received in July 
2011. 

 

•     The decision to accept this offer was made under delegated authority 
in consultation with relevant Members, following consideration of a 
valuation report prepared by the Council’s valuer. 

 

• The Valuer is of the firm belief that this offer represented best 
consideration for the Council as there was no viable alternative to the 
offer to use the site as a residential unit, as any other type of use 
would have required extensive planning negotiations.   The 
acceptance of the offer of £241K was considered by asset 
management and planning officers to be the best consideration 
reasonably obtainable and would therefore meet the Council’s legal 
obligations under the Local Government Act 1972, S123, regarding 
the disposal of land.  This view is supported by the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services who has also carried out a review of the sale 
following a request for a legal opinion from the Corporate Director, 
Resources. 

 

• The reasons for the acceptance of the offer therefore appear 
reasonable but are clearly heavily reliant on the professional 
judgement of the in- house valuer, as is the case with any disposal.  

 

• There is limited independent evidence to substantiate whether £241K 
represented best consideration as the offer was not submitted as part 
of a remarketing exercise, reflecting current market conditions and 
known planning restrictions. There are few examples of similar 
properties of similar condition on the market or having been sold at 
this time.  

 

Page 101



Internal Audit Report: Windlestone Hall 

 

4 

 

• The Council’s disposal and acquisition policy makes provision for 
properties to be disposed of under private treaty in cases where there 
is limited interest and a narrow valuation band, as was considered the 
position in this case.  However, without a remarketing exercise it is 
difficult to evidence the limited interest and it may have been prudent 
to obtain an independent valuation in the interests of transparency. 
This would have strengthened the decision making process and 
reduced the risk of challenge. 

 

• It is not possible to say if the Council would have gained a higher 
capital receipt had the bid from the buyer been submitted in 
completion but the process followed was in accordance with the 
agreed policy. There were risks associated with remarketing at this 
time.  A sale would not be guaranteed as there was an explicit 
understanding that a remarketing exercise would lose the interest of 
the prospective purchaser.  The decision to enter to a single 
negotiation disposal therefore appears reasonable given ongoing 
liabilities and the opportunity presented at that time. 

 

• Systems and procedures for carrying out due diligence in relation to 
the buyer were limited.  Checks were made on the ability of the buyer 
to fund both the purchase and the investment required to renovate the 
property however these were not adequate enough to establish that 
the funds were available to complete the renovation which is required. 

 

• The ‘as seen’ offer was made by the purchaser having been advised 
that the central heating system was in working order. Prior to 
completion it was disclosed that this was not the case. Following 
negotiations with the purchaser it was agreed, as part of the contract 
of sale, that the Council would fund essential expenses to rectify the 
position. Post completion, further negotiations were held to agree the 
amount to be funded by the Council to fulfil its legal obligations under 
the contract. In total expenses of approximately £36K were met by the 
Council. 

 

• Ombudsman guidance, as set out in the council’s disposal strategy, 
requires two officers to conduct negotiations. Whilst this does not 
appear to have been adhered to, the strategy acknowledges that this 
guidance may be unrealistic for every case.  

  

• Whilst the delegated decision process provided a mechanism for 
challenge on the negotiation process prior to the acceptance of the 
offer, there was an inadequate division of duties between valuation 
and sales. Decisions made following post offer negotiations were not 
made as a documented delegated decision. This was a significant 
control weakness. 

 

• Negotiations with the development company were not formally 
terminated until after the offer of £241k had been received. This 
resulted in a formal challenge from the company as it only became 

Page 102



Internal Audit Report: Windlestone Hall 

 

5 

 

aware of the Council’s intention to sell to someone else via a third 
party (Land Registry). The company has stated that had they been 
told that an alternative offer was being considered they would have 
made a substantial unconditional offer.  No such offer has since been 
forthcoming. Instead the company submitted a formal complaint 
seeking compensation.  Whilst this claim has been rejected by the 
Council and not pursued further by the company, the failure to 
terminate the original contract of sale was a significant control 
weakness.  This issue was also investigated by the land registry 
adjudicator who concluded that the company had no legal rights over 
the land through the contract. 
 

• Regardless of whether or not the sale at £241K represented best 
consideration for the Council, some of the processes and systems in 
place lacked clarity and transparency and the whole sale process took 
considerably longer than first envisaged. This has resulted in 
unnecessary challenge, reputational damage   and additional 
unnecessary costs.  It has been acknowledged by management that, 
due to both Local Government Review and a further restructure there 
was little continuity in terms of the officers or indeed manager 
supervision relating to this disposal.  Management also identified that 
the collapse of the housing market also played a part in respect of the 
timescale and difficulties of delivery. 

  

•  A number of recommendations have been made to improve the 
internal control framework to reduce the risks highlighted through this 
review reoccurring.  These are summarised, together with the 
management response, in the action plan attached. It is however 
acknowledged that management have already taken a number of 
actions to improve many of the processes and procedures in place 
over the last year. 

 

• Progress on the implementation of agreed actions will be monitored by 
Internal Audit and reported to the Corporate Director, Regeneration 
and Economical Development and the Audit Committee in accordance 
with agreed protocols. 

     

 

  

Page 103



Internal Audit Report: Windlestone Hall 

 

6 

 

SCOPE AND AUDIT APPROACH 
 

7. As the letter of complaint had been referred to the Audit Commission (now 
Mazars) to investigate, an initial joint review of the sale of the property has 
been carried out with colleagues from external audit.  

 
8. Discussions were held with relevant key officers to establish the background 

leading to the decision to dispose of the property and the rationale for the 
decision to sell the property for £241K.  

 

Officers consulted : 
 

Head of Planning and Assets,  
Asset Services Manager 
Valuer, Asset Management  
Property, Planning and Projects Manager, Legal Services 
Chief Conveyancing Solicitor,  
Design and Historic Environment Team Leader, RED 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services   

 

9. Our comments, observations and findings are based on a review of relevant 
reports and documentation and with discussions with the individuals named 
above. Further investigation and validation work has been carried out where 
required. 

 
10. We have relied upon officers to supply all appropriate material necessary to 

enable us to review the sale and that such material is complete and accurate. 
Where we have interviewed individuals, we have taken their opinions at face 
value unless these could be objectively tested. We have used all reasonable 
endeavours to provide an objective review. 

 
DETAILED FINDINGS 
 
Background to the sale 
 

11. The Cabinet, of the former county council, agreed to declare Windlestone 
Hall surplus to requirements at its meeting on the 26 January 2006. 

  
12. Notice of the school becoming vacant had been given approximately 6 

months previously as the school was no longer considered fit for purpose 
and a new school was to be built.  The reported cost of the new school was 
£6.12m.  

 
13. The insurance value of Windlestone Hall was £6.5m and reflects the 

estimated rebuild cost.  
 
 
 
 

Page 104



Internal Audit Report: Windlestone Hall 

 

7 

 

14. Informal planning advice suggested that the building would be suitable for 
residential conversion. As a Grade II* listed building prospective buyers 
would be required to secure detailed ‘listed’ planning approvals for alternative 
uses and/or to carry out improvements. 

 
15. The intention was to market the property whilst the new school was under 

construction as it was felt to be essential that the sale of this important 
property was well advanced, if not at the point of completion, when the 
relocation occurred, to minimise the risk to it. 

 
16. The exact date of completion of the new school on a different site in Chilton 

has not been established but is thought to have been in September 2006.  
 

17. The property which included 10.3 hectares (25.5 acres) of land was 
subsequently marketed and put up for sale by way of informal tender, in 
consultation with Storeys SSP Limited, with the closing date for sealed offers 
being 8 June 2006.  

 
18. No considered planning brief was provided as part of the marketing.    
 
19. In all, 13 offers were received ranging from £10K to £2.3m. The highest offer 

of £2.3 m was received late on the 20 June 2006.    
  
20. Of the 12 offers received on time, 3 were shortlisted for review. A building 

company, although not initially the highest bidder, was selected as the 
preferred developer due to their financial offer, proposed scheme and track 
record.  

 
Contract with Preferred Developer 

 
21. The original offer from the preferred developer was £1.75M but this bid was 

uplifted to £2.3m by a letter dated 15 June 2006.  This letter explained that 
they had been forced to submit an offer to meet the closing date without 
receiving their valuer’s full appraisal.  Having subsequently received this they 
felt their original offer was undervalued.  Their revised offer was £1.5m for an 
unconditional bid on the existing Hall and an additional £800K for additional 
New Build Replacement Accommodation (NBRA). 

 
22. A price of £2.3m for a conditional offer based on 13,000 sq ft of new build 

replacement was subsequently agreed.   
 

23. The instruction to the conveyancing section regarding the approval to 
proceed with the preparation of contracts indicates that no decision was 
required under delegated powers, as Cabinet had already approved its 
disposal and details of the successful tender were to be reported to Cabinet 
following completion of the sale. 

    
  

Page 105



Internal Audit Report: Windlestone Hall 

 

8 

 

24. A contract was subsequently entered into with the company and the County 
Council on 3 July 2007.  A deposit of £75K was made and a unilateral notice 
was registered with the Land Registry to protect the Company’s interest  
under the contract for sale.  

 

25. The exchange of contracts was conditional upon the relevant planning 
consents being granted along with the preparation and agreement of a 
conservation and management plan for Windlestone Hall being either 
satisfied or waived by the buyer in writing on or before the long stop date of 2 
July 2008. 

 

26. The contract made provision for the offer price for the NBRA to be adjusted 
pro rota to the square feet planning permission subsequently agreed.   

 
27. Prior to the acceptance of the offer, written confirmation was received from 

the company agreeing to an overage provision. This was in relation to any 
planning consent being granted within a 20 year period, following the date of 
completion, that produces an increase in the land value. This was made to 
allow the Council to have a clawback provision of 50% of the uplift of the 
value of the land.    

 
28. Following the signing of the contracts various discussions and negotiations 

were held with planning officers from Sedgefield Borough Council, including 
officers from the conservation team, English Heritage (EH) and officers from 
the then Estates section, to consider the developer’s planning proposals. 

 

29. These discussions and negotiations took considerably longer than first 
envisaged due to the emerging requirements of the planners, EH and the 
property market crash.  The issue that could not be resolved was an enabling 
solution that would allow for new build in the grounds to balance the costs of 
restoration and change of use to residential.  

 

30. The last record provided of any discussions with the company regarding their 
planning proposal was minutes of a meeting held 27th April 2010, where it 
was noted that the sale situation is likely to hinge on EH advice and financial 
reappraisal of the scheme.  Depending on the extent of enabling 
development to be allowed, the company was expected to review the 
purchase price.  The outcome from the meeting was that the Company 
should await guidance from Durham County Council about the way forward.  

 

31. A letter from EH dated 4th May 2010 confirmed their advice.  In summary, 
they concluded that, “if the applicant is putting forward their proposal as an 
enabling development, we would expect the site to be re-marketed at a 
current realistic price reflecting the condition of the building and prevailing 
planning constraints.”   
  

Page 106



Internal Audit Report: Windlestone Hall 

 

9 

 

32. An internal meeting was subsequently held 29th June 2010, chaired by the 
Head of Planning, to consider the position following advice from EH and legal 
services.   

 

33. The main outcome from the meeting was that remarketing was unavoidable 
for the following reasons: 

 

• To be fair to other developers who bid in 2006. 

• To reflect the different economic circumstances compared in 2010 to 
2006. 

• To comply with EH Guidance in justifying the need for enabling. 
 

Actual Sale  
 

34. The Valuer, received a phone call on 12 May 2011, from the eventual buyer, 
enquiring about Windlestone Hall.  

 

35. A viewing was subsequently arranged on 31 May 2011. The following day a 
letter of intent to purchase the property was received.  

 

36. The letter of intent requested a period of 60 days to reach mutual agreement 
on sale/purchase of the property. 

 

37. To gain assurance that the prospective purchaser was seriously interested  
in the property some financial checks were carried out on the ability of the 
purchaser to fund the proposals set out in the letter of intent 

 
38. The Valuer, satisfied that the prospective purchaser had the financial means 

to fund their proposals which would meet both planning and English 
Heritage’s requirements and, as far as he was aware, there was no other 
interest in the property, discussed the exclusivity request with the Asset 
Services Manager. The request to enter into a single negotiation was agreed 
for the following reasons: 

 

• The ongoing liabilities and costs associated with the upkeep 

• The proposal would maintain the original use 

• The proposal would provide a capital receipt above that expected 

• Bother officers  were concerned that they could lose a serious 
prospective buyer 

  
39. Following other site visits, a briefing paper setting out the proposed 

acquisition was submitted 4th July 2011. This confirmed the prospective 
purchaser’s intention to adhere to planning recommendations and to liaise 
with EH and the relevant planning officers regarding the conservation 
aspects of the Hall.  

 

40. An offer letter was subsequently sent direct to the Valuer, on 7 July 2011 for 
£241K, “in return for the freehold of the property, title number DU282704, 
property in, ‘AS SEEN’, condition”. 

 

Page 107



Internal Audit Report: Windlestone Hall 

 

10 

 

41. In considering whether  the offer received was a reasonable valuation , the  
following factors were taken into account by the Valuer: 

 

•  The property, a Grade II* listed building, was in a poor state of repair 
when   it was first declared surplus to requirements and it’s condition 
continued to deteriorate.  

•  The property had previously been marketed with the result that the 
selected developer withdrew.  

•  He had read a file note from the previous Valuer, which had stated at the 
meeting in April 2010 that even at a pound (£) value the scheme was not 
viable. 

•  Professional Judgement that the value of the property as a development 
proposition was a minus figure – with the estimated cost of refurbishment 
of the Hall only at £3-4m compared to an estimated developed market 
value of £2.1m. 

• There was no current market for alternative potential uses i.e care home, 
apartments or luxury hotel.  

• The only other potential use was owner occupier but it was his 
professional judgement that no one in the current market would be 
looking for a residential home of this size (30 bedrooms); comparable 
properties are substantially smaller and relatively good condition with 
significantly more land .  The belief that the purchaser had the financial 
means to restore the Hall back to its original grandeur. 

• The annual security costs and general repairs of £100K and the need to 
spend an estimated £300K on repairs to maintain the survival of the 
building by making it watertight. 

• The additional cost and uncertainty of remarketing and the likely delay 
while any new developer tried to obtain whatever finance/planning was 
required. (estimated to be 18-24 months)  

   

42. In summary, the Valuer considered there was no viable alternative to this 
offer to use the site as a residential unit, as any other type of use would have 
required extensive planning negotiations.   The acceptance of this offer was 
considered by asset management and planning officers to be the best 
consideration reasonably obtainable and would therefore meet the Council’s 
legal obligations under the Local Government Act 1972, S123, regarding the 
disposal of land.  This view is supported by the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services.     

 

43. The decision to accept this offer was initially made under delegated powers 
by Don McLure, Corporate Director Resources on 4 August 2011. The 
decision was made following consideration of a short covering report and a 
more detailed valuation report dated 14 July 2011. Prior to the delegated 
decision being approved, asset management officers consulted on the 
proposal to accept the offer with Cllrs Avery, Potts and Foster (13 July 2011).   
  

Page 108



Internal Audit Report: Windlestone Hall 

 

11 

 

44. The background provided in the covering report explained that an offer of 
£1.8m, accepted subject to the obtaining of planned consent, had fallen 
through due to not being able to reach agreement over the level of Enabling 
Development.  It was reported that the Council had withdrawn from the sale. 

 

45. It was also reported that, “discussion had taken place with another party 
proposing a different approach to the enabling solution but that this would 
take some time to come to fruition and would require offsite enabling 
development.  Meanwhile the building continues to deteriorate and is costing 
£100k p.a.”  It is understood this reference refers to some discussion held 
with a community interest group, but which was never considered to be a 
viable proposition by either the Council or English Heritage. 

 

46. No formal acceptance letter was issued by the Council. The purchaser was 
notified by email, by the Valuer, of the approval of the offer. 

   

47. Once the delegation decision had been made, instructions were given to 
legal services to proceed with the sale. A copy of the delegated decision was 
provided with the instruction as authorisation to sell. 

 

48.  No checks were carried out by legal services at that time to ensure the 
proposed sale conformed with the Local Govt 1972 S123 as it was assumed 
that in approving the acceptance of the offer, through the recorded delegated 
decision process, the legality of the decision had already been established. 

   

49. Whilst it was reported that negotiations regarding the original offer had fallen 
through, legal services had not been advised that the contract with the 
development company dated 3 July 2007 should be terminated.  As a result. 
the unilateral notice placed on the property at the Land Register, to protect 
the company’s interest under the contract, was still in place. Consequently, 
the Council was not in a position to sell the property to anyone else. 

 

50. On querying the position with the Valuer, the Chief Conveyancer was 
advised the previous offer was “dead in the water” and consequently applied 
to the Land registry on the Council’s behalf to cancel the unilateral notice on 
the 18 August 2011. On receipt, the Land Registry advised the company of 
the Council’s application. 

    

51. The company solicitors subsequently wrote to the Council confirming that 
their clients had not withdrawn from the sale. They advised that the company  
had been unable to comply with their obligations under the 2007 contract and 
submit a formal planning application due to the lack of response from both 
the Council and its marketing agents, following consultation with planning 
officers and EH. Having spent significant time and money in the preparation 
of pre-planning presentations, the company was clearly frustrated by the 
Council’s actions.  A supplementary contract extending time periods to 
progress a planning application was requested. 

 

52. As the Council had attempted to assist the company in its planning 
application for a number of years and no further communications or 

Page 109



Internal Audit Report: Windlestone Hall 

 

12 

 

proposals had been forthcoming from the company since the meeting on the 
27th April 2010, the request for a supplementary contract was refused and 
notice given that the Contract for Sale dated the 3 July 2007 was terminated.   
Bank details were requested to enable the return of the £75K deposit. 

 

53. The company refused to accept termination of the contract, refused to 
withdraw their unilateral notice from the land registry or to accept return of 
their deposit. They claimed to have evidence from their own records that this 
matter was frustrated by the County Council. However, they were prepared 
to accept termination if a compensation agreement could be reached for 
‘wasted’ costs.  

 

54. As the 2007 contract included a long stop date of 12 months from the date of 
the contract, the Property, Planning and Investment Manager, Legal 
Services, advised that the Council was legally able to terminate the contract 
from that day onwards with one month’s notice.   

 

55. The Land Registry was instructed to refer the application to cancel the 
company’s unilateral notice on the property to the HM Land Registry’s 
Adjudicator and started to prepare a case to defend the Council’s position in 
court. 

 

56. It is understood the new purchaser was not happy with the delay in 
completing the sale, having previously advised the Council that they wished 
to complete within 30 days of submitting their offer.  Concerns were raised 
that if the sale did not proceed quickly they could lose the sale.   

 

57. Consequently, even though the Council was in dispute with the company and 
the interest of the new purchaser could not yet be lodged with the Land 
Registry, a further delegation decision was taken by the Head of Planning 
and Assets on the 28 November 2011 to proceed with the exchange of 
contracts and complete the sale, with a clause being included in the contract 
to pay monies due within 30 days of the removal of the unilateral notice.  

 

58. To protect the Council interests until funds were paid a ‘First Charge’ was 
registered with the Land Registry. This allowed the purchaser access to the 
property and to be registered as occupiers, even though the title would not 
revert to them until they paid the purchase price and fees. 

   

59. At the company’s request, officers met with company representatives to 
discuss the position further and to make a formal complaint seeking 
compensation for the injustice they claim to have suffered.  They quoted a 
figure of £40K for abortive costs and a similar figure for the time they have 
spent on the project.   
  

Page 110



Internal Audit Report: Windlestone Hall 

 

13 

 

60. Having reviewed the asset management file, the Property, Planning and 
Projects Manager, Legal Services, had concerns about the lack of records of 
what happened between April 2010 and the offer received in July 2011.  The 
Company advised that had they been told that an alternative offer was being 
considered they would have made a substantial unconditional offer. In the 
light of the apparent lack of progress over the previous 4 years, no evidence 
could be produced to confirm the Company’s assertion that their proposal 
was not, “dead in the water”.   
 

61. In an attempt to clarify the position, the Property, Planning and Projects 
Manager, Legal Services, contacted 2 former employees who had been 
involved in the disposal prior to them leaving the Council in March and April 
2011. This confirmed that the sticking point on the Company’s proposal was 
the question of the enabling development and that the company had been 
led to believe that some new development could be agreed at some 
undefined location on the site. He had hoped that the meeting with the 
planners (assumed to be the meeting 29 June 2010) might identify some way 
forward. 

 

62. A response to the Company’s complaint, drafted by legal services, was 
issued to the Company 19 January 2012 by the Head of Planning and 
Assets. The response acknowledged, with regret, the lack of communication 
of the Council’s intentions, but rejected the claim for compensation for the 
time and effort invested in the original proposal on the basis that, “those 
efforts reflected a commercial risk by the developer who was unable to 
persuade EH to support an enabling development application which would 
have been an essential characteristic of your proposal”. 

 

63. Both parties were advised by the Land Registry Adjudicator by way of a letter  
dated 5 January 2012 that if cases were not submitted by 19 January 2012 , 
a decision would be made without a hearing and the instruction would be 
given to cancel the unilateral notice.     

 

64. On the 20th January 2012, the Council was advised by the Land Registry 
Adjudicator that the Company had requested an extension of 21 days as they 
had been unable to fully prepare their case as they had not had a response 
to their complaint discussed at the meeting on the 9th December 2011. They 
had been advised that they would receive a response by the 14th January 
2012 but this had not been forthcoming.      

 

65. After asking the Council to comment on the request, the adjudicator decided 
to refuse the request and confirmed support for DCC’s position that the 
restricted interest of the Company on the property should be cancelled.  The 
reason cited for this decision was that the company had had sufficient 
opportunity to plead a case and gave no good reason for failing to do so.  

 

66. It would appear that in view of the Adjudicator’s decision, the company 
decided not to pursue any claim for compensation and bank details were 
provided to enable their deposit to be refunded. 

 

Page 111



Internal Audit Report: Windlestone Hall 

 

14 

 

67. The restriction on the property was confirmed as being removed on the 23 
February 2012. However, payment was not received until 10 August 2012. 

 
68. The contract for the sale at £241K as signed 29 November 2011.  As part of 

the contract the Council agreed at its own expense to: 
   

• Ensure that the heating system within the property is in working order 
as soon as possible following completion. 

• To fill the central heating oil tanks situated on the property. 

• To continue with the existing 24 hour security until 31 December 2011. 
 

69. It was explained that the offer of £241k in July 2011 although submitted, ‘as 
seen’, was based on the assumption that the heating system was in good 
order, as the purchaser had been advised by the Valuer this was the case 
prior to the offer being submitted.  

 
70. A site visit with the purchaser on the 19 October 2011 identified the heating 

was not on. It was later disclosed that the system had been drained down 
earlier in the year following a burst pipe during the previous winter and some 
work was needed to get the system working properly. Having consulted 
technical services, the estimated cost of repair at this stage was considered 
to be in the region of £2-3K. 

 
71.  Following further negotiations with the purchaser, it was agreed to include 

the above conditions in the contract. This decision was authorised by the 
Assets Services Manager as these costs would have been incurred by the 
Council regardless of the sale and there was a risk the buyer would withdraw.  
Post completion, it became apparent that the extent of repairs required was 
much greater than first envisaged.  Revised estimates from technical services 
at this stage were £30K- £40K.  

 
72. Following further negotiations with the purchaser a sum of £25K was agreed 

in lieu of the Council’s contractual obligations to ensure the heating system 
was in order.  This was paid direct to the purchaser via a CHAPS payment 3 
Feb 2012. This reduced the capital receipt achieved from disposal to £216K.  
In addition £6,922 revenue expenditure was incurred for the cost for 
excavating the external heating ductwork prior to completion. The cost of 
filling the oil tanks was £4453.  In total, cost incurred in relation to the heating 
system was £36,375.  One month’s notice was required on the security 
contract so the agreement to fund security costs up to the 31/12/12 was not 
an additional cost for the Council.   

 
73. No conditions of sale were applied to the contract in relation to planning 

development/permissions or any overage provision should there be any 
uplift in land price as a result of any future development.  However, it is 
understood that as the property was to be used as a private dwelling and 
the sale price was not considered to be undervalue, a clause to protect the 
council’s interest in the event of subsequent sale was not required.  

Page 112



Internal Audit Report: Windlestone Hall 

 

15 

 

74. Furthermore,  as the hall is a Grade II* Listed Building, guarantees that the 
renovation work would progress as planned were not appropriate as the 
obligations placed on any owner of a Grade II* Listed Building are laid out in 
planning legislation. 
 

CONCLUSIONS 
 

75. When the property was declared surplus to requirements in 2006, the 
ultimate use and therefore the potential market value would appear to have 
been unknown. Consequently, the estimated capital receipt could not be 
included in any capital funding forecasts. 

 

76. The property was known to be in a poor state of repair in 2006 and would 
appear to have deteriorated since that date. 

   

77. The marketing of the property in 2006 by informal tender is in accordance 
with the Council’s current Disposal and Acquisition Strategy (2010/11) and 
aimed to obtain the best consideration by the most appropriate method.  
However, given the historic heritage of the property, planning restrictions 
were inevitable and it may have been more appropriate to market the 
property after consultation with EH and the development of a detailed 
planning brief. This would have reduced bidders costs that may have been 
reflected in bids submitted.  It would have also speeded up the subsequent 
negotiation process potentially allowing an earlier completion and reduction 
in Council maintenance/security costs.  The absence of a detailed brief may 
account for the wide range of bids received making the evaluation process 
more difficult.    It is noted that the current disposal strategy requires, 

 

“consideration should be given to obtaining planning  consent or investment 
in the property prior to disposal to enhance its value and make it more 
attractive to the market”.  

 
78. The decision to accept the revised conditional offer of £2.3m from the 

building company in 2006, received after the closing date, was not supported 
by a documented delegated decision. 

 

79. The two valuations referred to in Cllr Shuttleworth letter of £.1.8m and £1.5m 
refer to the yearend valuation for capital accounting purposes as at March 
2007 and 2008. The reduction in valuation was due to planning restrictions 
and a deterioration of the condition of the property and not due to market 
conditions as quoted by Cllr Shuttleworth. 

 

80. There is lack of transparency and accountability for what actions were taken 
from June 2010 when it was agreed that the property should be remarketed, 
with a detailed planning brief reflecting EH requirements, until the actual 
buyer expressed an interest in the property in May 2011. In particular the 
files notes were insufficient following the departure of the 2 former 
employees involved with the disposal. It is not clear what further 
communication/discussions took place with the building company to evidence 

Page 113



Internal Audit Report: Windlestone Hall 

 

16 

 

that their proposals were “dead in the water” when responsibility for the 
disposal of the property was passed to the current Valuer  

 

81. Whilst there is no evidence to demonstrate that any consideration was given 
to not selling when there was a down turn in the property market and seeking 
a temporary use of the property until such times as the market improved, as 
required by the Council’s disposal and acquisition strategy, it is understood 
that this would not have been feasible due to the poor conditions of the 
property and the increasing liability to maintain a Grade II* listed building in 
the interim. 

 
82. The response from former employees in relation to enquires made into the 

complaint from building company in December 2011, confirm that 
negotiations with the company  were expected to continue once the planning 
brief reflecting EH’s requirements agreed at the meeting in June 2010 was 
developed. This appears to contradict the apparent message that the “deal 
was dead in the water”.   
 

83. The 4 years of negotiations, the continuing decline in the property market, 
the restrictions placed on the site and what would appear to be very little 
activity during this period on both sides suggest that the contract should have 
ended much sooner in the process.  

  
84. No instruction was given by Asset Management to Legal Services to give 

notice to the building company that their conditional contract should be 
terminated and to make arrangements to refund their deposit on the basis 
that negotiations had ceased.    

 

85. Discussions held with the eventual buyer regarding their interest and 
subsequent offer were very informal and all dealt with by the Valuer. There 
was no division of duties between valuation and sale activities. In agreeing to 
an exclusivity agreement, allowing payment to be made after the property 
was occupied and agreeing to fund various repairs/expenses, officers in both 
asset management and legal appear to have firmly believed that the Council 
would not get a better offer and that care should be taken not to put this 
buyer off.  

 
86. Whilst there is provision in the Council’s disposal and acquisition strategy to 

negotiate a disposal to a single party in certain circumstances, rather than 
offer on the open market, and such decisions will be a matter of professional 
judgement, there is a lack of clarity on the procedures that should be 
followed when such an approach is recommended.  

 
87. The Council’s Valuer firmly believes that at the time of sale, the property and 

the site was not worth anything as no new build to allow an enabling 
development was considered feasible and the cost of renovation of the 
existing Hall would exceed the estimated renovated market value. 
Consequently he considered that there was no interest in the property in the 
current market. Hence the unconditional offer of £241K from someone he  

Page 114



Internal Audit Report: Windlestone Hall 

 

17 

 

believed to be of significant financial standing who would meet all planning 
and EH requirements was considered, ‘too good to miss’.    

 

88. This professional judgement was informed by best information available 
rather than robust estimates. Some assurance that renovation costs and 
resale market value were reasonable has been taken from figures quoted by 
the buyer and from previous negotiations with the building company. It is 
acknowledged that this would have been subject to some review and 
consideration of reasonableness, as well as visible inspection, and therefore 
not just taken at face value. 

 
89. As the property was not remarketed as agreed in June 2010, with a detailed 

planning brief to clarify any planning restrictions, it cannot be independently 
evidenced that the decision to accept the offer of £241K represented best 
consideration.   Likewise nor can it be evidenced that the property was 
disposed of at undervalue. It is, however, acknowledged that it is the view of 
the Council’s professionally qualified Valuer and the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services that the Council has fulfilled its legal obligations.  

 
90. To improve transparency and accountability, it may have been prudent for 

the Council to have sought an independent valuation to verify that the offer 
represented best consideration before it was accepted.    

 

91. The real value of any property is what someone is prepared to pay for it. It is 
not possible to say if the Council would have gained a higher capital receipt 
had the property been remarketed, but the process would have been seen to 
be more transparent and would have strengthened the Council’s overall 
decision making process and reduced the risk of reputation damage through 
challenge.  

 

92. Ombudsman guidance, as set out in the council’s disposal strategy , requires 
two officers to conduct negotiations. Whilst this does not appear to have 
been adhered to, the strategy acknowledges that this guidance may be 
unrealistic for every case. 

 
93. The £241K ‘as seen’ offer was submitted by the buyer having been advised 

that the central heating system was in working order. Prior to completion it 
was disclosed that this was not the case. Following negotiations with the 
purchaser it was agreed, as part of the contract of sale, that the Council 
would fund essential expenses to rectify the position. Post completion, further 
negotiations were held to agree the amount to be funded by the Council to 
fulfil its legal obligations under the contract. In total expenses of 
approximately £36K were met by the Council.  

 
94. The decision to agree to the inclusion of this clause in the contract was made 

to formalise the position agreed at inspection and to also acknowledge the 
risk that the purchaser could withdraw, and if this happened, the Council 
would still need to incur the expenses agreed to protect the building fabric.  
This was not a documented decision under delegated authority. Actual costs 

Page 115



Internal Audit Report: Windlestone Hall 

 

18 

 

incurred to fulfil the Council’s legal obligations under this clause were higher 
than had been estimated at the time the decision was made. 

 
95. Systems and procedures for carrying out due diligence in relation to the 

buyer were limited  in that only limited credit checks were made on the ability 
of the buyer to fund the estimated renovation costs to meet planning and 
EH’s requirements. 

 
96. Failure to formally conclude negotiations with the building company resulted 

in unnecessary challenge and damage to the Council’s reputation.  
   

Page 116



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 -
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 F
O

R
 I

M
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 

 

1
9

 

 N
o

. 
F

in
d

in
g

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

A
s

s
o

c
ia

te
d

 R
is

k
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

R
e
c

o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

0
1

 
V

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

in
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
p
u
rp

o
s
e

s
, 
re

fl
e

c
ti
n
g
 r

e
b
u

ild
 

c
o

s
t,
 v

a
ri

e
d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
tl
y 

fr
o

m
 

th
e
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 m

a
rk

e
t 

v
a

lu
e

 
a
n
d

 v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 f

ig
u

re
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
fi
x
e
d
 a

s
s
e
t 

re
g

is
te

r.
  

 T
h

e
 l
a
s
t 

re
c
o

rd
e

d
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 

th
e
 f

ix
e
d
 a

s
s
e

t 
re

g
is

te
r 

w
a
s
 

J
a

n
u
a
ry

 2
0

0
9
 f

o
r 

£
9

0
0
k
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
lo

s
s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 o

v
e

r 
in

s
u
ra

n
c
e

  
 In

a
c
c
u
ra

te
 c

a
p
it
a
l 

re
c
e

ip
ts

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

 In
c
o
rr

e
c
t 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

a
c
c
o
u

n
t 

M
 

A
n

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 m

a
rk

e
t 

v
a

lu
e
 

s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

h
e

n
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

re
 d

e
c
la

re
d

 s
u
rp

lu
s
. 

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 f
in

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
  

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 i
n

s
u
ra

n
c
e

 t
e

a
m

  
s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 n
o
ti
fi
e
d

 w
h
e

n
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

re
 d

e
c
la

re
d

 s
u
rp

lu
s
  

(a
n

d
 s

u
b

s
e

q
u
e

n
tl
y
 s

o
ld

),
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
p
t 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
in

s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

n
d

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

e
 f

ix
e

d
 

a
s
s
e
t 

re
g

is
te

r 
a
n

d
 c

a
p
it
a

l 
re

c
e

ip
t 

fo
re

c
a

s
ts

 a
re

 u
p
d

a
te

d
 

a
c
c
o
rd

in
g

ly
  

 
 V

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
o
u

s
ly

 r
e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e
 d

is
p

o
s
a

l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 (

 a
s
 

re
q

u
ir
e

d
 b

y 
th

e
 d

is
p
o

s
a

l 
s
tr

a
te

g
y)

 a
n
d

 r
e

v
is

e
d
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o
n

s
 

re
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 f
ix

e
d
 a

s
s
e

t 
re

g
is

te
r 

  

A
g

re
e

d
 

   A
s
s
e

ts
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 

th
e

 D
is

p
o

s
a

l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 

u
p
d
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
ts

 m
o
n

th
ly

 a
n
d

 
re

p
o

rt
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 t

o
 M

O
W

G
 

th
e

re
fo

re
 n

o
t 

c
le

a
r 

a
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
n

e
c
e
s
s
it
y 

o
f 

a
d

v
is

in
g

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
F

in
a
n

c
e

 w
h

e
n
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

re
 

d
e
c
la

re
d

 s
u
rp

lu
s
. 

   A
lr

e
a
d

y
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

C
a
p

it
a

l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 f

o
re

c
a

s
ti
n
g
 a

s
 s

ta
te

d
 

a
b
o

v
e

 
R

e
v
is

e
d
 V

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

s
s
e
t 

R
e
g

is
te

r 
e

v
e

ry
 y

e
a
r 

A
s
s
e

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
–

 t
o

 b
e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
 w

it
h

 
im

m
e
d

ia
te

 e
ff

e
c
t 

Page 117



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 -
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 F
O

R
 I

M
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 

 

2
0

 

 N
o

. 
F

in
d

in
g

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

A
s

s
o

c
ia

te
d

 R
is

k
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

R
e
c

o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

0
2

 
N

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 p

la
n
n

in
g

 b
ri

e
f 

h
a
d

 b
e
e

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 e

x
e
rc

is
e

 i
n

 2
0
0
6

 P
ro

lo
n
g

e
d
 

n
e
g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
s
 

re
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 

s
e

c
u
ri
ty

 c
o

s
ts

 c
 

H
 

T
h

e
 D

is
p

o
s
a
l 
a
n

d
 A

c
q

u
is

it
io

n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

m
e

n
d
e

d
 t
o
 

re
q

u
ir
e

 a
 p

la
n
n

in
g

 b
ri
e
f 

is
 

p
re

p
a
re

d
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 a
ll 

m
a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 

e
x
e
rc

is
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
s
s
u

e
d
 t

o
 a

ll 
p
ro

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

rs
 t

o
 

a
s
s
is

t 
te

n
d

e
r/

b
id

 s
u
b

m
is

s
io

n
s
  

  
 F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

it
h
 

a
s
s
e
ts

 a
n

d
 p

la
n
n

in
g

 m
e
rg

in
g
 

in
to

 a
 s

in
g
le

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 

a
d
v
ic

e
, 

in
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
b
ro

a
d
 

p
ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
a

c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

is
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 
o

f 
a

ll 
s
a

le
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rs

. 
  
It

 
s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 n
o

te
d
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

a
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e

rs
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 t
h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 
p

ro
d

u
c
t 
a

n
d

 i
t 

is
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

n
o

t 
to

 
b

e
 t
o

o
 p

re
s
c
ri
p
ti
v
e

 i
n

 s
ti
fl
in

g
 

in
n

o
v
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 w
e
 g

e
t 

b
e

s
t 

c
o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 d

o
 n

o
t 
 d

e
te

r 
p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b
id

s
 .

 O
n
 s

e
n

s
it
iv

e
 o

r 
la

rg
e

 s
it
e

s
 i
t 
is

 a
c
c
e

p
te

d
 t
h

a
t 

a
 

b
ri
e
f 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 a

s
 h

a
s
 

h
a
p
p

e
n
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o
n
 t

o
 W

h
in

n
e

y
 

H
ill

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
, 
b

u
t 
g

iv
e
n

 t
h
e

 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 a

n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
d

e
la

y
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 w
ill

 n
o
t 
o

c
c
u
r 

in
 

e
v
e

ry
 c

a
s
e
 o

r 
s
a

le
..

 

In
 p

la
c
e

 

Page 118



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 -
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 F
O

R
 I

M
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 

 

2
1

 

 N
o

. 
F

in
d

in
g

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

A
s

s
o

c
ia

te
d

 R
is

k
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

R
e
c

o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

0
3

 
A

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 b
id

 w
a
s
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 

a
ft
e

r 
th

e
 c

lo
s
in

g
 d

a
te

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 

th
e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g

 e
x
e

rc
is

e
 

in
 2

0
0
6

. 
 

C
o
llu

s
io

n
 

C
h
a
lle

n
g
e

 
R

e
p
u

ta
ti
o

n
 

D
a
m

a
g

e
 

H
 

T
h

e
 D

is
p

o
s
a
l 
a
n

d
 A

c
q

u
is

it
io

n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

m
e

n
d
e

d
 t
o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 f

o
rm

a
l 
te

n
d

e
r 

p
ro

c
e

d
u
re

s
. 

T
h
is

 s
h
o

u
ld

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

re
c
e
ip

t 
a

n
d
 

o
p
e

n
in

g
 o

f 
b
id

s
, 

c
o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

o
f 
la

te
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 t

e
n
d

e
rs

, 
te

n
d

e
r 

e
v
a

lu
a
ti
o
n

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 e

tc
  

F
o

rm
a
l 
te

n
d

e
r 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 i
s
 

a
lr
e
a

d
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 D

is
p
o

s
a

l 
a
n

d
 

A
c
q
u
is

it
io

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y,
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y 

w
ill

 b
e
 

u
n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
n
 t

o
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n
 a

re
a
s
 

o
f 
c
o
n

c
e
rn

. 
 T

h
e
 t
e

n
d
e

r 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
s
 

a
d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

A
 d

is
p

o
s
a

l 
o

f 
a
n

 i
n

te
re

s
t 
in

 l
a
n

d
 i
s
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 a

n
d
 

a
re

 v
e
ry

 r
a
re

ly
 e

v
a

lu
a

te
d
 o

th
e
r 

th
a

n
 o

n
 p

ri
c
e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

n
 

o
b
lig

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 g
e

t 
b
e

s
t 

c
o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

A
s
s
e

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 J
u
n

e
 2

0
1
3

  

0
4

 
 

N
o
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 w
a

s
 m

a
d

e
 u

n
d

e
r 

d
e
le

g
a
te

d
 p

o
w

e
rs

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
p

t 
th

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
l 
te

n
d
e

r 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 c

o
m

p
a
n

y
 a

s
 t

h
e
 

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
te

n
d

e
r 

w
a
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o
 c

a
b
in

e
t 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
le

  

C
o
llu

s
io

n
 

C
h
a
lle

n
g
e

 
R

e
p
u

ta
ti
o

n
 

D
a
m

a
g

e
 

H
 

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e

. 
 

  P
ro

c
e

d
u
re

s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 c

la
ri

fy
 r

o
le

s
 

a
n
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
, 

a
llo

w
 f
o
r 

a
n
 

a
d
e

q
u
a
te

 d
iv

is
io

n
 o

f 
d
u

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 
b
e
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 

o
f 
d

e
le

g
a

te
d
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
  

 

T
h

e
 r

e
c
e
n

t 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
n
 a

s
s
e
ts

 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

le
g

a
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
s
 

c
la

ri
fi
e
d

 t
h
is

 e
le

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e

 
re

v
ie

w
. 

  

In
 p

la
c
e

 

Page 119



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 -
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 F
O

R
 I

M
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 

 

2
2

 

 N
o

. 
F

in
d

in
g

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

A
s

s
o

c
ia

te
d

 R
is

k
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

R
e
c

o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

0
5

  
T

h
e
 V

a
lu

e
r 

w
a
s
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
o

in
t 

o
f 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 

fo
r 

a
 p

ro
s
p
e

c
ti
v
e

 
p
u
rc

h
a
s
e

r 
e

x
p
re

s
s
in

g
 a

n
 

in
te

re
s
t.

  
A

ll 
s
u

b
s
e
q

u
e
n
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 t
h

ro
u

g
h
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
a
c
c
e
p

ta
n

c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ff
e
r 

,p
re

 
a
n
d

 p
o

s
t 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

n
e

g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
a
s
 v

ia
 t

h
e
 V

a
lu

e
r 

  

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 r

is
k
 o

f 
c
o

llu
s
io

n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 
in

a
d
e

q
u
a
te

 
d

iv
is

io
n
 o

f 
d

u
ti
e

s
 

H
 

T
h

e
 D

is
p

o
s
a
l 
a
n

d
 A

c
q

u
is

it
io

n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

m
e

n
d
e

d
 t
o
  
 

re
fl
e

c
t 
a

n
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

 d
iv

is
io

n
 o

f 
d
u
ti
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 
s
a

le
s
. 

 
 R

e
s
p
e

c
ti
v
e

 r
o
le

s
 a

n
d
 

re
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

c
le

a
rl

y
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 a
n

d
 

c
o

m
m

u
n
ic

a
te

d
. 

 A
ll 

v
a

lu
a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

b
id

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 
b

y 
a

t 
le

a
s
t 
2
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 
a
n
d

 d
o

c
u

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
 t

o
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 

 
 A

 f
o
rm

a
l 
ri

s
k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 e

v
a

lu
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

  

V
a

lu
a
ti
o

n
s
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 

o
u
t 
b

y 
th

e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

d
e

a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 

th
e

 d
is

p
o

s
a

l,
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll 

v
a

lu
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
u
n
te

r 
s
ig

n
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
p
p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 l
in

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e
r.

 
    S

e
e
 a

b
o

v
e
- 

a
lr
e

a
d

y 
in

 p
la

c
e
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

d
e

le
g

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

    C
o
u

n
c
il 

h
a
s
 o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
 t
o
 g

e
t 

b
e
s
t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 b

u
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

b
id

s
 i
s
 a

lw
a

ys
 

u
n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
n
. 
 I

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

 r
is

k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 i
n

fo
rm

 f
u
tu

re
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
. 

 

Im
m

e
d
ia

te
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
  

 D
is

p
o

s
a

l 
a

n
d
 

A
c
q
u
is

it
io

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y 
w

ill
 

b
e
 a

m
e
n

d
e
d

 b
y
 J

u
n

e
 

2
0
1
3

 
 A

s
s
e

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

Page 120



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 -
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 F
O

R
 I

M
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 

 

2
3

 

 N
o

. 
F

in
d

in
g

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

A
s

s
o

c
ia

te
d

 R
is

k
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

R
e
c

o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

0
6

 
D

u
e

 d
ili

g
e
n

c
e
 c

h
e
c
k
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 
o
u
t 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
e
p

te
d
 o

ff
e
r 

w
e
re

 
in

a
d
e

q
u
a

te
. 

F
ra

u
d

/M
o

n
e

y
 

L
a
u
n

d
e
ri

n
g
  

 M
is

in
fo

rm
e

d
 

d
e
c
is

io
n

s
 

 E
x
te

rn
a

l 
c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

 
 R

e
p
u

ta
ti
o

n
 

d
a
m

a
g

e
 i
f 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 
o

f 
s
a
le

 a
re

 n
o
t 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
  

H
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 p

ro
c
e

d
u
re

s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 

b
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 

a
d
e

q
u
a
te

 d
u

e
 d

ili
g

e
n

c
e
 c

h
e

c
k
s
 

a
re

 u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

, 
p
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
e

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
n

y 
o

ff
e

r,
 t

o
 

c
o

n
fi
rm

 b
o
th

 I
.D

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 

fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 o

f 
p
ro

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 
p
u
rc

h
a
s
e

rs
. 

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
h

e
c
k
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 s
e

e
k
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 i
n

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e
 b

u
y
e
r’

s
 

a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 n

o
t 
o

n
ly

 f
u

n
d

 t
h
e

 
p
u
rc

h
a
s
e

 b
u
t 
a

ll 
n
e

c
e

s
s
a
ry

 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 a

s
 

o
u
tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 b

ri
e

fs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
s
. 
 T

h
e

 s
o
u
rc

e
 o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 c

la
ri
fi
e
d
. 

  

It
 i
s
 a

c
k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

P
u

rc
h

a
s
e
rs

 S
o

lic
it
o
rs

 h
a
s
 

u
lt
im

a
te

 r
e

s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 I
n

 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
re

d
ib

ili
ty

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
c
h
e

c
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 w

ill
 

b
e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 

g
u
id

e
lin

e
s
 f

o
r 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
. 

 

A
s
s
e

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 J
u
n

e
 2

0
1
3

 

0
7

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
n
 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o

s
e

d
 d

e
le

g
a
te

d
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 w

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 b
y 

th
e

 
p
ro

p
o

s
e
r 

n
o

t 
th

e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 t

h
e
 

d
e
le

g
a
te

d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
  

  

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
a

c
c
o
u

n
ta

b
ili

ty
 b

y 
a

u
th

o
ri

s
e
d

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 

 P
o
o

r 
d
e

c
is

io
n

s
  

 
    

L
 

       

If
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a

l,
 a

n
y
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

re
q

u
ir
e

d
 w

it
h
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 
th

e
 d

e
le

g
a

te
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 
p
ro

c
e

s
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

a
c
tu

a
lly

 m
a
k
in

g
 

th
e
 d

e
le

g
a
ti
o

n
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 
th

e
 o

ff
ic

e
 m

a
k
in

g
 t

h
e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

M
e

m
b
e
r 

re
s
p
o

n
s
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

d
e
le

g
a
ti
o

n
 t
h

e
re

b
y 

a
le

rt
in

g
 t

h
e
 

d
e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
e
r 

to
 a

n
y
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

c
o
n

c
e

rn
s
 

In
 p

la
c
e

 

0
8

 
D

e
le

g
a
te

d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
d

e
 

w
it
h
o
u

t 
le

g
a

l 
c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
  

 
L

e
g
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 n
o
t 

m
e

t 
 R

e
p
u

ta
ti
o

n
 

d
a
m

a
g

e
 

 

M
 

A
u

th
o
ri

s
e
d

 o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 l
e

g
a
l,
 w

h
e

re
 a

 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 e

x
e
rc

is
e

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

, 
o
u

t 
to

 s
e

e
k
 f
u

rt
h
e
r 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 l
e

g
a
l 
re

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e

n
t 

A
c
t 
1

9
7

2
 

F
u

rt
h
e
r 

d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 l
e

g
a

l 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e
v
ie

w
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e

s
 a

re
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

A
s
s
e

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 

 J
u
n

e
 2

0
1
3

 

Page 121



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 -
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 F
O

R
 I

M
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 

 

2
4

 

 N
o

. 
F

in
d

in
g

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

A
s

s
o

c
ia

te
d

 R
is

k
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

R
e
c

o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

0
9

 
F

a
ilu

re
 t
o

 f
o
rm

a
lly

 t
e

rm
in

a
te

 
n
e
g

o
ti
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h
 b

u
ild

in
g

 
c
o

m
p

a
n

y
 

R
e
p
u

ta
ti
o

n
 

d
a
m

a
g

e
 

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
lo

s
s
  

H
 

L
e
g

a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 k
e
e

p
 a

 
re

c
o
rd

 o
f 
a

ll 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 f
o
r 

s
a
le

 a
n

d
 

fl
a

g
 l
o

n
g
 s

to
p

 d
a
te

s
 b

e
c
o

m
in

g
 

d
u
e

 f
o
r 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
. 

 
 P

ro
c
e
d
u

re
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t
o
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

n
e
g

o
ti
a

ti
o

n
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

le
a

rl
y
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n

te
d
 a

n
d
 c

h
e

c
k
lis

ts
 f
o

r 
e
a
c
h
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 o

n
 a

s
s
e

t/
p

la
n

n
in

g
 

re
c
o
rd

s
/f

ile
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 e
n

s
u

re
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e
. 

 A
 c

le
a
r 

d
o

c
u

m
e
n

te
d
 a

u
d

it
 t
ra

il 
o
f 
a

ll 
n
e

g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d
 a

n
y 

m
o
n

it
o
ri

n
g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
. 

 If
 n

e
g

o
ti
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 e

x
p
e

c
te

d
 t
o

 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 b

e
y
o
n

d
 t
h

e
 l
o

n
g

 s
to

p
 

d
a
te

, 
le

g
a

l 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
e
d

 
to

 c
o
n

s
id

e
r 

w
h
e

th
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 e
x
te

n
d

e
d
 o

r 
te

rm
in

a
te

d
 

 

A
g

re
e

d
 b

y 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
 R

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 

    A
lr

e
a
d

y
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 s

e
e

 a
b

o
v
e

 
       A

g
re

e
d

 
    s
e
e

 a
b

o
v
e
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
re

v
ie

w
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 a

n
d
 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 M
a

n
a
g

e
r,

 
L

e
g
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
  

- 
Im

m
e

d
ia

te
 e

ff
e

c
t 

Page 122



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 -
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 F
O

R
 I

M
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 

 

2
5

 

 N
o

. 
F

in
d

in
g

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

A
s

s
o

c
ia

te
d

 R
is

k
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

R
e
c

o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

 
 

 
 

A
u

th
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

m
a
k
in

g
 s

u
c
h
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

le
a

rl
y
 

d
e
fi
n
e
d

 a
n

d
 a

ll 
d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n

te
d
 w

it
h
 r

e
a

s
o
n

s
. 

 If
 a

 c
o
n

tr
a
c
t 

is
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 f
o
r 

te
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
 

re
v
is

e
d
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
, 
w

it
h
 t

im
e

s
c
a
le

s
, 

s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 a
g
re

e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

s
a

m
e

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 d

e
le

g
a

te
d
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
. 

C
o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

o
p
ti
o
n
 t

o
 r

e
ta

in
 t
h
e

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 

s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 c
le

a
rl

y 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

d
. 

 
 A

n
y 

d
e

c
is

io
n
 t
o

 v
a
ry

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 

a
p
p

ro
v
e

d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

m
a
d
e

 u
n

d
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 

d
e
le

g
a
te

d
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
 

 A
 c

o
p

y
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
le

g
a
te

d
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 t
o

 t
e
rm

in
a

te
 a

 c
o
n

tr
a
c
t 

s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 p
a

s
s
e
d

 t
o
 l
e
g

a
l 
w

it
h

 
a
n
 i
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 t
o
 c

a
n

c
e
l 
th

e
 

in
te

re
s
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
la

n
d
 r

e
g

is
tr

y 
a

n
d

 r
e

fu
n

d
 a

n
y
 

d
e
p

o
s
it
 p

a
id

. 
R

e
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 

s
h

o
u
ld

 n
o

t 
c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e
 u

n
ti
l 

w
ri
tt

e
n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 

fr
o
m

 l
e
g
a

l 
th

a
t 

a
ll 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 

in
te

re
s
ts

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p
e

rt
y 

ti
tl
e
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 c

a
n

c
e

lle
d
. 

A
g

re
e

d
 

    A
g

re
e

d
 

          A
g

re
e

d
  

    A
g

re
e

d
 

 

Page 123



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 -
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 F
O

R
 I

M
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 

 

2
6

 

 N
o

. 
F

in
d

in
g

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

A
s

s
o

c
ia

te
d

 R
is

k
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

R
e
c

o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

 
 

 
H

 
M

o
re

 g
u
id

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 n

e
e
d

e
d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 

d
is

p
o

s
a

l 
s
tr

a
te

g
y 

to
 o

u
tl
in

e
 t

h
e
 

c
ir

c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 w

h
e
n

 i
t 

is
 

a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 t
o

 u
s
e

 e
a

c
h

 t
yp

e
 o

f 
d
is

p
o

s
a

l 
m

e
th

o
d
 l
is

te
d

 –
 

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 d

is
p
o

s
a

l 
b

y
 p

ri
v
a

te
 

tr
e
a
ty

. 
 

 T
h

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

h
o
u

ld
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

d
is

p
o

s
a

l 
m

e
th

o
d
 t

o
 b

e
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n

te
d
 a

n
d
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 

a
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
. 

T
h

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
a

s
e
 s

h
o
u

ld
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 w
h
o
 w

a
s
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
e

d
. 
 T

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
a
ls

o
 s

p
e

c
if
y 

w
h

o
 i
s
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 

to
 a

p
p
ro

v
e

. 
  

 If
 a

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

is
p
o

s
e

d
 o

f 
w

h
e

re
 a

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 s

a
le

 
fe

ll 
th

ro
u
g
h

, 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 s
h

o
u
ld

 
b
e
 m

a
d
e

 i
n

 c
o
n

s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

le
g

a
l 
to

 c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

in
 

th
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
. 

 
 P

ri
o
r 

to
 t
h

e
 a

c
c
e
p

ta
n

c
e

 o
f 
a

n
y
 

o
ff
e

r 
b

e
in

g
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 w

h
e

re
 

a
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 m
a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 

e
x
e
rc

is
e

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e
n

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 

o
u
t,

 a
n
 i
n

d
e
p

e
n
d
e

n
t 

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 

s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 o
b
ta

in
e
d

 t
o
 v

e
ri

fy
 

b
e
s
t 
c
o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

o
b
ta

in
e

d
  

 

A
g

re
e

d
 

            T
h

e
s
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

 

A
s
s
e

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 

 J
u
n

e
 2

0
1
3

 

Page 124



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 -
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 F
O

R
 I

M
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 

 

2
7

 

 N
o

. 
F

in
d

in
g

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

A
s

s
o

c
ia

te
d

 R
is

k
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

R
e
c

o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

1
0

 
T

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

o
f 

s
a

le
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

to
 

fu
n
d
 c

e
rt

a
in

 e
x
p
e

n
s
e

s
 t
h

a
t 

h
a
d

 n
o
t 

b
e

e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 
th

e
 d

e
le

g
a

ti
o
n

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
p

t 
th

e
 o

ff
e

r.
  

    

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
p
a
re

n
c
y 

a
n

d
 

a
c
c
o
u

n
ta

b
ili

ty
  

  

H
 

F
o
rm

a
l 
le

tt
e
rs

 o
f 

o
ff
e
r 

a
c
c
e
p

ta
n

c
e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 i
s
s
u

e
d
 t
o

 
c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h
e

 b
a

s
is

 o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 

o
ff
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 m

a
d

e
 a

n
d

 
a
c
c
e
p

te
d

 
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 p

ro
c
e

d
u
re

s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 

c
la

ri
fy

 i
n
 w

h
a

t 
c
ir

c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

h
o
w

 s
u

c
h
 p

o
s
t 
o

ff
e
r 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

n
c
e
 

n
e
g

o
ti
a

ti
o

n
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 

o
u
t 

a
n
d
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
. 

 P
ro

c
e
d
u

re
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
fi
rm

 
w

h
ic

h
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o

 m
a

k
e
 s

u
c
h

 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
. 

 A
ll 

n
e

g
o
ti
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n
s
 

s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 d
o

c
u

m
e
n

te
d

 a
n

d
 

s
u

p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 r

o
b

u
s
t 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
. 

  

A
g

re
e

d
 a

n
d
 a

lr
e
a

d
y
 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 b

u
t 

th
is

 c
a
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 

c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 c
o
p

y
 p

la
c
e

d
 

o
n
 f

ile
 

  A
lr

e
a
d

y
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 v

ia
 d

e
le

g
a
te

d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a

l 
 

     A
lr

e
a
d

y
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
  

    A
g

re
e

d
-i
n

 p
la

c
e

 
 

 

1
1

 
T

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

fo
r 

s
a
le

 m
a
d

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
to

 b
e

 
m

a
d
e

 a
ft

e
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o
n
. 

 

R
e
p
u

ta
ti
o

n
 

d
a
m

a
g

e
 

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
lo

s
s
  

 

H
 

P
ro

c
e
d
u

re
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
le

a
rl

y
 

s
p

e
c
if
y
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
s
u

c
h
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 m
a

d
e
 i
n
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 
w

it
h
 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
, 

R
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
  

 

S
h

o
u
ld

 t
h

is
 n

o
t 

b
e

 A
s
s
e
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 M

a
n
a

g
e
r 

a
n

d
 L

e
g

a
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
?

 
 A

g
re

e
d

 b
y 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
  

 
 

    Im
m

e
d
ia

te
 e

ff
e

c
t 

Page 125



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 -
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 F
O

R
 I

M
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 

 

2
8

 

 N
o

. 
F

in
d

in
g

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

A
s

s
o

c
ia

te
d

 R
is

k
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

R
e
c

o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

1
2

 
L
a
c
k
 o

f 
tr

a
n

s
p

a
re

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 

a
c
c
o
u

n
ta

b
ili

ty
 

 
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 D

is
p
o

s
a

l 
a
n

d
 

A
c
q
u

is
it
io

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 a

n
d
/ 
o

r 
o
p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
g
u
id

a
n

c
e
 n

o
te

s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 t

o
 

u
n
d

e
rp

in
 t
h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 
to

 r
e

fl
e

c
t 

p
ro

c
e

d
u
ra

l 
c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 a

b
o

v
e

 
 T

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 s
p

e
c
if
y
 

w
h
o

 i
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

it
s
 

p
re

p
a
ra

ti
o

n
, 
a

p
p
ro

v
a

l,
 

m
o
n

it
o
ri

n
g
 a

n
d

 r
e
v
ie

w
. 

  

A
g

re
e

d
 

       A
g

re
e

d
 

A
s
s
e

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 J
u
n

e
 2

0
1
3

 

 

Page 126



Agenda Item 14

Page 127

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 129

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 141

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 144

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 15

Page 145

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 148

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the meeting held on 22 November 2012
	221112 Minutes Act PLan Final

	4 Risk Management Update - Quarter Ending December 2012 - Report of Corporate Director, Resources
	6 Action Plan for Corporate Governance Improvements - Report of Corporate Director, Resources
	7 Action Plan 2011/12 Audit of Accounts Update - Report of Corporate Director, Resources
	21 February 2013 - AGR-IGR Actions - 2013 -11-02-13 (2) Appendices

	8 2011/12 Annual Grant Report - Report of the External Auditor
	9 Co-opted Members to the Audit Committee -  Report of Corporate Director, Resources
	10 Internal Audit Progress Report Quarter Ending December 2012 Update - Report of Manager of Internal Audit and Risk
	Internal Audit Progress Report Dec 2012 - Appendix 2 Background
	Internal Audit Porgress Report Dec 2012  - Appendix 3
	Appendix 4 Progress on Plan
	Appendix 5 Final reports
	Appendix 6 Actions Table
	APPENDIX 7
	APPENDIX 8
	Appendix 9 PIs

	11 Sale of Windlestone Hall - Joint Report of External Auditor and Manager of Internal Audit and Risk Management
	Sale of Windleston   Appendix 2
	Sale of Windlestone --Appendix 3

	14 Internal Audit Progress Report Quarter Ending December 2012 Update - Report of Manager of Internal Audit and Risk
	Appendix 7 Overdue Actions v2 - Part B Final
	Internal Audit Porgress Report QE Dec 12 - Appendix 8 Limited Assurnance Opinion Audits

	15 Overdue Audit Recommendations - Report of the Manager of Internal Audit and Risk

